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Location of Jiahua Stores
and Shopping Mall
TEFHSRBYHOMUEE

BT &4t Taipei
Guang—x‘i} \J
<> e EHE Yanbu
AP, .
IR Taoyuan 'OQ R T
PO UENnT . 8 H K
A W& Dashatian owﬁ 7 Hong Kong
- S F9 Macao
S e
ga
¥ = Dongguan Haikou
fojalﬁﬂ)ﬁ Gongming BUREYT L
AR & Songgang ¢¥-. Guanlan Shopping Mall
EE OO
- BEXE V. .
Baoan District =HE (2R

DIHE(ERE) A #YIITH Shenzhen
Shajing (clo§ed) AEJE Shiyan «
s (EREE) ¢

Xixiang (closed)

Sanlian (closed)

BEEE Longh’ua.. e
. IR
Bantian Shopping Mall

IC.

224 75 Shuyuan Yage
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Xixiang (closed) Gongming
FaR(ERERA) /NG NFR

Shuyuan Yage Taoyuan

E L MR (EE)

Sanlian (closed) Dashatian Yanbu
=B (ERER) RAPH(ER)

Longhua Shajing (closed) Bantian Shopping Mall (include Bantian Store)
BEFE D H(ERIE) REEYH L (BREE)
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Guanlan Shopping Mall (include Guanlan Store)
BRBEDHL (SBREE)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERME

INTRODUCTION

2020 is the year when the world economy faces the greatest
challenge. The new pandemic raging around the world has led
to multiple meltdowns in the United States (“US”) stock market,
plummeting international oil prices, a significant decline in
international trade and investment, and a sharp contraction in the
service industry. The global economy will shrink in 2020, among
which the economies of advanced economies, emerging markets
and developing economies will shrink. The Chinese economy
may be the only major economy in the world that has positive
economic growth. Some European countries experienced a sharp
economic recession, and the new pandemic was the worst in
France and lItaly. The World Trade Organization predicts that the
transportation and tourism industries are greatly restricted, and
the global trade in goods will decline in 2020. Asian countries
have performed better against the pandemic, and their economies
have been less affected. In addition to the positive growth of
China’s GDP, Myanmar and Vietnam are expected to grow, while
Indonesia’s decline. Some countries have implemented measures
such as the lockdown the country and cities, cutting off navigation
and routes, and suspending production, which has paralyzed or
stagnated globalization characterized by the free flow of production
factors. Consumer demand and production demand continue to
shift from offline to online, and part of the demand is transferred
through online shopping, online education, online medical care,

FE
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

and online office. The internet has played an important role in
promoting economic recovery in various countries. At the same
time, the new scientific and technological revolution and industrial
transformation has driven the rapid development of technology,
supported the realization of network transformation in various fields
of the economy and society, and accelerated the era of technology,
together with Big Data, cloud computing, artificial intelligence,
etc., to promote the development of the digital economy and drive
entertainment, news, social networking, e-commerce, games and
other aspects of consumer Internet development.

In 2020, the consumption growth rate of all countries in the world
will be affected significantly. For the two largest consumer markets
in the world, China and the United States, there is an obvious
trend of shrinking total volume and becoming online. The European
economy experienced a severe contraction, and a large number
of restaurants and shops have been closed down. The pandemic
has changed consumers’ shopping habits and turned to online
shopping. During the shopping season, total retail sales in the
US increased and e-commerce sales soared by nearly 50%. In
China, residents’ online consumption habits have generally been
cultivated, and the scale of online consumption has increased
and consumption behaviour has continued to increase. Online
retail sales of physical goods in China increased year on year
(“YOY”) accounted for 25% of the total retail sales of consumer
goods. In 2020, some innovative retail trends have also emerged
in the retail industry, which are called e-groceries and internet
celebrity economy in the US, and community group buying and live
broadcast in China.

China’s economy will grow by 2.3% under the pandemic in 2020,
and final consumption expenditure will account for 54.3% of GDP.
For the whole year, the total social retail sales recorded RMB39.2
trillion, a YOY decrease of 3.9%. In the post-pandemic period,
online consumption has become more stable. The online retail sales
of physical goods for the year increased by 14.8% YOY, accounting
for 24.9% of total social retail sales, an increase of 4.2 percentage
points from the previous year. The consumption of catering and
retail categories showed positive trends of picking up. The negative
growth of retail consumption such as house purchases, car
purchases and apparel rebounded significantly at the end of the
year. Among them, communication equipment, cosmetics, tobacco
and alcohol increased significantly, while there was reduction in
negative growth categories, including goldsmith, apparel, and
catering.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
%%E%&i (IIE)

In 2020, the three major business sectors of cosmetics, coffee and
tea, and new energy vehicles will perform brilliantly. In particular,
Chinese brands of domestic products are rapidly deploying in
China’s urban cities under the impetus of capital. The cosmetics for
women is “basic consumption”, especially the young generation’s
concept of beauty and skin care is very popular, not limited to the
top international brands. The price performance ratio and quality
improvement of domestic products are enough to attract young
consumers. As one of the three major business formats for the rapid
expansion of retail properties, the cosmetics brand has high floor
efficiency and obvious customer flow effect which has become the
mainstream of its first-level business format adjustment in shopping
malls. After the pandemic has been stable, the gap between the
growth rate of cosmetics sales and the market average has further
widened, showing the huge potential of this market. Besides,
the emergence of domestic tea brands has greatly changed
consumers’ perceptions of traditional tea consumption. It is not
limited to the health of the product itself, but is also accompanied
by personality, trend, and fashionable consumption characteristics.
This reflects the consumer mentality similar to the early global
coffee brand consumption. Under a repetitive business model,
high profit margins accelerate capital entry, and leading brands
quickly penetrate the markets at all levels. During the same period,
domestic competitors emerged rapidly to divide the consumer
market. In the context of increasing economic uncertainty, the
Chinese tea and coffee market with low and medium unit prices
is a mainstream trend. There are more brands of medium-priced
single products, which will accelerate market competition. Auto
consumption rebounded significantly in the second half of the year,
especially the sales of mid-to-high-end vehicles and new energy
vehicles continued to increase. The growth rate of new energy
vehicle sales exceeded the average growth rate of the automotive
industry. With the various factors such as traffic restrictions,
reduction of emissions, and purchase tax concessions, the rise of
new energy vehicles is a general trend. The advantages of Chinese-
owned auto brands in the field of battery research help them to
enter the world-wide competition in the new energy vehicle market.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

In the consumption 3.0 era, new consumption content creates
more diversified consumption scenes, which in turn complement
and improve the consumption scenes of traditional shopping malls,
while renewing and upgrading diversified floor plan property to
carry more modern consumption. Scenes, such as cultural and
creative e-sports, event interpretation, city back streets, parks
and greenways, etc. and more yet to be discovered, yet unknown
“X scenes”. The three-level commercial mode of “city, regional
and community level” in traditional cognition cannot meet new
diversified and repetitive consumer demands. And the scene of
consumption is no longer limited to traditional department stores,
shopping malls, outlets, hypermarkets and other high-quality retail
properties themselves. The consumption from traditional stores
can be generated by more consumer highlights. For example, the
neglected place of inheritance of urban culture, the back alleys of
the old streets, stimulating the vitality of the night economy.

In terms of shopping malls, the number of newly opened
commercial projects in 2020 is 374, a YOY decrease of 28%.
The newly added commercial building area was approximately
32.76 million square meters, a decrease of approximately 11.16
million square meters from last year; the average single building
area was approximately 90,000 square meters. The number of
commercial openings throughout the year will hit a new low in
the past three years. The pandemic led to a sharp drop in newly
opened properties in 2020. According to the statistics of the annual
planned opening of the year at the beginning of 2020, nearly 900
commercial projects was planned to open, but the actual opening
rate is only 40%. From a regional perspective, East China, which
has a developed economy and large consumption power, is still
strong, leading the seven regions with 156 openings throughout
the year, accounting for about 42%. Guangdong and Zhejiang
ranked second and third respectively. From the perspective of
urban distribution, 2020 will still be a pattern of “active frontline
and rising sinking markets”. Chengdu is the most active; Shanghai
ranks second and Shenzhen ranks third. From the perspective
of the distribution of commercial scale, the scale is the largest
in the range of 50,000 to 100,000 square meters, accounting
for about 35%. These premises integrate basic shopping and
consumer needs such as shopping, eating, drinking and playing,
and also introduce theaters, entertainment clubs, movie theaters,
etc. Experiencing formats such as animal museums, which have
enough space for event marketing, are often favored by many
developers. Although the number of newly opened commercial
projects has decreased significantly compared with 2019, giant
companies are still increasing market supply. Especially under
the pandemic, the company’s anti-risk ability and comprehensive
ability are tested, and the leading position of giant companies in the
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

industry has become more and more prominent. At the same time,
as China’s urbanization has entered the era of “refined operation”,
urban renewal has been a topic that continues to attract attention.
The business has evolved from the initial “property renewal” to
the commercial integration of “people, industry and city”. As
far as commercial real estate is concerned, the transformation
and renewal of existing commerce is a kind of inheritance of
urban culture. In addition to the “dress up”, the important thing
is to realize the organic renewal of “symbiosis”. On the basis of
preserving the original architectural culture, the function of the
building is expanded through cultural performances, catering
and other formats, and the symbiosis of architecture, culture,
and commerce is realized. With the outbreak of the pandemic,
community business, as the business closest to people’s dalily life,
has played an important role in protecting people’s livelihood and
promoting stability. Community businesses have main content,
including district supermarkets dominated by fresh produce, and
district convenience stores, as well as the group buying and home
delivery businesses in 2020. The community business mainly
refers to the community within the fifteen-minute walk of people.
In addition to supermarkets, convenience stores, hypermarkets, it
also covers catering, clothing retail, clinics, pharmacies, educational
institutions, etc., to meet people’s daily lives. Regardless its exterior
architecture, interior space design, or the marketing of scene
content, more and more commercial projects focus on attractive
exterior decoration. Especially in the fierce market competition
environment, outlook is also highly focused as the means of
differentiated competition. Judging from the performance of the
new supply market, the existing renovation properties can give
the market a new experience by upgrading their appearance and
content, and the newly opened properties are focusing on the
“outlook”, hoping that the grand opening ceremony can give out
surprises. The upgrading of shopping centers is much higher than
that of department stores, supermarkets and other industries, and
fresh elements must be injected. Some newly opened commercial
projects continue to introduce new content in the scene space
and business combination, such as themed blocks close to the
urban culture, the traditional theme museum, the sky sports field,
the theater experience center, the zoo, etc. into the shopping
center. On the whole, in addition to the national trend culture, night
economy, first store economy, parent-child economy, pet economy
and other models are still hot, some distinctive economic forms
and marketing models show more enthusiasm and advantages,
including livestreaming. Affected by the pandemic, retail store
businesses are seeking new ways to bring goods through online
live broadcasts. In addition to relying on online sales of goods,
they have created some immersive live broadcast scenes that
are visually and experienced through unique offline experience
characteristics.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the pandemic has affected traditional department
stores which faced unprecedented pressure, with the gradual
reduction of closure of stores by retail giants in all city area. The
retail business has been recovering. The impact upon the operation
in the retail industry posed by the surge of e-business gradually
surfaced, not to mention the effect brought by high rents, high wage
and other rising costs. Due to unfavourable business environment,
the Group has performed fair operating results.

Retail industry was generally operating under difficulties. Despite
the negative factors, the Group has made changes to its operation
and recorded a fair operating result. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group has recorded revenue from continuing
operations of approximately RMB428.1 million, representing a YOY
decrease of approximately 33.7%. Gross profit from direct sales
was approximately RMB42.7 million, representing a YOY decrease
of approximately 45.7%, and consolidated loss attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately RMB194.5 million,
representing a YOY increase of approximately 271.5%, mainly
attributable to provision of impairment loss on existing loss making
stores or shopping malls, and the written off of assets upon closure
of three stores during the year. Revenue decrease was principally
attributable to the drop in sales of goods, commissions from
concessionaire sales, rental income from investment properties and
interest income from financing services. However, increase in rental
income from subleasing of shopping malls and rental income from
sub-leasing of shop premises have partly offset the overall decrease
of income.

During the year, the group closed three retail stores. The Xixiang
Store was closed due to the expiration of the lease agreement and
the deterioration of the surrounding business environment. The
Sanlian Store and Shajing Store were respectively affected by the
deterioration of the general business environment and increased
competition in the surrounding area, which led the Group to make
the decision to close the store. For shopping mall, the Guanlan
Shopping Mall in Longhua District, Shenzhen has been fully
operated during the year to gain market share. The group reformed
its operations, reorganized the internal structure of four of its
flagship stores, implemented an operational responsibility system,
and streamlined business processes. In terms of cost reduction, the
headquarters staff structure was adjusted to reduce the pressure
on the group’s funds.
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E 3 3C1)

FA XHTUREFE BEET
RIFTRBEES - A HE
TEERHEBRACBIEE  BERTEXX
HEE o  TEXKRIEHES  STIERHE
RAENE LR EERRIN  EEHEERD
HERTEXNZEEL IR - RERED
£ RERAFRE-RHNEEESA -

|1 4

TENMXTERARKEYE  SERYSE
BEREZE  TRABREIFRE -—ROKEE
4B o MEIE2020F 12 A31HIEFE © &A%
BB REIFELEDB D 2 MALNBARE
428,057,0007T * Ltk EF R AP #33.7% : B
EHE 2 ENEL B AR 42,681,0007T ¢
L EFTEAIA5.7%  RARIERTFTE AR
HESIE 4 A AR K194,461,0007T * L =F
AIE EFH#I271.5% - TEHNEIEAEIE
FIJE Z R EEE R F R =R @ E Z MER
BERWATHRNTERFRAEEER &
BEHEMSHES REYERSWARKES
BRARTS 2 IS WA R TR - i - D HEEY
RO S KA RS BIESYENTHES RA
B8RS A DA SR BB T /% -

FR SEBEAT=RTEE - AHEHR
HERBIHLASKERTEEMEAE
ZHEERAHIED B RRIRE Z K ERE
FMBIMmEREIERBERE - BYH LT
| RIEREREREBYT LOERFAER
ERRE  FRMEHE SEELENEE
TE > BEPERENEET T AERE
N BITEERERS  BEEHRE RN
ERTE  ETTANE TRERE  RES
BESES -



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

On the administration aspect, the Group has implemented various
measures to maintain its operational efficiency and minimize
operating costs in relation to the human resources system.
Recruitments through various channels such as carear fair, head
hunting, campus recruitment were held during the year, which
enhanced the quality and technical knowledge of new staff
members for preparing new business in future. With regard to risk
management, the Group has revised the overall risk management
framework by enhancing the internal system, internal control,
industry knowledge, and special investigation.

PROSPECTS

It is anticipated that the slowdown in economic growth rate of
China will exist as the high operating cost will extort the profit
margin which led to more business merger in the retail industry in
2020. The traditional retail store will be highly conglomerated with
online store by sharing customer data, product information and
sales tactics such that to provide a more enjoyable and convenient
shopping experience. Apart from this, multi-industries development
will be a main stream in retail sector. The China retail market will be
highly consolidated into various large operators to make use of its
corporate marketing power and ability, and to increase the market
competitive strength.

The Directors believe that both opportunities and challenges ahead,
and the retail industry will compete and develop in a better market
environment.

In business development aspect, the Group will uphold the principle
of “consolidating resources and developing retail chain business”,
to strengthen the management, reiterate the competitive strength,
upgrade the brand image and expand in a stable manner. The
Group will focus on the development in areas such as Guangdong
and Guangxi by making use of different expansion models including
“acquisition, merging, investment holdings and joint venture”.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to all staff for their dedication and contribution to the
Group, and would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders,
business partners, and valuable customers for their utmost support
to the Group.

Zhuang Lu Kun
Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
29 March 2021
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERSEEEAEHE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (3EfE3#), aged 60, is the founder, executive
Director and the chairman of the Group. He is responsible for
the overall management, strategic planning and major decision
making of the Group. Mr. Zhuang is the father of Mr. Zhuang
Xiao Xiong. Mr. Zhuang has over 26 years of experience in the
retail industry. He had served as a honorary deputy chairman
of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce (#YIT4HE€), a
committee member of Guangdong Province Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (RIHEREZE®), a
member of the China General Chamber of Commerce (1 Bl & %
%4 2), a deputy chairman of Shenzhen Private Entrepreneur’s
Chamber of Commerce (YT R EBEKEIE), a deputy chairman
of Shenzhen Franchise Association (FIITEEEETEH D),
and a honorary chairman of Shenzhen Baoan General Chamber
of Commerce (RINEZEAREE). Mr. Zhuang graduated from
Guangdong Administrative and Management College (&R 1TH £
Ft) majoring in modern management in July 1999, and obtained
the Master of Business Administration of senior management
from the Sun Yat-sen University (1L KZ2). He also received the
award of “Paragon of Work” of Guangdong province (R & 4 &)
EEFESR) in May 2003 and the award of Outstanding Staff Care
Private Ownership Entrepreneur (2EBEE LEFRLEDER)
in September 2006. He was elected as the Top Ten Person of
the Year in Commerce of Guangdong in 2007 and the Top Ten
Creditable Entrepreneur in the Integrated Retail Industry in China
in the year 2007 and 2009 respectively, and the deputy chairman
of the Hong Kong Volunteers Federation in 2014. Mr. Zhuang has
served the Group for over 26 years.

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong (§£51&), aged 59, is an executive Director
and the chief financial officer of the Group. He is responsible for
the financial accounting of the Group. Mr. Zhuang obtained an
undergraduate diploma in financial accounting from Guangdong
Radio and Television University (EEREE TR AE) in 1990
and pursued advanced studies in management in Sun Yat-Sen
University. Mr. Zhuang joined the Group in August 1995 and has
over 26 years of experience in the retail industry. Mr. Zhuang was
accredited senior membership of the International Profession
Certification Association (BFERE#HE) and membership of the
China Association for Employment Promotion (Bt #{2#E€) in
2008 and has obtained a master degree in business administration
from the University of Wales in England in 2014. Mr. Zhuang has
served the Group for over 23 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEEEEAESEE(E)

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong (¥ #), aged 38, Mr. Zhuang obtained
from the University of Luton, United Kingdom a bachelor of arts
degree in business administration in 2005 and a master of science
degree in finance and business management in 2006. Mr. Zhuang is
the deputy chairman of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce
(Association of the Industrialists and Businessman) (% 3l 11 42 7%
@ (LB )) and a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Shenzhen (B 17 73l & 8
). Mr. Zhuang is the son of Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang
Su Lan. He joined the Group as full time member in 2006 and is
responsible for the overall operation management of the Group. Mr.
Zhuang has served the Group for over 15 years.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung (8 §8%f), CPA (practising), FCMA, aged
63, is a practising accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chin is a fellow
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Mr. Chin is an independent non-
executive director of Excalibur Global Financial Holdings Limited
(SEHK: 08350). Mr. Chin has served the Group for over 13 years.

Mr. Sun Ju Yi (&), aged 68, graduated from the Finance and
Economic Institute of Tianjin in the PRC in 1978 and underwent
a master research study program at the Finance and Economics
Institute of Tianjin in the PRC in 1978. He is a senior accountant
and a registered accountant in the PRC. He had been a lecturer
of the Finance and Economic Institute of Tianjin and the assistant
to the principal of Shenzhen Zhong Hua Accounting Firm. Mr. Sun
has over 31 years of experience in financial lecturing, accounting,
auditing and corporate financial management. Mr. Sun was an
independent non-executive director of Jinchuan Group International
Resources Co. Ltd (formerly known as Macau Investment Holdings
Limited) (SEHK: 02362). He is a director of Gemdale Corporation
(&% ) (600383.SH), a listed PRC Shanghai property developer.
Mr. Sun has served the Group for over 8 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEEEEAESEE(E)

Mr. Ai Ji (X&), aged 67, graduated from Hunan Radio and
Television University (#58 E#EE R AE) with a bachelor’'s degree
in law and obtained the qualification of a practising lawyer in
1988. Mr. Ai is a practising lawyer in the PRC, has worked for
Hunan Chuhua Law Firm (#1222 AIE7FT) and Guangdong
ShenTianCheng Law Firm (BR &K EZAIEFT), and is a senior
partner of the Yingke Law Firm (2 EHZENEFSFT). He is a member of
the standing committee of the fifth session of National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (Shenzhen)
(FREARBAHEEH XY TEZES), a member of various
committees (including member of the sixth and seventh sessions
of standing committee of Guangdong, deputy chairman of legal
system committee, and deputy chairman of the fourth and fifth
sessions of Shenzhen committee) of the China Democratic National
Construction Association (A B R EZBIE). Mr. Ai practised as a
legal counsel and has accumulated over 39 years experience in
various commercial and law firms in the PRC. Mr. Ai has served the
Group for over 13 years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Li Chong (BR¥£), aged 45, is the manager for
the engineering department of the Group, responsible for the
establishment of engineering and facilities management system,
purchase of bulk equipment, and project based renovation program
etc. Mr. Chen obtained the certificate of Housing Architecture
from the Fujian Agriculture And Forestry University and is a PRC
registered civil engineer. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2003. He has
extensive engineering facilities management experience. Mr. Chen
has served the Group for over 18 years.

Mr. Li Dong (Z#), aged 46, is the manager responsible for
security and safety management of the Group. Mr. Li obtained a
certificate of Business Administration from the Open University of
China in 2011. Mr. Li has served as store manager, deputy manager
of the human resources department, the chief operation officer,
the general manager of the Guangxi subsidiary and the deputy
manager of the procurement department. Mr. Li has over 19 years
of experience in the retail industry. Mr. Li has served the Group for
over 17 years.

Mr. Wen Meng Chen ((RZE), aged 43. Mr. Wen is the deputy
manager of supermarket procurement department, responsible for
the commodity sourcing and resource allocation. Mr. Wen obtained
the bachelor of business administration degree of Xi’an Jiaotong
University. Mr. Wen joined the Group in 1997 and had been working
as store-in-charge of Shajing store, Longhua store, Shiyan store,
and Gongming store etc. He possessed rich experience in retail
commercial complex management. Mr. Wen has served the Group
for over 22 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEEEEAESEE(E)

Ms. Lang Li (BBR), aged 38, is the deputy manager of the
commercial division operation and marketing development of
the Group, responsible for the commercial operation and sales
and marketing management. Ms. Lang obtained the certificate
of Business Management from the Henan University, possessed
commercial operation management experience. She was a senior
operation management of Rainbow Department Store and deputy
district operation manager of Soring Shenzhen. Ms. Lang joined the
Group on June 2018. Ms. Lang has served the Group for over 2
years.

Mr. Liu Ya Feng (2I3E1#), aged 37, is the chief information officer,
responsible for the overall information technology of the Group and
the operation of its subsidiary — Shenzhen BJH Network Technology
Limited. Mr. Liu obtained the certificate of Information Management
System from the Guilin University of Electronic Technology in 2005.
Mr. Liu performed event management, IT reconstruction 2005, work
flow enhancement, and commercial digital operation. He was the
IT manager of Shenzhen Guotaian Education Technology Co., Ltd
and Xinchuangji Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu joined the
Group on October 2018. Mr. Liu has served the Group for over 2
years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo (fIfi#l), FCCA, CPA, ACG, ACS, aged
47, is the finance manager and company secretary of the Group.
Mr. Ho obtained a bachelor degree of Business Administration
(Honours) in Accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist University
in 1995 and a master degree in Corporate Governance from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2008. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”), an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS”) and an associate
member of the The Chartered Governance Institute (“CGI”) -
formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators (“ICSA”). He was awarded the Chartered Secretary
and Chartered Governance Professional dual qualification of the
CGl and HKICS. Mr. Ho has experience in accounting, auditing and
corporate finance. Mr. Ho has served the Group for over 13 years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWE TN

(A)

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic has hit the global
economy. The blockade measures across countries caused
large-scale economic shutdown and soared unemployment
rate. Amid the balance between “life preservation” and
“livelihood protection”, the recovery momentum has
obviously been slowed down. The International Monetary
Fund (IMF) predicts that the global economy will shrink by
4.4% while the Organization for Economic Cooperation
and Development (OECD) predicts that the global economy
will shrink by 4.2% in 2020. The economy of US has been
suffered, but the overall performance was still better than
most developed countries.

The widespread pandemic outbreak caused the financial
market plummeted successively. In order to stabilize the
market, the US Federal Reserve cut interest rates twice and
announced quantitative easing measures without caps. It
successively launched monetary policy tools to inject liquidity
into the market and provided credit support to entities.
In order to stabilize the economy, the US government
has introduced four batches of US dollar fiscal stimulus
measures. With these unprecedented monetary policy and
fiscal measures, the US stock market bounced back. The
recovery of the US economy will largely depend on the
progress of pandemic control. The number of confirmed
cases of COVID-19 in the US and overseas has fluctuating,
posing challenges to economic recovery.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

20

The road to economic recovery in Europe is long and rugged.
The outbreak in Europe predates the US, and the social
distancing measures adopted by governments to prevent
and control the pandemic are generally stricter than those
in the US. Europe has also introduced loose monetary and
fiscal stimulus policies that are larger than those during the
financial crisis, but they are limited by the collective decision-
making mechanism of the European Union (EU) and the
Eurozone. The policy strength is not as strong as that of the
US and the speed of action is also slower than that of the
US. These caused the European economy to shrink more
than the US in the pandemic. In the first half of 2020, the
euro zone's Gross Domestic Product (GDP) fell by 11.8%
YOY. Spain fell by 21.5% and was the worst. Germany, the
best performer, also fell by 9.8%, which was higher than
the 9% decline in the US over the same period. The decline
in the United Kingdom (UK) was as deep as 19.8%, the
worst recession in 300 years. Under the “second pandemic”
and “second blockade”, the recovery momentum of the
European economy has slowed down significantly, and the
economic outlook of the euro zone has deteriorated. The
ASEAN economy has been hit hard by the pandemic, but
better than that of Europe and the US. In 2020, the GDP
of emerging ASEAN economies (Indonesia, Malaysia, the
Philippines, Thailand, and Vietnam) is expected to decline
by 4.3%, outperforming Europe and the US. The BRICS
countries (excluding China) have regained their vitality.
As large developing countries, the BRICS countries are
located at different continents of the world, with different
development conditions, different development pace, and
different industrial structures, and their performance in this
pandemic varies. In terms of pandemic prevention and
control, the BRICS countries are lacking. The cumulative
number of confirmed cases in India, Brazil, and Russia
ranks second to fourth in the world. In terms of economic
performance, the economies of the BRIC countries will
shrink significantly during the year. Brazil has experienced
the biggest economic recession in nearly 120 years, and the
actual pandemic situation is serious. In Brazil’s economic
structure, the service industry accounts for approximately
63% of GDP, the highest among the BRIC countries
(54% in Russia). The service industry is most affected by
social distancing measures including large-scale closure
of commercial activities and lockdown. The economy is
expected to shrink by 5.1% throughout the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

Within China, facing the attack by the pandemic, the prime
tasks are the prevention and control of the pandemic, the
coordination of economic and social development work,
the recovery of economic operations, and the restoration
of employment and people’s livelihoods. On the demand
side, total retail sales of consumer goods for the year were
RMB39,198 billion, a decrease of 3.9% YOY. National
investment in fixed assets increased by 2.9% YOY, and
investment in high-tech industries and social horizon
increased rapidly. The total volume of imports and exports
of goods for the year increased by 1.9% YQOY, and the trade
structure continued to be improved. Consumer price index
rose by 2.5% throughout the year, which was lower than
the 2.9% increase in the previous year. The employment
rate is generally stable, with 11.86 million new jobs in the
city. The urban unemployment rate in 2020 is 5.6%, which
is lower than the expected target of around 6%. The annual
per capita disposable income of residents nationwide was
RMB32,189, a real increase of 2.1% after deducting price
factors, which was basically in line with economic growth.
In 2020, China’s domestic consumption recovered steadily.
Consumption is still the “core stone” for the stable economic
growth. The main characteristics of domestic consumption
are the continuous recovery of commodity trading, the
recovery of service spending, the rapid development of new
consumption mode, the recovery of urban and rural markets,
and the overall stable of prices. As China has become the
world’s second largest economy, the per capita income
level has gradually increased, with the disposable portion
has increased correspondingly. China’s consumer market
has entered a stage of rapid growth. Therefore, in addition
to the expansion of the scale of China’s consumer market,
the standard of consumer market has also enhanced. Future
consumption will move towards high-end, diversified and
personalized characteristics.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

22

In Guangdong, retail chains are facing the domestic
trade circulation, the pandemic challenge, the small store
economy, community team purchase, livestreaming,
touchless delivery, and blind box economy etc. In 2020,
the total retail sales of consumer goods in Guangdong
Province exceed RMB4.0 trillion. Governments at all levels
have formulated policies to promote consumption, focused
on supplementing the consumption infrastructure, through
distribution of subsidies, consumer vouchers, to promote
the sale of automobiles and home appliances in rural area,
to encourage information consumption, rural consumption,
cultural and travel consumption, and develop online
education and remote medical care services. There were
some highlights. First, support Guangzhou and Shenzhen
to build international consumption cities, establish city duty-
free shops with local characteristics to redirect overseas
spending. Secondly, implement the “same production
line, same standard, same quality” product for domestic
and export sales. The “Guangdong Trade” plan to explore
the domestic market. Then, the construction of high-
quality business circles and building of consumer festive
brands. In addition, accelerate rural consumer demand
and potential by promoting the replacement of old motor
cars, home appliances and necessities. Besides, support
the development of new types of consumption, expand
consumption on information platforms, develop new
business forms such as smart stores and restaurants etc
to form new service consumption. Finally, increase public
spending by enhancing public service efficiency including
education, culture, medical care, aged services, childcare,
and sports etc.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

Resident consumers affected by the pandemic have shifted
from “physical stores + platform-based e-commerce”
shopping behavior to “integrated e-commerce, social
networking websites, vertical platforms, brand name
websites, livestreaming, private domain traffic” multi-
purpose cloud living platform. In order to meet customer
needs, retailers build the digital connection of people, goods
and market place, making transaction through intelligent
operation and automated transactions, and completely
shift from seller-oriented information to customer-oriented
digitization. Through digitization of customer, commodity,
marketing and supply chain, the operator could meet
customer needs by data combination, analysis and
decision. This will enhance operational efficiency, sales
technique optimization and core value reconstruction. To
further promote the efficient integration and core value
development of the entire supply chain such as commodity
production, circulation and supporting services. In 2020,
“digitalization” has not only surpassed “new retailing” and
“smart retailing”, it has even surpassed network technology
in the business world. The pandemic has indirectly promoted
the improvement of digital service standards and the urgency
of enterprises to apply digital technology.

In 2020, the economy of Guangxi’s region showed a good
momentum of recovery and improvement. The region’s
GDP was RMB2,215.7 billion, an increase of 3.7% YOY.
The condition of agricultural production is good. The annual
value of agriculture, pasturage and fishery was increased by
5.0% YQY. The annual grain output was 13.7 million tons, an
increase of 2.9% YOY. Industrial production has accelerated
significantly, and the output of major products has increased
rapidly. The annual incremental value of industrial enterprises
over the threshold was increased by 1.2% YOY. From the
perspective of major industries, six out of the total ten major
industries have recorded growth. In terms of products, 18
products achieved positive output growth. Service industry
is growing steadily, and the emerging service industry was
gaining momentum. The value of the financial industry was
increased by 6.8%, the wholesale and retail industry was
increased by 3.1%, and the other service industry was
increased by 7.6%. Consumer prices rose moderately, while
industrial producer prices fell slightly. The consumer price
of the whole year was increased by 2.8% YOY. Residents’
income has grown steadily and the employment condition
was stable. The annual average disposable income of
residents in the district was RMB24,562 per person, or 2.4%
after deducting price factors.
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According to the National Bureau of Statistics, the annual
GDP of China of 2020 reached approximately RMB102
trillion, an increase of 2.3% YOY.

In the whole year, the total retail sales of consumer goods
were approximately RMB39.2 trillion, a YOY decrease of
3.9%. Among them, the retail sales of consumer goods
by enterprises over the threshold size were approximately
RMB14.3 trillion, a YOY decrease of 1.9%. According to
the location of business units, retail sales of consumer
goods in city were approximately RMB33.9 trillion, a YOY
decrease of 4.0%; retail sales of consumer goods in rural
areas were approximately RMB5.3 trillion, a YOY decrease
of 3.2%. In terms of consumption patterns, catering revenue
was approximately RMB4.0 ftrillion, a decrease of 16.6%;
retail sales of goods were approximately RMB35.2 trillion,
a decrease of 2.3%. The retail sales of communications
equipment, cosmetics, and goldsmith and jewellery products
of over the threshold units were increased by 26.0%, 21.2%,
and 17.3% respectively YOY. During the year, online retail
sales across the country reached RMB11.8 trillion, a YOY
increase of 10.9%. Among them, the online retail sales of
physical goods was RMB9.8 trillion, an increase of 14.8%,
accounting for 24.9% of the total retail sales of consumer
goods, an increase of 4.2% YOY. Among the online retail
sales of physical goods, eat, wear and use consumer goods
were increased by 30.6%, 5.8% and 16.2% respectively.
By retail format, the retail sales of supermarkets in above
the threshold units were increased by 3.1% YQOY during
the period, while department stores, specialty stores, and
exclusive stores decreased by 9.8%, 5.4%, and 1.4%,
respectively.

In general, China’s export trade has been severely impacted
by the sharp decline in international market demand in 2020.
In order to help some export trader to tide over the crisis, all
provinces have introduced targeted policies and measures
on the inner circle economy where exports are transferred
to domestic sales. The impact of the pandemic on foreign
trade has shifted to the demand side. The transfer of
export products to domestic sales will further enrich market
supply, meet new consumer demand, increase consumer
choice, promote consumption upgrades, and help promote
the overall recovery of the consumer market. With the
establishment of a new development pattern with the internal
circulation policy as the main body and the dual circulation
policy mutually supplementing each other, policies to expand
domestic demand and promote consumption will continue to
exert force. The consumer market will recover steadily, and it
is expected to rebound to a positive trend.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB428.1 million, representing
a YOY decrease of approximately 33.7%. Gross profit
amounted to approximately RMB42.7 million, representing
a YOY decrease of approximately 45.7%. Loss attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately RMB194.5
million, representing an YOY increase of 271.5%. There were
9 stores and 2 shopping malls at the end of the year. During
the year, there were closure of 3 stores, namely Shajing
store, Sanlian store and Xixiang store. Net loss increased
attributable to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in
China since January 2020, the infant stage of operation
and competitive business environment of shopping malls
operation, the additional expenses on forfeiture of rental
deposit and written off of leasehold improvements upon
closure of three stores, and impairment loss on non-financial
assets. The main task was reduction of expenditure to
keep resources for future challenge during the year. Sales
of goods decreased by approximately RMB182.9 million,
commissions income from concessionaire decreased by
approximately RMB45.8 million, rental income from sub-
leasing of shop premises increased by RMB6.3 million,
rental income from investment properties decreased by
approximately RMB2.0 million, rental income from sub-
leasing of shopping malls increased by approximately of
RMB8.1 million, and interest income from financing services
decreased by approximately RMB0.9 million. The Group has
adopted positive operating strategy with value-added service
in retail stores, and continuously exploring and developing
other potential profit opportunities and planned for the
expansion of store and shopping mall network.

Recapping on the year of 2020, the Group has the following
operation highlights.
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Sales of supermarkets and concessionaire
have fallen, gross profit from sales has been
affected

The local governments of Guangdong and Guangxi
and merchants distributed discount spending
vouchers which are helpful to retail businesses in
supermarkets and department stores. However, the
persistent of the pandemic has forced resident’s
spending more cautious, sales have fallen. The
Group implemented a series of remedial measures.
In terms of display layout, it is planned to uplift the
shelves to enhance the visual feeling, and increase
the variety in the daily sundries category to boost
sales. In addition, we introduce some popular cooked
food and pastry to attract customers through market
research. In terms of commodity management, we
focus on the essence of commodities and perform
fine management. By enhancing marketing activities
and promotion leaflets, we set sales targets, order
management, display method, publicity, follow-up
procedure and results review of popular products,
and push forward seasonal and thematic promotion
campaign in stores. By encouraging concessionaires/
vendors promotional sales, we not only to create
sales for the supermarket section, but also solve the
problem of manpower shortage. Expanding online
sales by promoting the in-house developed online
sales channel and external online sales platform.
The main reason for the gross profit gap is decline in
sales. Increase sales, look for high-margin products
in the market to introduce special promotions,
increase vendor activities and gift promotions, plan
promotional activities to obtain thin profits but quicker
sales, and carry out product management to speed
up product turnover which in return reduce maturity
arrival, minimize damaged goods, and avoid price
cuts.
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Improving the furnishings of shopping malls,
introducing catering and entertaining tenants
in stores

The group has been transforming the business model
by shifting focus on sales of goods from traditional
supermarkets to sub-leasing business. Therefore,
the shopping center strengthens decoration
spirit to attract online community discussion, and
incorporates amusement facilities to highlight
the family experience and youthful vitality. Using
vacant shops for temporary promotional activities
and earning additional income. Adding fragrance
dispenser and decorating green plants in toilets
to enhance the style of the mall. Providing an
“professional service room” amenity for shoppers free
consultation service. During the year, the shopping
malls have been undergoing four types of changes.
Standardize operations for system construction,
initiate system compilation and active team building
to increase training and market research. Target
management, rent collection is strictly controlled
to strengthen cash flow. Enhance operating
diversification to increase other income. Vacant shops
pending for business invitation, commencement
and renovation will be closely followed-up to reduce
operating losses. Improve products quality, conduct
customer satisfaction surveys, and formulate
improvement plans. Strengthen quality inspection and
supervision, and emphasize on quality stores.

Closure of stores to reduce operational risks,
renovation enhancement of major stores to
increase store attractiveness

Upon the expiration of the lease agreement in Xixiang
Store, the group decided not to renew the contract
due to the rapid deterioration of the surrounding
business environment during the year. Besides, due
to declining geographical advantage and surrounding
environmental factors, the performance of Sanlian
Store and Shajing Store was badly affected. The
Group has decided to terminate the lease agreements
before expiry of lease term after granting waiver for
compensation of early termination from the respective
landlords.
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The group continues to enhance and adjust its
stores layout to accommodate with the new retail
era. In the food section, the shelves have been
uplift and adjusted to make the overall display more
coordinated and leisurable, and more convenient for
customers to select goods. In the daily necessities
section, the shelves are rearranged to expand the
best-selling categories of lady products. In the fresh
food section, key items are reviewed every weekend
to ensure the best price offered to customers.
Meat stalls and vegetables are selling well when the
pandemic is severe. All in all, we have increased
the product variety for food and daily necessities,
relocated the self-service cash counters, introduced
renowned daily necessities brand name, and
increased the number of food shelves and product
variety to refresh the outlook of sales floor.

Implement measures to increase revenue,
reduce distribution and administration
expenditure

To open up revenue sources, the store and operation
department attach great importance to sales,
diversification, customer flow, marketing, and Online
and Offline (020) work; enrich online brands and
varieties. In addition, the marketing department
expands group purchases, develops member group,
and promotes the sales of shopping cards by
focusing on information and intelligence resources.
Natural loss of employees, reducing personnel
complexity, and reducing labor costs. Managing
vacant shelves, idle store and new business invitation,
improving area utilization and floor efficiency, making
full use of physical space to improve efficiency, and
properly resolve defective brands in advance.

To reduce expenditure, all unnecessary expenses will
be cut down. Promote mobile office, paperless office,
and information office. Strict control on the approval
procedures of all expenses and expenditure. Simplify
organizational structure and personnel structure, fair
and efficient appraisal system. Improve the monthly
performance appraisal report of the manager of the
supermarket and operation department personnel.
Improve work efficiency and enforcement. Advocate
self-discipline and professional ethics to help
execution and sense of responsibility.
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Active development in online sales channel
to expand customer base

Currently, Baijiahua’s O20 business is divided into
two aspects: private and public domain. Private
domain refers to our Baijiahua Mini Program (“Mini
Program”) Mall. Public domain encompasses the
three mainstream 020 e-commerce platform of
Meituan, Ele.me and Jingdong. Since February,
online sales have been going up. The three major
020 platforms of Meituan, JD Daojia, and Ele.me
have already been connected and launched. Next,
we will refine system operations, and improve sales
turnover and customer experience. For livestreaming,
as there is no live broadcast team and customers
have not developed their live shopping habits, large
scale investment has not yet been made. Soon, we
will try team purchase activities to increase customer
adhesiveness and increase sales. The Group tries
to make reference to other e-commerce provider
to integrate entertainment and social elements into
e-commerce operations. Through the “social +
e-commerce” model, more users can share benefits
with fun and enjoy a new shopping experience.
Activate the Mini Program shopping mall module and
bring all merchants to the Mini Program, increase the
overall sales atmosphere, and drive the sales of the
Group and merchants.
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The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and
the Group’s response

Due to the impact of the pandemic, people are
confined at home to minimize unnecessary outings.
Coupled with concerns about the risk of infection
in closed spaces such as shopping arcades and
shopping malls, the customer flow in retail industry
has been mostly affected. The customer base of
supermarkets mainly comes from the residents’
demand for daily necessities, but the frequency
of purchases of materials has been decreased. At
the same time, the purchase demand is competed
with online shopping and the customer flow of
supermarket is greatly affected. The Group managed
inventory level, ensured adequate supply, food safety
and daily disinfection work in supermarkets to combat
the pandemic. In addition, the group has developed
online home delivery business, and worked with
third-party platforms to build online ordering and
distribution network to meet the needs of people
to buy fresh daily necessities online. The impact to
online shopping malls is minimal.

Revenue for the year of 2020 dropped by 33.7%.
Among them, supermarket and concessionaire
revenue fell by 42.3% and 58.4% respectively, and
shopping mall revenue increased by 15.3%. For
supermarkets, although the customer flow is affected,
future revenue is expected to be flat or even grow.
The main reason is that the demand for catering and
daily necessities of the people is still strong. Although
the frequency of personal purchases of materials
has decreased, the number of single purchases
has increased, and the online home delivery service
has been launched. The impact on the income of
supermarket stores is not very significant.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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There are factors affecting the decline in corporate
turnover. The main reasons for the impact on the
sales are logistics, the restriction on staff crew to
attend duty, the closure of business premises, and
the decline in customer demand. Logistics have
a major impact on supermarkets and department
stores. Insufficient quantity of stocks, difficulties in
delivery to customers, and insufficient manpower for
order delivery are the main challenges. In the short
term, industry inventory sharing, through cross-
industry cooperation, can assist other industries
to share their inventory and alleviate procurement
problems. In the long run, the Group will plan the
supply chain strategic network to improve the
comprehensive capabilities of supply adequacy,
logistics timeliness, and digital transformation.

The group has no funding risk in the coming 12
months. The financial pressure of the Group comes
from labor cost, rental expenditures and payment to
suppliers. Plan to improve cash flow, obtain provision
of credit and preferential interest rate with existing
banks. In order to protect the business environment
of the retail industry, local governments have issued
relevant financial policies or measures. The Group
actively communicates with financial institutions,
seeks the policy privilege offered by regulatory
agencies, and obtains credit support. The Group took
measures to reduce costs, such as reducing staff
and salaries, to alleviate pressure, complying with
relevant laws and regulations, and reduce risks. New
financing, including short-term loans, can be obtained
when funds are tight to solve short-term liquidity
problems under the pandemic.
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The Group has managed working capital, including
formulating cash flow forecasts and monitoring
mechanisms, and assessed the impact of potential
cash shortages in advance. Working capital
management will be made through early negotiation
with upstream and downstream partners. On one
hand, the Group strived to shorten the collection
time of accounts receivable with downstream and
minimize the scale of receivables, and on the other
hand, strived for longer credit period with upstream
suppliers. Actively manage inventory levels, digest
inventory or minimize the inventory level to ease the
liquidity risk and avoid the financial pressure caused
by excessive inventory. Dispose of non-core assets to
improve tight cash flow. Identify the under-performing
businesses and/or non-core assets of the company.
By improving these businesses or selling these
assets, it can reduce potential losses during instable
period. As such, the Group can keep funds and
use resources to concentrate on maintaining major
business operations.

The Group has closely contacted with the landlord
as soon as possible, negotiated the closure, and
actively obtained rent reduction or deferral during
the closure period; The Group communicated with
the supplier to solve the problems and difficulties,
and strive to extend the payment cycle. The Group
communicates with the financial institution to maintain
good relationship and seek credit support. By
lowering loan interest rates, increasing credit loans
and term loans, the Group will strive for preferential
financing conditions to reduce the pressure on cash
flow related to principal and interest repayment. The
Group attends closely to relevant policies issued by
government, such as preferential policies such as
tax reduction or extension, social security refund
or deferred payment. For the Group employees,
establish an employee protection mechanism to
stabilize labour force. Under legal circumstances,
advise the staff to take holidays or cut salaries, and
work with employees to overcome difficulties.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

SEERZEES  BEHE
WEMIAR KBS - 12A
HEEERSERNOTE - &
BEAEE  REHELETHEA
tERERDBBIHE - S
8 18— 77 TE £ U R AR 4G R
W BR R URR B ) - 8 B PR (EC A
WRRRAE - R8P FEE
REBONRED - BEREE
EFKRE - B ETRE R
VEFHE  EHRREIER
% BPESEFTRNES
BN - REFZOLEENRE
BERZBRONIRR © BRIEE
ERRBETENEBM,SIE
TLEE BB EELER
HEE - RENRBERREME
MEBEEER  RSEEES
MARBEREFHER/FTA
AEEER o

SEEERDEGETHE -
BiEX HEcEXHENES
e EY  RERFEME
BAR BARERNEE
BERMNFBES  KREESE
TREERDBBERRTH
FEFEREER - SEERBRE
ETIHERME  EIMERE
RMPRPEREFTR - FI
HRA R E B R AR PR A
EHRREREN - KEREE
BT L & mERERER -
BMERRHIER « HREEK
TS EERE - BNE
EET BB TREHS -
REED - EEEBR THR
fegr - MBTBBHERHR -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

(C)

OUTLOOK

During the year, the Group has formulated a series
of measure to enhance sales turnover and to avoid
unnecessary costs, so as to achieve management target.
Moreover, the Group aimed to consolidate the existing
stores by reform and innovation. By this, improvement
in sales mix, upgrade brand name, enhance shopping
experience to provide new shopping experience to
customers.

In addition, the Group has explored new commercial retail
mode, including shopping mall, trial experience, internet
plus, and catering business. With the online resource and
shopping outlets, and the synergy of online offline capacity,
the Group is able to provide a one-stop shopping experience
to customers.

The year 2021 has both opportunity and challenge existed,
the Group has prepared to cope with all difficulties, to make
use of our core competency in the industry.

Looking ahead, China is still under the fast pace of
development stage. The macro-economic condition
has significant impact to the industry. Rapid growth in
information technology has direct and critical effect to the
industry. The directors are confident towards the future.
The mission of the Group is to become one of the major
operators in the retail industry.
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EEERE D (E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue amounted to approximately RMB428.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease
of 33.7% as compared to approximately RMB645.3 million in the
corresponding period of 2019. The drop was principally attributable
from the decrease in sales of goods of approximately RMB182.9
million, the decrease in commission from concessionaire sales
of approximately RMB45.8 million, the decrease in rental income
from investment properties of approximately RMB2.0 million,
and decrease in interest income from financing services of
approximately RMB0.9 million. However, there were increase in
rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises of approximately
RMB6.3 million and increase in rental income from subleasing of
shopping malls of approximately RMB8.1 million, which altogether
partly offset the overall decrease of income.

Sales of goods decreased by 42.3% to RMB249.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB432.8 million in the
corresponding period of 2019, principally due to the outbreak
of new pandemic in Mainland China which imposed measures
including the lockdown of cities and borders and the management
of people flow within community. This reduced the customer flow
in stores and the Group has closed three stores in response to
the pandemic during the period. Besides, the Group has adjusted
the sales floor area of direct sales to introduce more leisure
experiencing shopping mode. Sales of goods as a percentage
of the Group’s total revenue was 58.4% for the year ended 31
December 2020 as compared to 67.0% in the corresponding period
of 2019.

Commission from concessionaire sales dropped by 58.4% to
RMB32.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
RMB78.5 million in the corresponding period of 2019, mainly due
to outbreak of pandemic and closure of three stores. Commission
from concessionaire sales as a percentage of the Group’s total
revenue was 7.6% for the year ended 31 December 2020 as
compared to 12.2% for the corresponding period of 2019.

Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises up by 9.7%
to RMB70.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
RMB64.6 million for the corresponding period in 2019, mainly due
to renewal of some existing tenancy agreements and expansion
of sales floor area. Rental income as a percentage of the Group’s
total revenue was 16.6% for the year ended 31 December 2020 as
compared to 10.0% for the corresponding period of 2019.
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Rental income from sub-leasing of a shopping mall increased by
15.3% of RMB61.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
as compared with RMB52.9 million for the corresponding period
in 2019 due to (i) the commencement of business of Shenzhen
Guanlan shopping mall in the last quarter of 2019; and (ii) the
entering into mature stage of operation of the Shenzhen Bantian
shopping mall during the period. Rental income from sub-leasing of
a shopping mall as a percentage of the Group’s total revenue was
14.2% for the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to 8.2%
for the corresponding period of 2019.

Rental income from investment properties down by 20.8% to
RMB7.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB9.5
million for the corresponding period in 2019, mainly due to early
termination of two tenancies which are still pending for leasing.
Rental income from investment properties as a percentage of the
Group’s total revenue was 1.8% for the year ended 31 December
2020 as compared to 1.5% for the corresponding period of 2019.

Interest income from financing services down by 12.8% to RMB6.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB6.9 million
for the corresponding period in 2019, mainly due to the decrease
in business of the major customer which has been affected by the
pandemic. Interest income from financing services as a percentage
of the Group’s total revenue was 1.4% for the year ended 31
December 2020 as compared to 1.1% for the corresponding period
of 2019.

Purchase of and changes in inventories

Purchase of and changes in inventories amounted to RMB207.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a
decrease of 41.5% as compared with RMB354.2 million in the
corresponding period of 2019, mainly due to decrease in sales
of goods. As a percentage of sales of goods, purchase of and
changes in inventories was 82.9% for the year ended 31 December
2020 as compared with 81.8% in the same period of 2019.

Other operating income

Other operating income increased by 11.4% to RMB73.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB65.7 million
in the corresponding period in 2019, mainly due to increase in
government subsidies, net gain on disposal on termination of
lease, and rent concession from some of the stores. Nevertheless,
decrease in bank interest income and administration and
management fee income of approximately RMB2.9 million and
RMB10.1 million respectively have largely offset the overall
increase.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEERE D (E)

Staff costs

Staff costs decreased by 24.9% to RMB80.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB107.0 million in the
corresponding period of 2019, primarily due to the closure of three
stores and streamline of manpower during the year.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets decreased by 6.5% to RMB89.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB95.5 million
in the corresponding period of 2019, primarily due to the closure of
three stores during the year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment increased by 5.5%
to RMB48.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
RMB45.7 million in the corresponding period in 2019. The increase
was mainly due to enhancement of main stores in Shenzhen and the
final construction works of Shenzhen Guanlan shopping mall.

Impairment loss on loan receivables

Impairment loss on loan receivables of approximately RMB2.1
million in the year ended 31 December 2020 represented expected
credit loss on loan receivables from financing business during the
period.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses increased by approximately RMB126.1
million, from RMB5.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to RMB131.6 million in the corresponding period of 2020.
This was primarily due to forfeiture of rental deposit and written
off of leasehold improvements of approximately RMBO0.6 million
and approximately RMB36.2 million respectively upon closure
of three stores, and impairment loss on non-financial assets of
approximately RMB89.9 million during the year.

Finance costs

Finance costs, arising from the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16,
decreased by approximately RMB5.9 million, from approximately
RMB51.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB45.9 million in the corresponding period of
2020, primarily due to the closure of three stores during the year.

Finance costs arising from borrowings during the year was
approximately RMBO0.9 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

Income tax expense

Income tax expense amounted to approximately RMBO0.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease
of 63.7% from approximately RMB2.6 million in the corresponding
period of 2019, mainly due to decrease of operating profit before
tax. The effective tax rate applicable to the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were 25% for general subsidiaries
(15% for Guangxi subsidiary). In addition, pursuant to the PRC
Corporate Income Tax Law, the Group is liable to withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by subsidiaries established in China. The
applicable tax rate is 10%.

Loss attributable to Shareholders of the Company

As a result of the aforementioned, loss attributable to Shareholders
amounted to approximately RMB194.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 as compared with loss of approximately RMB52.3
million in the corresponding period of 2019.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB76.6 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB117.7 million), while the restricted bank deposits
amounted to approximately RMB2.0 million (31 December 2019:
RMB Nil). Total borrowings of the Group included bank loans
of approximately RMB66.9 million as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: RMB Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a net current liabilities
of approximately RMB71.7 million, as compared to amount of
approximately RMB72.9 million as at 31 December 2019. As at 31
December 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group was approximately
1.55 (31 December 2019: 1.06), which was calculated on the basis
of the net debt divided by total equity. Net debt was calculated as
total borrowings (including current and non-current bank loans and
lease liabilities) less total cash (including cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank deposit).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEENWE D ()

REVENUE - TURNOVER

1.4%

1.8%

16.6%

12.2%

67.0%

2020 2019

—EB-FF —TOF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARS®TT ARETT

O Sales of goods HEEm 249,865 432,804
O Commissions from concessionaire sales HEHEEMSAES 32,705 78,540
O Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises % #8542 89 S WA 70,922 64,629
® Rental income from investment properties HEYENBSIWA 7,545 9,528
® Rental income from sub-leasing of shopping malls S RSB XS WA 61,015 52,940
® Interest income from financing services KBS RRE 2T BUA 6,005 6,888
428,057 645,329
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEN WK ()

GROSS PROCEEDS Fri8FIEEEE
11% 0.5% 0%

9.3%

4.2%

34.2%

38.0%

55.2%

2020 2019
—EB-FF —TOF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTET

O Sales of goods HEEMm 249,865 432,804
O Concessionaire sales EHEHE 263,019 699,297
© Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises 2 /54X aH S KA 70,922 64,629
® Rental income from investment properties WEMENHRS KA 7,545 9,528
® Rental income from sub-leasing of shopping malls 7 A IS WX TH S KA 61,015 52,940
® Interest income from financing services AL ZF B WA 6,005 6,888

658,371 1,266,086

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER PSR EMER
INFORMATION
Risk Management [ B B 2

The activities of the Group expose to a variety of financial risks, ARE@BEKEZLEMERR @ SEIER
including foreign exchange risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and  pg - FEREK - MZERAB LR REBESERE °
liquidity risk.

(i) Foreign exchange risk (i) HINGEE LB
The Group has operation in the PRC so that the majority REBRPREQLER  ARER K
of the Group’s revenue, expenses and cash flows are HAWA - BT RBEEEHUAR
denominated in RMB. Assets and liabilities of the Group Mg MAEBABDEERAE
are mostly denominated in RMB or HK$. Any significant AN REE SR TTEHE o INEEH AR
exchange rate fluctuations of foreign currencies against RMB WPE R (TR E AR B A e A E E
may have financial impact to the Group. R TR S o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION (Continued)
Risk Management (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk

For the operation and management of retail stores and
other related businesses, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk. Most of the sales transactions
were settled in cash basis or by credit card payment (or
through online payment platforms). Credit risk on cash and
bank balances is mitigated as cash is deposited in banks of
high credit rating.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from
loan receivables from financing businesses. In respect of
loan receivables, the Group’s policy is that all customers
who wish to obtain loans from the Group are subject to
management review. The Group holds collaterals directly or
indirectly to cover its risks associated with loan receivables.

The credit and investment policies have been followed by
the Group since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises on
cash and bank balances and loan receivables. The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. The Group has not formulated a policy to
manage the interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and bank
balances and have available funding to meet its working
capital requirements. The Group’s liquidity is dependent
upon the cash received from its customers. The directors of
the Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

The Group did not use any financial instrument for hedging
purposes and the Group did not have any hedging instrument
outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION (Continued)

Employees And Remuneration Policy

For the year ended December 2020, the Group had 721 full
time employees in average in the mainland China and Hong
Kong. The Group continues to recruit high calibre individuals
and provide continuing education and training for employees to
help upgrading their skills and knowledge as well as developing
team spirit on an on-going basis. During the year, total staff costs
were approximately RMB80.4 million. Competitive remuneration
packages are structured to commensurate with reference
to individual responsibilities, qualification, experience and
performance.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no significant contingent
liabilities.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2020, capital expenditures
of the Group for property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB80.1 million (2019: approximately RMB130.3
million).

Changes of assets

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of investment
properties amounted to approximately RMB266.8 million (2019:
RMB Nil) was pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans
granted in relation to the Group’s retail business.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments
contracted, but not provided for, amounting to approximately
RMB8.6 million (2019: approximately RMB19.3 million).

Dividend policy

Under the Dividend Policy, the declaration, payment and amount
of dividends will be subject to the discretion of the Board in
accordance with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and the articles of association of the Company
and will be dependent upon the Group’s current and recent financial
performance, cash flow position, working capital requirements and
expenditure plan, restriction on distribution of dividends under the
relevant laws, rules and regulations, and any other factors that the
Board deems appropriate.

In determining any dividend amount for a particular year or
interim period, the Board will also take into account, inter alia, the
consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the Company for
the year or period, dividend distributed during the year, and the
retained profits available.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy periodically. There can
be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
for any given period or at all.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEENWE D ()

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION (Continued)

Gross
floor area
Commence (sq.m.)

operation on Storey LM
Retail stores HREERE B8 (F5K)

EEERRAEMER (&)

Average of daily Average of daily
transactions transactions
(Supermarket) (Department store)  Estimated no. of
BHYHRZHE SHFHYRSZHA visitors per day
(&) (A8) CHESELES =
FY20 FY19 FY20 FY19 FY20 FY19
2020F 2019F  2020%F 20194 2020 2019F

Xixiang i 1/10/1997 3 8,806
Shajing Wi 1/5/1999 5 20,978
Songgang N 1/1/2001 5 23,134
Longhua BEE 1/11/2001 5 24,549
Gongming N 1/9/2002 4 21,843
Shiyan a5 1/1/2007 1 5,852
Yanbu g7 1/1/2008 2 7,987
Dashatian KPP H 1/1/2009 3 8,500
Sanlian — 5/12/2009 4 9,600
Taoyuan R 30/12/2009 4 14,493
Bantian RA 1/12/2017 12,927
Guanlan BR 21/12/2019 1 1,674

1,126 3,250 8 19 1,633 4,740
917 1,737 130 312 1,329 2,971

3,715 3,096 247 594 5,387 5,349
2,509 2,281 344 825 3,639 4,504
5,172 4,702 361 866 7,499 8,073
3,983 3,983 247 593 5,775 6,635
1,696 1,642 2 4 2,460 2,242
2,330 2,330 39 93 3,378 3,514

899 1,730 = = 1,304 2,509
2,440 2,343 70 169 3,538 3,642
3,071 2,792 - = 4,453 4,048
4,773 = - = 6,921 =

Gross proceeds

Gross proceeds
per operation area
Gross proceeds per day Average value
per day BHELERE per transaction

FrERRRE BRAEREAE FresERE BRR5V19E

(RMB million)
Retail stores (AR¥BETR)
FY20 FY19

(RMB thousand) (RMB) (RMB)
(ARET) (ARET) (AR¥7T)
FY20 FY19  FY20 FY19  FY20 FY19

2020  2019F 2020  2019F 2020  2019F 2020 20194

Xixiang i 6.1 48.5 16.8 132.9 2.1 16.6 61.1 42.4
Shajing DI 12.1 77.9 33.1 2135 1.7 10.7 128.2 94.5
Songgang N 63.4 191.4 173.8 524.4 9.1 27.4 75.4 112.7
Longhua Bt 20.8 229.7 57.1 629.4 2.7 30.1 39.5 145.9
Gongming N 103.9 276.1 284.6 756.6 14.5 38.7 92.7 114.4
Shiyan RE 187.2 212.9 512.8 583.4 109.2 124.2 122.5 112.5
Yanbu g 16.1 20.9 44,0 57.3 7.4 9.6 37.9 28.5
Dashatian ANA 51.7 50.0 1415 137.1 30.3 29.4 58.4 52.8
Sanlian =B 3.9 19.5 10.7 53.3 1.7 8.5 33.4 47.6
Taoyuan B 57.9 52.2 158.7 143.0 16.2 14.6 60.8 50.7
Bantian R 36.0 45.1 98.5 123.5 36.6 13.8 53.0 34.1
Guanlan BR 31.4 - 86.1 = 28.8 = 60.8 =
Note: BsE -

The above-mentioned are unaudited figures and based on internal records.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The Group fully acknowledges its obligations to its shareholders and
investors. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
has been in strict compliance with the applicable legal and
regulatory requirements of domestic or foreign securities regulatory
authorities and has been devoted to improving the transparency of
its corporate governance and the quality of information disclosure.
The Group also attaches great importance on communication with
its shareholders and strives to ensure the timeliness, completeness
and accuracy of its information disclosure to its shareholders and
investors and to the protection the interests of investors. The Board
has strictly complied with the principles of corporate governance
and is dedicated to improving the management quality of the
Company and the standard of corporate governance continually in
order to protect and enhance value for shareholders. To this end,
the Company adopted the principles in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
with the aim of enhancing the quality of corporate governance of
the Group. Such adoption was reflected in the Company’s Articles
of Association, internal rules and regulations and the corporate
governance implementation practices.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code for the
year ended 31 December 2020 as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, except for the following deviations:

Code provision E.1.2 of the Code requires that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Zhuang Lu
Kun, the Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 4 June 2020 due to his
other business engagements.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

BOARD

The Board consists of six Directors, of whom three are executive
Directors including the chairman of the Board and three of whom
are Independent Non-executive Directors. Profiles and particulars
of the chairman of the Company and other Directors are set out
under the section headed “Biography of Directors and Senior
Management”. The term of service of each executive Director
(Independent Non-executive Director) is three years (two years).
Corresponding to the term of service, all executive Directors have
entered into service contracts, which are valid for a term of 3 years
(two years for Independent Non-executive Directors) and renewable
subject to the applicable laws. The names of Directors referred
herein are members of the fourteenth session of the Board. The
principal responsibilities of the Board include:

= to formulate overall strategies, monitor operating and
financial performance and determine proper policies to
manage risks exposures arising in the course of achieving
the Group’s strategic goals;

= to oversee and review the Company’s internal control
system;

= to be ultimately responsible for the preparation of financial
statements of the Company and to assess the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects in a balanced,
clear and comprehensible way in respect of the interim
and annual reports of the Company, other price-sensitive
announcements and disclosure of financial information
pursuant to the Listing Rules, reports submitted to the
regulatory authorities and information disclosure pursuant to
legal requirements;

- the executive Directors/management in charge of various
aspects of the operations of the Company are responsible
for the management of daily operations of the Company.
The Board is responsible for setting and handling policies,
financial and formulating affairs affecting the overall
strategy of the Company, including financial statements,
dividends policy, material changes to accounting policies,
annual operating budget, material contracts, key finance
arrangements, major investments and risk management
policies;

- the management has received clear guidelines and
instructions in respect of their authorities, especially under
all circumstances to report to the Board and to seek Board’s
approval prior to making any decision or entering into any
commitment on behalf of the Company; and
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

BOARD (Continued)

- to review the responsibilities and authorities delegated to the
executive Directors/management on a regular basis and to
ensure such arrangements are appropriate.

The members of the Board fully acknowledge their own duties
and obligations in treating all shareholders on an equal basis and
protecting the interests of all investors. The Company ensures that
documents and information relating to the businesses of the Group
are provided to Board members on a timely basis. The Independent
Non-executive Directors perform their duties in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and safeguard the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Company has
received confirmation letters from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Director in respect of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at least one-
third of the Directors shall retire by rotation at the annual general
meeting and all newly appointed Directors will have to retire at the
next annual general meeting. The retiring Directors are eligible to
offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the Directors and officers against
losses or liabilities sustained or incurred from execution of their
duties. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis or
any intervals as deemed appropriate by the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met periodically to review
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from
2 July 2014 and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing
its effectiveness and achieving a high standard of corporate
governance. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience (professional or otherwise), talents, skills, knowledge,
length of service and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate
decision of all Board appointments should be based on meritocracy
and the likely contributions that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee has reviewed such board
diversity policy in the year.

Continuous Professional Development

The individual training confirmation of each director received for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is summarized below:

Directors

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun TR 4

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong HmRLE

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong H/MERE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEBTES
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BB TAE

Mr. Sun Ju Vi BEEEE

Mr. Ai Ji N REHE
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

COMMITTEES

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are
allocated to three committees which operate under written terms of
reference. The composition of the committees up to the date of this
report is set out in the table below:

Directors

Committee

ENERES

Z88
ETEREENERRTGMTESEHA =@
EFFEHREEENZTEGHNT - HEAR
FHRARIEZEREGHORENT :

Audit Nomination
Committee

REZEE

Remuneration
Committee

FMzES

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (Chairman) — itREtss s (FEL) = = -
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong Hma it - Member X & =
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong NS = = =
Independent Non-executive BUYFHTES

Directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung RIRFE LA Chairman £ /& Member X 8 Member X 8
Mr. Sun Ju Yi BEERE Member {8  Chairman £/& Member X &
Mr. Ai Ji N REE Member X & Member f\&  Chairman Ef%
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES

The Company has established an audit committee on 30 April
2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The audit committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors who together have substantial experience in
the fields of accounting, business, legal, corporate governance and
regulatory affairs. The audit committee is responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company
as well as substantial exceptional items, internal controls and
financial reporting matters, which included a review on the audited
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020.

In addition, the audit committee also monitors the appointment of
the Company’s external independent auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee on 30
April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee comprises the three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management. In
addition, it has responsibility for reviewing and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of all the Directors and senior management.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee on 30
April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The nomination committee comprises the three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and management of Board succession.
The responsibilities of the nomination committee are to determine
the criteria for identifying candidates suitably qualified and reviewing
nominations for the appointment of Directors to the Board.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i)
review the Board composition, develop and formulate relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors; (ii)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors; and (iii) assess the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. The Company believes that greater diversity of directors
is good for corporate governance and is committed to attract and
retain candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies
from the widest possible pool of available talents; and to assess
regularly the diversity profile of the Board and, where applicable,
senior management prepared for Board positions under the
succession planning of the Company and the progress on achieving
diversity objectives, if any.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

During the year, in response to the amendment to the CG Code
effective on 1 January 2019, the Company has also adopted
the Director Nomination Policy. Such policy sets out the factors
for assessing the suitability and the potential contribution to
the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited to
the followings: character and integrity; qualifications including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;
diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age (18
years old or above), cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;
requirements of independent non-executive directors on the Board
and independence of the proposed independent non-executive
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and commitment in
respect of available time and relevant interest to discharge duties as
a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new directors and re-election
of directors at general meetings. The Nomination Committee will
review the Director Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.

Attendance record of the Directors (including attendance by proxy)
is as follows:

REZEE(H)
ESRABRNEIRERZTHESUAR
RERRE LEERENEF - REZEE

REMNEERBRR(WER) - AERET
ZHR -
E=(BRZRRKRLFESE) WL FELEN

T

Attendance/Number of meetings

HERE,/ EHRE

Audit Remuneration

Board committee
meetings meetings
g ENZES
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun SR A 36 NATER
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong shBEE 66 NATER
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong FMERE 36 NATER
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BRELE 6/6 3/3
Mr. Sun Ju Vi BEERE 5/6 2/3
Mr. Ai di YREE 6/6 3/3
COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo, is
a full time employee of the Company. During the year, he has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors hereby confirm their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. The Directors confirm that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company complied
with the relevant laws and accounting standards and that the
Company would publish the financial statements of the Company
at the appropriate time. The responsibilities of external independent
auditor to the shareholders are set out on pages 74 to 77.

Independent
board
committee
meeting
BUEE
ZEg

Nomination
committee
meetings
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committee
meetings
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS IN APPENDIX 10 OF THE LISTING RULES
The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its code of conduct for securities transactions of the
Directors of the Company. After specific enquiries to the Directors,
the Board is pleased to confirm that all the Directors have fully
complied with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules during the year under review.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of external independent auditor and reviewing their respectively
were remuneration. During the year, fees paid of approximately
RMB1,020,000 were incurred by the Company to the external
independent auditor as service charge for its audit service of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to
facilitate the Group to manage its risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee and the senior
management of the Group (“Senior Management”). The Board
determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and has the overall
responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the
overall effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts reviews of the
effectiveness of such systems as least annually, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management
Policy in providing directions in identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the Senior
Management identifies risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritizes
the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans and risk owners are then established for those risks
considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has its risk management and internal control
department to assist the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and in performing the internal audit functions for the Group
during the year. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of
internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed
for improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure
prompt remediation actions are taken.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had performed annual
review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the Group’s
ability to cope with its business transformation and changing
external environment; the scope and quality of management’s
review on risk management and internal control systems; result of
internal audit work; the extent and frequency of communication
with the Board in relation to result of risk and internal control
review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and status of compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Board considers the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems were effective during the year.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed
to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements or circulars are not false
or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading through
the omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in
a clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Group has established an organizational structure, which sets
out the relevant operating policies and procedures, duties and
authorizations.

AUTHORIZATIONS AND CONTROLS

Executive directors and senior management have been delegated
the relevant authorizations in respect of corporate strategies,
policies and contracting liabilities. Budget controls and financial
reporting systems are formulated by relevant departments and are
subject to review by directors in charge. The Group has formulated
relevant procedures to assess, review and approve significant
capital and recurrent expenses, while operating results will be
compared against the budgets and reported to executive directors
on a regular basis.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

TRAINING ON INTERNAL CONTROLS

Directors and senior managements participate in internal control
training programmes provided by the Group, which are designed
to equip them with proper and full knowledge on internal controls,
and provide guidance to them to apply internal control systems on
a consistent basis.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM MANAGEMENT

The Group has put in place a comprehensive accounting
management system, so as to provide the management with
indicators to evaluate its financial and operating performance and
financial information for reporting and disclosure purposes. Any
deviation from expectation will be analysed and explained, and
appropriate steps will be carried out to address issues where
necessary. The Group has set up appropriate internal control
procedures to ensure full, proper and timely record of accounting
and management information, which will be reviewed and
inspected on a regular basis to ensure the financial statements
are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, accounting policies of the Group and applicable laws and
regulations.

CONTINUING OPERATION

During the year, there are no uncertain events or conditions that
may materially affect the continuing operation of Group on a going
concern.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company reports to the shareholders regarding corporate
information of the Group on a timely and accurate basis. Printed
copies of the 2020 interim report have been sent to all shareholders.
The Company places great emphasis on communication with
shareholders and investors of the Company and improving the
Company’s transparency of information disclosure. As such,
designated officers are assigned to handle relations with investors
and analysts. The Company made disclosures in a faithful, true,
accurate, complete and timely manner in strict accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations, Articles of Association and Listing
Rules. At the same time, the Company places great importance in
collecting and analyzing various comments and recommendations
of analysts and investors on the Company’s operations, which
would be compiled into reports regularly and adopted selectively
in its operations. The Company has set up a website, allowing
investors to access updates on the Company’s particulars,
statutory announcements, management and recent operating
affairs. All published annual reports, interim reports, circulars and
announcements since the date of Listing are and will be included
in the “Investors Relations” section of the website. The Company
persistently adheres to its disclosure principle of honesty and
integrity and actively initiates communications with various parties.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary. The objects of the meeting must
be stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for
putting forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board of the
Company. Contact details are as follows:

Address: Suite 715, Ocean Centre, 5 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Investor Relations
Department)

Fax: 852-36203100

Email: office@szbjh.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to its
Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of
Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.szbjh.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of each member of the Company are set
out in note 34 to the financial statements. The principal activities of
the operating subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020 are operation and management of retail stores and
other related businesses and provision of financing services in the
PRC.

RESULTS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 78.

DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 29 to the financial statements
respectively.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s distributable reserves
amounted to approximately RMB242.9 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Associations of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed or cancelled any of the Company’s
listed shares.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong

(Chairman)
(Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung

Mr. Sun Ju Yi

Mr. Ai Ji

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong shall retire
from office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting by rotation.
All retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election. The re-election of Directors will be individually voted by
Shareholders.

The Board confirmed that the Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. The Company considers that
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
All of the Independent Non-executive Directors are members
of the Company’s audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGRE(E)

BIOGRAPHY OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 14 to 17.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years (two years
for Independent Non-executive Directors) unless terminated by
not less than three months’ (two months’ for Independent Non-
executive Directors) written notice of termination served by either
the Director or the Company. Each of the service contracts further
provides that during the term of the service contract and within two
years upon the termination of service, the Executive Director cannot
engage in any business which is competing or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Company.
The appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement
and rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into
any service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation)). The Company’s policies concerning
remuneration of the Executive Directors are as follows:

(i) the amount of remuneration is determined on a case by
case basis depending on the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group;

(if) non-cash benefits may be provided at the discretion of the
Board to the relevant Directors under their remuneration
package; and

(i) the Executive Directors may be granted, at the discretion

of the Board, the share option scheme adopted by the
Company, as part of their remuneration package.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save as disclosed in section under “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this report on pages 61 to 65, no Director nor
controlling shareholders had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Company. There is no contract of significance between the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or its
controlling shareholder during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which (a) were required notification to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which any such Director
and chief executives is taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were required pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by
the Company; or which (c) were required, pursuant to Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

EERBETHRAEREAQFRHA
MBZERSG - AEROREESE
MERKXE

RZEZEF+_A=1+—H E=k&s
THABRARQRSEEMER EZE(EE
RBEHFRBEGRN(TEHRBEED])E
XVER) 2 g tn - MEERHKESF - Tﬁﬁ()
*ET)‘?'M%&HHﬁ1I7M§IJ%XV*I3%7&8/‘* il
MEARRRBRTzEEIORR (BIEE
MBEBESERE djﬁ/\é!*ﬁﬁfzﬁ%&%ﬁ
1B BB GRS B SR AIEE S 2 e I0%k
B K(b)RIEEFH R E &G 35215785,
ARRBFIGEELCMAZBRIOAR © &
C)IRIE EMMAATE LB ITAZEREITE
FRGIRETRI([ZESFR] D BAME AR
AR AT SR BT ¢

RABEREE.OEBITZEER

Number of shares/Underlying Shares Held

sk, MHERHBHE
Percentage
of Issued
Personal Family Total Shares
Capacity Interest Interest Interest HE 1T
g5 PN EQiy £ HmEE ROBIHL
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (“Mr. Zhuang”) Beneficial Owner 467,985,000 67,500,000 535,485,000 51.61%
SEfEsR S A ([HEEAE D) BEREAA (Note 1)
(M$7E1)
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong Beneficial Owner 75,000,000 - 75,000,000 7.23%
NS EnlAA
Note: Mz -
1) 67,500,000 Shares are held by Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan (“Mrs. Zhuang”). Since (1) 67,500,000 =Mzt ( [FX])

KA - ANEARLEENRERS  SUREES
REBEGD - HAERGEREAF AN LR
Bt rh A S -

Mrs. Zhuang is the spouse of Mr. Zhuang, under the SFO, Mr. Zhuang is
deemed to be interested in the said Shares held by Mrs. Zhuang.

EXEEZ A ERIED
ipzifa -

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the RARE 5 KA

shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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BEEgGHRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors, chief
executive and their associates, had any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective spouses or
minor children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and so far as
was known to any Director, the following persons (other than the
interests of certain Directors disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or any
associated Corporation” above), had an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Personal/
corporate
interest
Type of interest Capacity BA/
BRES &% AGIL§
Mrs. Zhuang Personal Beneficial owner 67,500,000
X ENER ERBAA
Ms. Zhuang Xiao Yun  Personal Beneficial owner 75,000,000
NERT A AR E&BBA (Note 2)
(M&E2)
Ms. Chen Li Jun Personal Beneficial owner 75,000,000
REEZT U 55 E&BA (Note 3)
(M7E3)
Notes:
(1) 467,985,000 Shares are held by Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (“Mr. Zhuang”). Since Mr.

Zhuang is the spouse of Mrs. Zhuang, under the SFO, Mrs. Zhuang is deemed
to be interested in the said Shares held by Mr. Zhuang.

(2) Ms. Zhuang Xiao Yun is the daughter of Mr. Zhuang and Mrs. Zhuang.

) Ms. Chen Li Jun is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Zhuang and Mrs. Zhuang.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person known to the
Directors, other than the Directors, who, as at 31 December 2020,
had an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Company has entered into the continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

1. Rental income received from BJH Group
FYTEEEEBEABR AR (Shenzhen Baijiahua Group
Company Limited) (“BJH Group”) is owned as to 90% by
Mr. Zhuang and 10% by Mrs. Zhuang. BJH Group is thus an
associate of Mr. Zhuang and therefore a connected person
of the Company.

Certain commercial properties are leased to BJH Group
pursuant to a lease agreement entered into between
BJH Department Stores and BJH Group for commercial
purposes. The amount of rental income received by the BJH
Department Stores in respect of the leasing of commercial
properties was RMB2,302,534.08 for the year ended 31
December 2020, and has not exceeded the annual cap of
RMB2,302,534.08. The relevant amount which are expected
to be receivable by BJH Department Stores will not exceed
RMB2,302,534.08 for the year ending 31 December 2021.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Lease of three store premises from JH Real Estate
FINTEEFHERZEABR QA (Shenzhen Jiahua Real
Estate Development Company Limited) (“JH Real Estate”) is
owned as to 18% by Mrs. Zhuang and 82% by BJH Group
(a2 company owned as to 90% by Mr. Zhuang and 10%
as to Mrs. Zhuang). Since Mrs. Zhuang is the spouse of
Mr. Zhuang, she is an associate of Mr. Zhuang. Since Mr.
Zhuang is interested in the equity capital of JH Real Estate so
as to exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the
voting power at general meetings of JH Real Estate, JH Real
Estate is an associate of Mr. Zhuang and also a connected
person of the Company. The Group leased three stores
premises from JH Real Estate, details of which are set out as
follows:

2.

62

(i)

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 6 November
2006 (“Shiyan Store Lease Agreement”) between
JH Real Estate (as landlord) and BJH Department
Stores (as tenant), BJH Department Stores leases
the store premises situated at Level 1 of Commercial
Podium, Jiahua Hao Yuan, Western Shiyan Avenue,
Shiyan Street, Baoan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province, the PRC with a gross floor area of
approximately 5,851.50 square metres for a term of
15 years commencing from 16 November 2006 and
expiring on 15 November 2021 at a monthly rent of
RMB222,357 with triennial increase of 5%. Pursuant
to a supplemental agreement dated 6 November
2006 between JH Real Estate and BJH Department
Stores, the parties agreed that if the Company cannot
meet with the requirements in respect of continuing
connected transactions (including but not limited to
obtaining approval by independent shareholders),
BJH Department Stores has the right to terminate
the transactions under the Shiyan Store Lease
Agreement by giving written notice to JH Real Estate
without any payment or compensation. Pursuant to
the Shiyan Store Lease Agreement, the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB3,243,316 and has not exceeded the annual cap
of RMB3,250,000. The relevant amount which are
expected to be payable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed RMB2,840,000 for the year ending 31
December 2021.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

2. Lease of three store premises from JH Real Estate
(Continued)

(if)

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 23 February
2009 (“Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement”)
between JH Real Estate (as landlord) and BJH
Department Stores (as tenant), BJH Department
Stores leases the store premises situated at Level
1 of Commercial Podium, Jiahua Shuyuan Yage,
Southwestern Side of Dabao Road, Xinan Jiedao,
Baoan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC with a gross floor area of approximately
2,693.69 square metres for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1 March 2009 and expiring on 28
February 2012 for a monthly rental of RMB80,810.7.
Pursuant to the Supplementary Lease Agreement
dated 28 January 2010 between JH Real Estate and
BJH Department Stores, the monthly rental has been
reduced to RMB53,873.8 effective from 1 February
2010 to the end of the original lease. Pursuant to
a Supplementary Lease Agreement dated 30 May
2011 between JH Real Estate and BJH Department
Stores, the lease has been renewed to another
three years from 1 June 2011 to 31 May 2014 with
a monthly rental of RMB53,873.8. Pursuant to a
Lease Agreement dated 30 May 2014 between JH
Real Estate and BJH Department Stores, the lease
has been renewed to another three years from 1
June 2014 to 31 May 2017 with a monthly rental
of RMB56,567.49. Pursuant to a Lease Agreement
dated 31 May 2017 between JH Real Estate and
BJH Department Stores, the lease has been renewed
to another three years from 1 June 2017 to 31 May
2020 with a monthly rental of RMB56,567.49. The
parties to the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement
agreed that if the Company cannot meet with the
requirements in respect of continuing connected
transactions (including but not limited to obtaining
approval by independent shareholders), BJH
Department Stores has the right to terminate the
transactions under the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease
Agreement by giving written notice to JH Real Estate
without any payment or compensation. Pursuant to
the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement dated 31
May 2017, the total annual consideration paid by BJH
Department Stores was approximately RMB282,837
for the year ended 31 December 2020, and has not
exceeded the annual cap of RMB300,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Lease of three store premises from JH Real Estate
(Continued)

2.

64

(i)

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 25 August
2016 (“Bantian Lease Agreement”) between JH
Real Estate (as landlord) and Shenzhen Baijiahua
Commercial Management Limited (“BJH CM”) (as
tenant), BJH CM leases the shopping mall situated
at Level 1-6 of Jiahua Ling Hui Plaza located in the
South-west side of junction of Ji Hua Road and Wu
He West Street, Bantian Street, Longgang District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC with a
gross floor area of approximately 34,743.62 square
metres for a term of 15 years commencing from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2031 for a monthly
rental of RMB1,806,668.24 with a 5% increment on
the monthly rent every 3 years. The parties to the
Bantian Lease Agreement agreed that if the Company
cannot meet with the requirements in respect of
continuing connected transactions (including but
not limited to obtaining approval by independent
shareholders), BJH CM has the right to terminate the
transactions under the Bantian Lease Agreement by
giving written notice to JH Real Estate without any
payment or compensation. Pursuant to the Bantian
Lease Agreement, the total annual consideration paid
by BJH CM was RMB22,764,019.82, for the year
ended 31 December 2020, and has not exceeded
the annual cap of RMB22,764,019.82. The relevant
amount which are expected to be payable by BJH
CM will not exceed RMB22,764,019.82 for the year
ending 31 December 2021.

Rental income received from JH Real Estate
Certain commercial properties are leased to Jiahua Real
Estate pursuant to a lease agreement entered into between
BJH Department Stores and Jiahua Real Estate for
commercial purposes. The amount of rental income received
by the BJH Department Stores in respect of the leasing of
commercial properties was RMB766,542 for the year ended
31 December 2020, and has not exceeded the annual cap of
RMB1,000,000.00. The relevant amount which are expected
to be receivable by BJH Department Stores will not exceed
RMB1,000,000.00 for the year ending 31 December 2021.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors), the terms of the continuing connected
transactions referred to above are made in the ordinary and
usual course of our business, on an arm’s length basis and on
normal commercial terms which are no less favorable than terms
available from independent third parties. The Directors (including
the Independent Non-executive Directors) confirm that these
transactions have been conducted in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions and are of the view that the
terms and conditions of these transactions are fair and reasonable
and are in the best interests of our Company and our shareholders
as a whole.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors,
are also of the view that the Annual Caps are fair and reasonable as
far as our shareholders taken as a whole are concerned.

The Directors confirm that they have received a confirmation from
its auditor regarding the matters as stated in Chapter 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules for the continuing connected transactions.

The Directors confirm that the disclosure requirement in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules has been
complied with by the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue attributable to the
largest customer of the Group amounted to approximately 0.7% of
the total revenue for the year and the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for
the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases attributable to
the largest supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 7.2%
of the total purchases for the year and the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers and major customers noted above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined in the Main Board
Listing Rules) has an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Company or has any other conflict
of interest with the Company during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been reviewed by the audit committee
before recommending to the Board for approval.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to, the shares, they are advised to
consult an expert.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM LISTING

The net proceeds raised from the Company’s newly issued and
listed shares on the Stock Exchange in May 2007 (after deduction
of related issuance expenses) amounted to approximately
HK$265,000,000.

As of 31 December 2020, approximately HK$207,834,000 of
the proceeds so raised was used, and the unused proceeds of
approximately HK$57,166,000 was deposited with banks, the
security of which was adequately ensured.

Details of the used proceeds raised of approximately
HK$207,834,000 are set out as follows:

° as to approximately HK$29,000,000 for acquisition of the
business of a retail chain in Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$28,300,000 for opening of new
stores in Yanbu Foshan and Ronggui Foshan, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$8,750,000 for opening of a new
store in Nanning Guangxi, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$4,350,000 for opening of two new
stores in Xinan Baoan Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$10,400,000 for opening of a new
store in Luohu Shenzhen, the PRC;
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USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM LISTING

LEHARERERAE(E)

(Continued)

as to approximately HK$15,800,000 for opening of a new
store in Buji Shenzhen, the PRC;

as to approximately HK$14,300,000 for opening of another
new store in Nanning Guangxi, the PRC;

as to approximately HK$3,690,000 for opening of a new
supermarket in Bantian Longgang, Shenzhen, the PRGC;

as to approximately HK$8,800,000 for opening of a
restaurant and two beverage kiosks in Shenzhen, the PRC;

as to approximately HK$3,600,000 for opening of a theme
restaurant and a Chinese restaurant in Baoan and Longgang
Shenzhen, the PRC respectively;

as to approximately HK$9,200,000 for setting up of a
procurement centre in Shiyan Shenzhen, the PRC;

as to approximately HK$12,919,000 for the purchase of
transportation equipment;

as to approximately HK$15,000,000 for the purchase of
office equipment;

as to approximately HK$3,000,000 for the upgrade of the
MIS;

as to approximately HK$725,000 to promote the Company’s
brand image; and

as to approximately HK$40,000,000 for the refurbishments
of existing retail stores.

The unused proceeds will be used by the Company for the
purposes as set out in the section headed “Future plans and use of
proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 8 May 2007.

#115,800,0007& 7T A {ER H BIR Y1147
ERARMIEN

#114,300,000/& T MIER B EFE
BRIRIE

#93,690,000% 7T A 1E A AR B R I 3.
R AR FTET

#78,800,000% 7T A fE R A B & II| 7
R—REBEEMREIE

#73,600,0007% 7T 7 Bl B VE A B )= 3|
ELREAAR " REEEER R
PR ERE

#99,200,0007% 7T B ERA AR BL R I A
ERREEARLD

#312,919,0008 ST AIEN B E B T
A
#715,000,000 8 TRERBERAE
B

#73,000,0008 TTHEM R B &AM
S

#1725,0008 7T A EfR TH A X B H) &2
IR &

#740,000,0007%8 T AEBIF B AENT
5 -

REBZABHARBEANRBEAIEART]
BHA-—ZETLFRAANBZERERTRK
KEHEI KPS FUR MR | — P A

{

FEREERERAF

— T TFFR 67



Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGRE(E)

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out in the sections of Chairman’s Statement,
Management Discussion and Analysis and Five Years Financial
Summary on pages 6 to 13, pages 18 to 42 and pages 215 to 216
respectively of this annual report.

The Group recognises that its employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality products and services to its customers
and enhancing co-operation with its business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a clean, energy saving and
harmonious environmental conservation policy.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing
Rules will be published within three months after the publication of
the annual report of the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT
IMPACT ON THE COMPANY

The Group is continuously monitoring their compliance to ensure
that the Group abides by such laws and regulations from time
to time. Besides those general laws and regulations such as the
Company Law of the PRC, the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Group has also complied in all material respects with
all the laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business of the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board
Zhuang Lu Kun
Chairman

29 March 2021
Shenzhen, the PRC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R R ETE: e

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

EiE : +852 2218 8288
{55 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jiahua
Stores Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 213, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIZEEMERE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to notes 2.6, 4 and 14 in the consolidated financial
statements.

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties located in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) to be
approximately RMB284,600,000 as at 31 December 2020 with a
fair value loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 recorded in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of approximately
RMB7,500,000. To support management’s determination, the
Group engaged an independent external valuer as management’s
expert to perform valuation on the investment properties.

We focused on this area because in determining the fair value of
investment properties, significant estimation and judgement were
applied by the management in selecting appropriate valuation
methodology and key input parameters, including yields and future
lease income.

Our key audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment
for valuation of investment properties included:

- assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology
and reasonableness of the key input data and assumptions
adopted in the valuation;

- checking, on sample basis, the accuracy of the input data
used to supportive evidence;

= involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment; and

- evaluating the competency, capabilities and objectivity of the
management’s expert and auditor’s expert.

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets
Refer to notes 2.8, 4, 12, 13 and 15 in the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets with carrying
amounts of approximately RMB217,157,000, RMB437,402,000
and RMB5,452,000 respectively after impairment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIZEEMERE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Management is required to perform impairment assessment on
the Group’s non-financial assets including property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets where
indications of impairment are identified.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets were tested at
cash generating unit(s) (the “CGU(s)”) level, and management has
assessed the recoverable amount of these assets based on higher
of value-in-use and fair value less costs of disposal. In carrying out
the impairment assessments, significant management judgement
was used to determine the key assumptions. Based on the
assessment performed, for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
management concluded that an impairment loss of approximately
RMB42,587,000 and RMB47,278,000 was made in respect of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets,
respectively. To support management’s assessment, the Group
engaged an independent external valuer as management’s expert.

We focused on this area due to the size of the non-financial
assets and in carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
management judgement was used to determine the underlying key
assumptions.

Our key audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of non-financial assets included:

- assessing the appropriateness of the management’s
identification of CGUs based on our understanding of the
Group’s business;

- evaluating the appropriateness of the methodologies applied
in respect of the assessment of the recoverable amounts;

- challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions of the
cash flow projections including revenue growth rate during
budget period, long term growth rate and discount rate
based on our knowledge of the business and industry;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIZEEMERE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Our key audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of non-financial assets included: (Continued)

- reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budget and considering the reasonableness of this
evidence;

= involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment; and

- evaluating the competency, capabilities and objectivity of the
management’s expert and auditor’s expert.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIZEEMERE (&)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIZEEMERE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIZEEMERE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Con

tinued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIZEEMERE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number P05057

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AEEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—RHIFE

2020 2019
et et 222 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Revenue A 6(a) 428,057 645,329
Cost of inventories sold EEFERAR (207,184) (354,233)
220,873 291,096
Other operating income H A4 Z A 6(b) 73,167 65,703
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of WEYHE 2 N FE
investment properties CRiA) /% hn 14 (7,500) 800
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SR AR (250,254) (290,102)
Administrative expenses THAX (50,226) (60,063)
Other operating expenses HE g 8 (131,606) (5,455)
Impairment loss on loan receivables  EWE R MEE L (2,076) -
Finance costs BbE A AR 7 (45,905) (51,750)
Loss before income tax K FTS R R ES 18 8 (193,527) (49,771)
Income tax expense TS 9 (934) (2,571)
Loss and total comprehensive FARKABEE AEWN
income for the year and BiEREEKRERE
attributable to owners of
the Company (194,461) (52,342)
Loss per share for loss attributable FRZAXQTHEE AL
to the owners of the Company EBlECESRERE
during the year:
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EXEEE(ARED) N (18.74) (5.05)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R
As at 31 December 2020
RZFZ2F+-A=+—H

2020
—g-%f

— =

RMB’000
ARBTR

2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
ARETIT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB k&R E 12 217,157 264,614
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 13 437,402 643,753
Investment properties "EYE 14 284,600 292,100
Intangible assets B EE 15 5,452 4,970
Deposits paid, prepayments and BffEe BAFER
other receivables H b fE U 5k T8 16 27,198 31,448
Interests in an associate R—HEBE AR 2 En 17 - -
971,809 1,236,885
Current assets REBEE
Inventories and consumables FERSFER 18 26,395 28,136
Trade and loan receivables JEUE SRR E R 19 59,929 70,809
Deposits paid, prepayments and EffiEE - BARIER
other receivables H b e gkIE 16 55,311 51,955
Restricted bank deposit 2R B IRITEK 20 2,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 21 76,624 117,737
Tax recoverable AT U B 718 66 57
220,325 268,694
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FE B SRR 22 75,054 98,057
Contract liabilities aHAatE 23 20,859 20,242
Deposits received, other payables Blkize - EMEMAFIER
and accruals JEETE 24 119,606 143,651
Amount due to a director BN —RBEERIA 25 59 59
Lease liabilities HEaE 13 64,523 75,840
Borrowings BE 26 2,280 =
Provision for taxation TR IE R 9,651 3,723
292,032 341,572
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (71,707) (72,878)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERRBEE 900,102 1,164,007
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
mEMBMRIRE (E)

As at 31 December 2020
WZZE_TF+_A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-%F —T-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5E AR¥ET T ARBTFIT
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Lease liabilities HEaE 13 474,318 605,995
Borrowings BE 26 64,663 =
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIEA R 27 21,701 24,131
560,682 630,126
Net assets EEFE 339,420 533,881
EQUITY s
Share capital R% A 28 10,125 10,125
Reserves ] 29 329,295 523,756
Total equity R 339,420 533,881
Zhuang Lu Kun Zhuang Pei Zhong
GEpE #Him 8
Director Director
S EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

Retained
Statutory Property profits/
Share Share  Statutory welfare Merger  revaluation  Translation (accumulated  Dividend
capital premium reserve reserve Teserve TEServe eserve losses)  proposed Total
v g RENE
BE RMEE  GRBE  BUEE  ABGE  EREF  nsdE  (EHFRE)  BERR it
Note  RMB'0OO  RMBI0OO  RMB'0OO  RMBI0O  RMBIOO  RMBIO0  RMB'00O RMB'000 RMB'000
B ARMTT  ARBTR tTr ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARMTR
At 1 January 2019 ZE-hE-A-A 10126 262478 66,222 2,286 123713 43 (969) 321 19505 605,728
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - - ) - B2

Total comprehensive income.~ FAREUEEE

for the year - - - - - - - (52,342 - 2342
Divdend approved for 2018~ —E-N\EZEHERE 10 - - - - - - - - (19505 (19,509
Transfer to statutory reserve EfRiTRE = - 619 - - - - (619) - -

At 31 December 2019 and ey F:2
1 January 2020 t-R=+-Ak
“E-ZE-f-H 10125 252478 66,841 2,86 12,373 431 969) 190,316 - 533,881

Loss for the year EnEE = = = = > > - (194461) - (194461)

Total comprehengive income~~ FASEAEESE

for the year - - - - - - - (194461) - (194.461)
Transfer to statutory reserve EYTTRE - - 1,193 - - - - (1,193) - -
At 31 December 2020 H-g-%f

12A=1-H 10125 252478 66,034 2,86 12,313 431 (969) (5,338) - 339420
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN e~ —1

i Ny =] Iﬁﬁ/ﬂbi%
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—RHIFE

Notes

P

2020
.

RMB’000
ARBT R

2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
ARET T

Cash flows from operating activities Q& ZHHNRESRKRE

Loss before income tax BRATIS IR ES 1B (193,527) (49,771)
Adjustments for: AT SIEELAE
Interest income F B A 6(b) (1,237) (4,099)
Finance costs B A 7 45,905 51,750
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-198 @M e
B2 13 (7,199) -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BERRETE
equipment 8 48,227 45,725
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 8 89,348 95,533
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEMZE - BERZE
property, plant and equipment B (Was), &8 8 (16) 35
Decrease/(increase) in fair value of BEMERNTERD
investment properties (3% n) 14 7,500 (800)
Amortisation of intangible assets fE A 8 651 506
Impairment loss on property, Y - BEREAS
plant and equipment ZBIEEE 8 42,587 =
Impairment loss on right-of-use EREEE 2 REEE
assets 8 47,278 -
Impairment loss on loan receivables FEWE K2 REEE 2,076 -
Obsolete inventories written-off and BETEMHERTE
inventories loss B8 8 356 84
Written-off of property, plant and VI - B R A S
equipment 8 36,225 1,336
(Gain)/loss on early termination RELIERL
of lease (Wezx), /&8 13 (4,601) 1
Operating profit before working LIBESBEALL R
capital changes 113,573 140,300
Decrease in inventories and FERZFELBYL
consumables 1,385 24,356
Decrease/(increase) in trade and EUNE ZERF N ER
loan receivables B () 8,804 (9,950)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits paid, BffEe - BAFKER
prepayments and other receivables H A & YRR
(3gm),/m (3,356) 488
Decrease in trade payables BN E ZERFUR D (23,003) (73,946)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities & 4 & &0, (F ) 617 (3,377)
(Decrease)/increase in deposits BUIES - EMERNKIE
received, other payables and accruals  REEEH(HL),/
140 (24,045) 50,310
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
n'/j—\ IE%/MLE%%(%%)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

2020 2019

—EEHF —ET-nF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B = ARET T ARET T

Cash generated from operations REEIEFTEIRE 73,975 128,181
Interest received Euﬁlﬂ 1,237 4,099
Income tax refunded/(paid) 5&/(5%&)}5)? 5B 2,555 (10,666)
Net cash from operating activities AR RSP 2 I S HER 77,767 121,614

Cash flows from investing activities REFZENRERE
Decrease/(increase) in deposits paid B 1k % RIB 5KIE

and prepayments A () 3,407 (12,006)
Purchase of property, plant and BAMZE - BENEE

equipment (79,266) (126,443)
Purchase of intangible assets BABLEE (1,133) (4,171)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - J“ﬁ&)%&%&ﬁ

plant and equipment Fri8 3% 543 619
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits A =1&A 1& FIE 2 SRITIE 3K

maturing over three months S (3 h0) 20,000 (10,000)
Increase in restricted bank deposit PR HIERTTE LN (2,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities & & B FTFHE < F5E (58,449) (162,001)

Cash flows from financing activities BEFEMNRETE

Proceeds from borrowings EERTS 58 35 67,513 =
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 35 (570) -
Repayment of principal portion of BEHEBE2AEHD

lease liabilities 35 (61,469) (61,517)
Repayment of interest portion of BREEREZNEHS

lease liabilities 85 (45,023) (51,750)
Dividends paid to owners of the ENARBHEE ARKE

Company - (19,505)
Interest paid BERFE 35 (882) -
Net cash used in financing activities g1 & & BN AT FHE < FEE (40,431) (132,772)
Net decrease in cash and RERASEBYWRL FE

cash equivalents (21,113) (163,159)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—HBWEEE

at 1 January BEEEY 97,737 260,896
Cash and cash equivalents R+-ZA=+—HWRER

at 31 December HEZEEBY 21 76,624 97,737
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M Hm R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-TF+-_A=1+—RALEFE

84

GENERAL INFORMATION

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its registered
office and its principal place of business are located at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and Level 4, Jiahua
Ming Yuan, 2146 Xinhu Road, Baoan Central District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) respectively. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. “The Group” comprises the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 29 March 2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements on pages 70 to 213
have been prepared in accordance with all
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
MG R RMI 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—RALEFE

VAN
=]

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that
have been used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new
or amended HKFRS and the impacts on the
consolidated financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 3.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation
of the consolidated financial statements.
Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for investment properties which are
stated at fair values. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies
below.

2.
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2.1
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(b)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic
and the lockdown measures imposed by
PRC government in the PRC to contain
the spreading of COVID-19 pandemic had
negatively impacted the results of the Group
during the reporting period and the liquidity
position. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group has incurred a loss of
approximately RMB194,461,000 and at the
end of the reporting period, its current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB71,707,000. These conditions may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The management
of the Group has prepared a cash flow
projection covering a period of 12 months
from the date of the consolidated financial
statements. The directors of the Company
(“the Directors”), after making due enquires
and considering the management’s projection
and taking account of the following, believe
that there will be sufficient financial resources
to continue its operations and to meet its
financial obligation as and when they fall due
within the next 12 months from the date of the
consolidated financial statements:

(i) At the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the
unutilised bank facility available for
drawdown amounted to approximately
RMB82,487,000; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE TSR AR MIEE (1)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—RALEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

(c)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (Continued)

(if) the management of the Group has
been endeavouring to improve the
Group’s operating results and cash
flows through various means, such as,
transforming the business model by
shifting the focus on sales of goods
from traditional supermarkets to sub-
leasing business.

Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements
of each of the group entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB?”), which is the Company’s presentation
and functional currency. All values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meets the definition of a
business and control is transferred to the Group. In
determining whether a particular set of activities and
assets is a business, the Group assesses whether
the set of assets and activities acquired includes, at
a minimum, an input and substantive processes and
whether the acquired set has the ability to produce
outputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to owners
of the Company. Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control of the subsidiary
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amount of the Group’s interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
gain or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (ii) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (iii)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint
control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in
excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only
to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor’'s share in the associate’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount of
the associate. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in an
associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of
the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so
as to write off their cost or valuation net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
useful lives are as follows:
Leasehold buildings 54 years or
over the terms of
land use rights,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 5to 10 years or
over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles and tools 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%

equipment

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not held for sale in the ordinary course of business,
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Investment properties
are measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property, calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is included in profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

(i) Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

The amortisation expense is recognised in
profit or loss and included in administrative
expenses. The useful lives and amortisation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. Amortisation is provided on a straight-
line basis over their useful lives as follows:

Computer software 5-10 years
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

2.7

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only
when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it
relates. All other expenditure is recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic benefits
are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is
any indication that they may be impaired.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment by
comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts (see note 2.8).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease to the extent of its revaluation
surplus.

2.

{

2.7
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

FEREERERAF

TESHTHEBEER)

BREE(E)

HE&RX
HRFAXEREIEME
BT E B E R AR REH
MR T ABARL T
BHEMASXNELRE
B MR

B EAERNHERER
HERARHEZEER
P& RARRAE T H a2
By 4% LEFERR o A% LEERR
BRVEEELZ =R
EBERZHERSIFRER
HEERAERZER
FTE - WRRILERE
ERREBRA TR

o

B EERE
mEMRIETR  ABR
AERAFHzEREE
ARERE - BI&EITR
BRI - MR HRER
ZEVEESTETR
BRI THRZSER
BELELE BRI
BERR - BEEENE
BB EHBREE R AT
[B] & 583 778 B B &
(E2HWE2.8) -

Mt EEZ I KE S
BMAONEKREE - Q&%
BEEZFRHEE/RD
EHAHEIEEE -

WMEEBESRERR
X - RIFEREER
EfERBIK  HEIiE
AT REBBRRRR

EHREEAEMHA
# -
— T -TFFR 95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Mg IR R M =R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-TF+-_A=1+—RALEFE

AN
:énVFD

2.

96

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of assets (other than
financial assets) to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use)
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash-
generating unit, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the Company/group
entities in currencies other than the currency of
the primary economic environment in which it/they
operate(s) are recorded at the rates ruling when
the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling
at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
(“OCI"), in which case, the exchange differences are
also recognised in OCI.
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2.

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in OCI
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in
profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term monetary
items forming part of the Group’s net investment in
the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to
OCI and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as
part of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHTHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Revenue recognition 210 AR

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

= does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or
service.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

100

2.10 Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method.

For contracts where the period between the payment
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Sale of goods

The Group sells goods directly to retail
customers within retail stores. Revenue
recognised from sale of goods is recognised at
a point in time when the product is transferred
to the customers. There is generally only
one performance obligation. Payment of
the transaction price is due immediately
when the customers purchase the good.
Discounts, coupons and other cash incentive
to customers are accounted for as reduction of
the transactions prices.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Sale of goods (Continued)

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers
from the sale of goods provides customers a
right of return. These rights of return allow the
returned goods to be refund in cash. The right
of return gives rise to variable consideration.
The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until
the associated uncertainty is subsequently
resolved. The application of the constraint on
variable consideration increases the amount
of revenue that will be deferred. In addition, a
refund liability and a right to recover returned
goods assets are recognised.

Commissions from concessionaire sales
The Group recognises commission income
over time which it is entitled and is based
on certain percentage of sales made by
the concessionaires in accordance with the
terms of contracts. When they fail to meet the
minimum guarantee income in accordance
with the terms of certain contracts, the
minimum guarantee amount is recognised
as income as it is the amount that the Group
has the right to receive. Invoices are usually
payable from 30 to 90 days.
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102

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Customer loyalty programme and prepaid
gift cards

The Group operates a customer loyalty
programme where retail customers
accumulate points for purchases made which
entitle them to redeem award points for
discounts in future purchase. The transaction
price of award points is allocated to the
product and the award points on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Revenue from
the award points and prepaid gift cards is
recognised when the award points and prepaid
gift cards are redeemed. Contract liabilities are
recognised until the award points and prepaid
gift cards are redeemed. Contract liabilities in
relation to customer loyalty programme and
prepaid gift cards were included in contract
liabilities.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable
consideration, the Group recognises the
amount of consideration to which it is entitled
using the most likely amount, which better
predicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group is entitled. The amount
of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is
highly probable that such an inclusion will not
result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with
the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent). The Group
is a principal if it controls the specified goods
or service before that goods or service is
transferred to a customer. The Group is an
agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified goods or
service by another party. In this case, the
Group does not control the specified goods
or service provided by another party before
that goods or service is transferred to the
customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it
recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other

party.

The Group acts as an agent for concessionaire
sales as the Group does not control
the specified goods provided by the
concessionaires before the goods transferred
to a customer.

Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is
recognised in accordance with note 2.11.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Administration and management fee
income

The Group provides administration and
management service to operators of
concessionaire counters and tenants. The
administration and management fee income is
recognised overtime when the Group transfers
the control of services over time based on
the actual service provided to the end of the
reporting period as a proportion of the total
services to be provided, as the operators of
concessionaire counters and tenants receive
and consume the benefits simultaneously.
Invoices are usually receivable from 30 to 90
days.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis
on the principal outstanding at the applicable
interest rate.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents rights to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligations to transfer services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration, (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

2.11

(i)

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity
to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for
which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for both of the
choices. The lease payments associated with
those leases have been expensed on straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is initially recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

2.11

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and
buildings that are held for rental or capital
appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and are
carried at fair value. The Group accounts for
leasehold buildings which is held for own use
under HKAS 16 and are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation. The Group also has
leased a number of properties under tenancy
agreements which the Group exercises its
judgement and determines that it is a separate
class of asset from the leasehold buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the
right-of-use assets arising from the properties
under tenancy agreements are carried at
depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

2.11

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term
that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease
payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by:
(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or to reflect revised in-substance
fixed lease payments.
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108

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

2.11

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the
contractual terms of a lease with the lessor,
if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount
commensurate with the standalone price
for the additional rights-of-use obtained,
the modification is accounted for as a
separate lease, in all other cases, where
the renegotiated increases the scope of the
lease (whether that is an extension to the
lease term, or one or more additional assets
being leased), the lease liability is remeasured
using the discount rate applicable on the
modification date, with the right-of-use asset
being adjusted by the same amount. With the
exception to which the practical expedient
for COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
applies (see note 3(a)), if the renegotiation
results in a decrease in the scope of the lease,
both the carrying amount of the lease liability
and right-of-use asset are reduced by the
same proportion to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability
is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying
amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated
payments over the renegotiated term, with the
modified lease payments discounted at the
rate applicable on the modification date and
the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same
amount.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

2.11

(ii)

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the leases transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
it accounts for the head lease and the sub-
lease as two separate leases. The sub-lease
is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration
for a lease that was not part of the original
terms and conditions of the lease are
accounted for as lease modifications. The
Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, recognising
the remaining lease payments as income
on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease
term.
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110

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

212

213

Inventories and consumables

Inventories comprise merchandise for resale and
are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of merchandise, representing the purchase
cost, is calculated on the first-in first-out basis. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make to sale.

Consumables for own consumption are stated at
cost. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowable for income tax purposes and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid
or received that reflects any uncertainty related to
income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Except for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes
and initial recognition of assets and liabilities that
are not part of the business combination which
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised, provided that the deductible temporary
differences are not arisen from initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction other than in
a business combination that affects neither taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rate appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period, and reflects any uncertainty related
to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income tax levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the assets to be recovered.
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112

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

213

2.14

Income taxes (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the
reporting date. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in OCI in which
case the taxes are also recognised in OCI or when
they relate to items recognised directly in equity in
which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand, demand deposits with banks and short
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within 3 months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at bank which are not
restricted as to use.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

2.

TESHHEBEE)

2.13

Fri&%i (%)
HNFEEEH A ER AR
EEEAARETHN—RMBETEM
5 B EGISMER - BIRE
MERRIBB LG ERIF 057
[REYE IMZ R AT -
PRIEZRE R HER - TRIZE
BREMFEZEERALE - T
PAHEZ SR E MR ATER
PR URZERHEEHZ
REEE - WIKEWEA T
RITELRE—EHERAM
A MaxEEEANENE
bEE B R OB REZ D X AT
BIRMBAE LB (M
TRBBHE)R - ZREM
R

FIEm IR B AER - BRIE
PS5 S 00 H At 2 T K &8 o
REIEE BRAAERR - ME
BB - RBATREMEE
Wes NRER - HBRIFRFMH
FENESERERNERR
B MELBRT  ZFHRA
TREZ NS ARER -

REeERBATEEY

AR RERME - RE
RIREFEY T B RIRT
R~ RIT/ABFFARAIEE
REZRSENHERT - EE
ZHER KB BHRBE(—
BRBAR=EARIH)
ke ERBRE (R
BR=FEAHNAT) -

ERBMBIAEAME - RE
RIREFEY I ER B
B FRNMRITRE °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
MG R RMI 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE-Z-TF+-_A=+—RHIEE

AN
?.‘vT\l:l

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. Trade
receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”): Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are measured at
FVTOCI. Debt investments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest
rate method, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCIl. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified
to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include
financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition
at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified
at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, as described
above, debt instruments may be designated
at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in
OCI. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments at
FVTOCI are measured at fair value. Dividend
income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.
All other equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12-months
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

2.

TESHHEBEE)

215 €@ T A (E)

(i)

(ii)

TREE(R)
RATA

ML ERLIEFHEREE
MR E R - ARH

AEFEN A E
fo 2R ST 25 E
NP EBENERED -
R ZFEERTBEKE
EVERMIEL - BAF
Bt AR KRS
A E B R FER
E - BREMAEREF
R v BRI B AR
FER IR B WP D BB A
7R o Hoh U s N 518
RE M2 W R
TrEEHLOBER
@ TAEHRMRATA
DB ATFEF AR
m o BEFAFEER K
BEMBWMANESE
BT R o

SREE ZRERE
RERBERE SRR
RIZBERAFTEZ S
MEERRBHEEE
B([FEBEERE]KN
BB G - TEHEEE
B TNHEAR—IgEE
e ()t =@EAEH
FEEE  EAR®E
HEAs+ @A RNEAE
KB TEE KN B HE M
FEHEEEE  RQ)ZE
HITEHREE &R - Ty
REETEEAFHA
FTE Al BE BB E
EMBEHEEERE - R®
st TEERE B S BREAT
ERENRREMALRE
EmHEERBRONRE
A XA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
MG R RMI 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—RALEFE

AN
?.‘vT\l:l

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Measurements of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on lifetime ECLs except when there
has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the
allowance will be based 12-month ECLs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating
ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed
at the reporting date with that assessed at
the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (i) significant financial
difficulty of the debtor; (i) a breach of contract,
such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; (iii) it is probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; (iv) significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtors; or (v) the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset. For
non credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value
and financial liabilities at amortised cost are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, other payables and accruals,
amount due to a director, borrowings and
lease liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS
9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

2.16 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting

date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

2.

EEREZERERAF

TESHTHEBEER)

215 €@ T A (E)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BRI
BB FIRAAGESR
BERS A ERHK
2%+ AR
WER S R RIS
BRI - BIEFIRA
ReMAEREELE
A RS (R E
EERMA - BT
H R IR M AT B %
ZHIE o

KRATHA
HARBEITHRAT
iz B WA S FRF
HERBEITRAAR °

RIERER
AEBERGREE
ERMAKRRASRE
BRERER - @
BECHEE HZES
RBEE MG REER
FORHT AR I HERER
R RITERERE
o

MR BEREHNEER
TR - aEsHs R
B Alg R RS R
BE-

2.16 EERF
EHEESRERN
EEZENFERNEERZSH

B

THBEHREARS

LERESMERREMZEEH
FROEETEEELRE -

RBRERERSFIEREA FHEY
RIZER AR 77 T HERR -

— T -TFFR 121



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FE BRI (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-TF+-_A=1+—RALEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

122

POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC
government, the Group participates in a local
municipal government retirement benefit scheme
(the “Retirement Scheme”), whereby the subsidiaries
of the Company in the PRC are required to
contribute certain percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees to the Retirement Scheme to
fund their retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the
PRC. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the Retirement Scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the Retirement Scheme.
Contributions under the Retirement Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as incurred. There are no
provisions under the Retirement Scheme whereby
forfeited contributions may be used to reduce future
contributions.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all employees in Hong Kong
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
(including property, plant and equipment) are
recognised as deferred income in the statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of
the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable and are recognised as other
revenue, rather than reducing the related expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

219

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Related parties
A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(ii)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i

(ii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(viii A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

(vii) ~ The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(if) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(iif) dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components
and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors are determined following the Group’s major
operations.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS

(a)

Adoption of new/amended HKFRS - effective
1 January 2020

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants has issued a number of new or
amended HKFRS that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:
Amendments to Definition of a Business
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

None of these new or amended HKFRS has a material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior period. The Group has not
early applied any new or amended HKFRS that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period except
for the amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions. Impact on the applications of
these amended HKFRS are summarised below.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/amended HKFRS - effective
1 January 2020 (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical
expedient to lessees in accounting for rent
concessions arising as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic, by including an additional practical
expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits entities to elect
not to account for rent concessions as modifications.
The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following
criteria are satisfied:

(i) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

(if) the reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

(iif) there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/amended HKFRS - effective
1 January 2020 (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions (Continued)

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may
be accounted for in accordance with this practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not need
to assess whether the rent concession meets the
definition of lease modification. Lessees shall apply
other requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for the
rent concession.

Accounting for rent concessions as lease
modifications would have resulted in the Group
remeasuring the lease liability to reflect the revised
consideration using a revised discount rate, with the
effect of the change in the lease liability recorded
against the right-of-use asset. By applying the
practical expedient, the Group is not required to
determine a revised discount rate and the effect of
the change in the lease liability is reflected in profit or
loss in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the rent concession occurs.

The Group has elected to utilise the practical
expedient for all rent concessions that meet
the criteria. In accordance with the transitional
provisions, the Group has applied the amendment
retrospectively, and has not restated prior period
figure. As the rent concessions have arisen during
the current financial period, there is no retrospective
adjustment to opening balance of retained earnings
at 1 January 2020 on initial application of the
amendment.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS
(Continued)
(o) New/amended HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/amended HKFRS, potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to
HKAS 1
Amendments to
HK Interpretation 5
(2020)

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37
HKFRS 17
Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-20202

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current*

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause*

Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fuffiling a Contract?

Insurance Contracts*

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
- Phase 2'
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS
(Continued)

(b)

New/amended HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

8 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023
& The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the

sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods
beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and HK
Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period, specify that classification is unaffected by
expectations about whether an entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of a liability and explain that
rights are in existence if covenants are complied with
at the end of the reporting period. The amendments
also introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make
clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets
or services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of
the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020.
The revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings
in the interpretation to align with the Amendments
to HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion and do not
change the existing requirements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS
(Continued)

(b)

New/amended HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts -
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’
a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly
to the contracts. Costs that relate directly to a
contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (e.g. the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract).

HKFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes
HKFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. The standard outlines
a ‘General Model’, which is modified for insurance
contracts with direct participation features, described
as the ‘Variable Fee Approach’. The General Model
is simplified if certain criteria are met by measuring
the liability for remaining coverage using the Premium
Allocation Approach.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS
(Continued)

(b)

New/amended HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result
of past events. For a levy that would be within the
scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the obligating
event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has
occurred by the acquisition date. The amendments
also add an explicit statement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a
business combination.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where
there is a sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. When
the transaction with an associate or joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method, any
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of
a subsidiary that does not contain a business are
recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or
joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting
from the remeasurement of retained interest in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a
joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS
(Continued)

(b)

New/amended HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the
old interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark rate as a result of the interest rate
benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The amendments
complement those issued in November 2019 and
relate to (a) changes to contractual cash flows in
which an entity will not have to derecognise or
adjust the carrying amount of financial instruments
for changes required by the Reform, but will
instead update the effective interest rate to reflect
the change to the alternative benchmark rate; (b)
hedge accounting in which an entity will not have
to discontinue its hedge accounting solely because
it makes changes required by the Reform, if the
hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and
(c) disclosures in which an entity will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from
the Reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

° HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit
a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition
to HKFRSs.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

3. RMFINEETERBUHBR
HER ()

(b)

E 78 i 1B & R & KAV #
R RERT BB BRE
28I (/&)
BBETHEREI9T - FiEY
BHRELEAEAS - BBYH
EERETR  BRYER
ERAFERERMBRE
ZRIFE165% (BRI A) —FIRE
R E - F2f
L FER] AR I R B
B(IRE]DMEHQAAZER
EEN KRR E RN RELER A
EFEMBHRENEE - %5
BAAE_T-NF+— %
REVERT AMREARRK - 2 K (a)
BHNHRERED  ERESRH
PR SRE B AR LEFERR
FABCRTEANRESHE
2 B BERA XA RRE A
EENKWEE : (0) L&
% MR A B S & &t
R - BREEAMEENEMR
ZRMBB MK LH S
% ROBEER - BRAR
T2 BRI A DR 5 P i 2R A R R\ B B
BRI Rl E R [ 2 R A
BN R HBIE

BEVBREEN _T-N\F
ECE_EERYCFENE

FENEHZHEAETTE
R B

. BREV G IMELERIF
BT ERRAB MG
WERER | AFFER
BRI @ EERIF
5% 52 D16(a) EX RO B /& 2
AIREBESARBEE
BREMBREED
BE - EASAR®RSE
MERTERFTELE
B e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE TSR AR MIEE (1)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRS
(Continued)

(b)

New/amended HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
(Continued)

° HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify
the fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or the
lender on other’s behalf are included.

° HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements
by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise because of how
lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

° HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows
when measuring the fair value of a biological
asset using a present value technique.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Given COVID-19 pandemic has created and may
continue to create significant uncertainty in macroeconomic
conditions, actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

There is significant ongoing uncertainty surrounding the
COVID-19 pandemic and the extent and duration of impacts
that it may have on operations of the Group. There is
heightened potential for future credit losses on receivables,
impairments of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets. In the current environment,
assumptions about results of operation of the Group and
customer creditworthiness have greater variability than
normal, which could in the future significantly affect the
valuation of the Group’s assets, both financial and non-
financial. The Group’s cash flow projections for certain
assets are based on a longer time horizon due to the long-
term nature of its underlying contracts, allowing time for
a recovery of such assets. As an understanding of the
long-term impacts of COVID-19 pandemic on the Group’s
customers and business develops, there is heightened
potential for changes in these views over the remainder of
2021.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

EEg A RAFITRER
ENEERIR

RERBAEENSFERE EFA
HARBEREMRRETNEERER
RIBREEIED HE - Hat B -
A REMBRANBERR K E
R AEEENEXRAKE - &R
COVID-19%& 18 B & & 7] g 4 B ¥ 7
BEBEARNIEREATEEE - B
HERA AR EEET -

Er AR RR AR ERA - MEat
EEtERTER B ERETNER -
AR @ ER MR ER - siHE
RIHIRE MARRAMBETE - AIE
1B AT # HR R N R SR EAFR R AR

BRCOVID-19& 1B R H AT ge A&
BHREELFENIZE RFFERE
FERKITHEEME - BKRFIE - B
% BEREERE  EREEEN
REVEERKRELEREBEBROAE
MEIEON - EERAIRET - HABA
SENKREXEURZTPEENRR
B—RIEATEEAE - EAREA
EEUAKENESRNEIFEREERN
HEBEAFE - ENHBAONEK
HME  AEEHETEENRSR
ERADERRRESHEBEMIEL -
YEBEBKREZEFEENRMR B2
f# - COVID-19RIFEHAKEN T
FPREBERELREZE  #%F
H_T——FHRTEENBEHRTE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE TSR AR MIEE (1)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE-Z-TF+-_A=+—RHIEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from
those involving estimates (see below), that the
Directors have made in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

Going concern consideration

The assessment of the going concern assumption
involves making a judgement by the Directors, at a
particular point of the time, about the future outcome
of events or conditions which are inherently uncertain.
The Directors consider that the Group has the
capability to continue as a going concern and the
going concern assumption is set out in note 2.1(b).

Revenue recognition

Application of various accounting principles related to
the measurement and recognition of revenue requires
the Group to make judgements and estimates.
Specifically, significant judgments include determining
whether the Group is acting as the principal in a
transaction. The Group is a principal in a transaction
if the Group obtains control of the products sold
or services provided before they are transferred to
customers. If control is unclear, when the Group
is primarily obligated in a transaction, is subject to
inventory risk, has latitude in establishing prices and
selecting suppliers, or has several but not all of these
indicators, the Group records revenues on a gross
basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net amount
earned as commissions from products sold.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the Directors
have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in
relation to the Group’s investment properties has
been measured based on the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts entirely through use.

Determination of lease term

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether or not to exercise
the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination the lease. After the commencement date,
the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise or
not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.
The renewal options for leases of properties for own
use are not included as part of the lease term as these
are not reasonably certain to be exercised.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of each reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Group
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements
were prepared. However, existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value-in-use, the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the assets belongs.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rates in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.
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REUEHRRMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HIIFE

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Loss allowance for receivables
Management estimates the amount of loss allowance
for ECLs on financial assets at amortised cost
based on the credit risk of the respective financial
instrument. The loss allowance amount is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows with the consideration of expected future
credit loss of the respective financial instrument.
The assessment of the credit risk of the respective
financial instrument involves high degrees of
estimation and uncertainty about future economic
conditions which have an adverse effect on debtors’
business, debtors’ creditworthiness, the payment
delinquency or default in interest or principal
payments. When the actual future cash flows are less
than expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment
loss may arise, accordingly. The economic downturn
and uncertainties that have arisen as a result of
COVID-19 pandemic have made these estimates
more judgemental, which the Group has taken into
account in its determination of applicable expected
credit losses. Further information on the impairment
assessment on financial assets are provided in note
36(iii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE TSR AR MIEE (1)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE-Z-TF+-_A=+—RHIEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Fair value measurement
The Group measures investment properties at
fair value. Certain assets included in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements also require
disclosure of fair value. Significant estimation and
judgement are required to determine the fair value.

The fair value measurement utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

° Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not

derived from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has
a significant effect on the fair value measurement
of the item. Transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur.

For more information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the investment properties, please
refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

On adoption of HKFRS 8 Operating Segments, the Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components
and review of these components’ performance. There are
two operating segments in the internal reporting to the
executive directors, which are operation and management
of retail stores and other related businesses and provision of
financing services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-ZE+-_A=+—RHILEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2EEBR(E)

Operation and
management of

retail stores and Provision of
other related financing
businesses services Consolidated
REeREBRTERER Rt
Rt %S SRRE Y
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTR ARET T
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-E-EF
+-A=t-HLEE
Revenue from external customers HBERKA 422,052 6,005 428,057
Inter-segment revenue GEELON = = -
Reportable segment revenue A2F2ERE 422,052 6,005 428,057
Revenue recognition WATER
Timing of revenue recognition REBBMBREERE155
under HKFRS15 TR A 2 B
- At a point in time - RERBL 249,865 - 249,865
- Over time - FERAEY 32,705 - 32,705
From other sources REEMIR 139,482 6,005 145,487
422,052 6,005 428,057
Segment results PEEE (191,980) 3,073 (188,907)
Other unallocated corporate income  E AR AT LM 49
Other unallocated corporate expenses  Eft AN E D EHS (4,669)
Loss before income tax BREGHATER (193,527
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=
)

BAREER AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5. 2¥ER(E)

Operation and
management of

retail stores and Provision of
other related financing
businesses services Consolidated
KEREETEER Rt
Hit R %R SRRE &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z_Ef
+ZA=t+-HLEE
Other segment information HpEEH
Interest income FEWA (1,171) (66) (1,237)
Additions to non-current assets ErRBBENE (RIBIEN)

(other than financial instruments) 120,860 - 120,860
Amortisation of intangible assets EREERE 553 98 651
Depreciation of right-of-use assets B EFRRAERE 89,348 - 89,348
Depreciation of property, W% BEREERE

plant and equipment 48,212 15 48,227
Gain on disposal of property, HENE  BERZESR

plant and equipment (16) - (16)
Written-off of property, ER G

plant and equipment 36,225 - 36,225
Obsolete inventories written-off BREFEME 143 - 143
Inventories loss FEER 213 = 213
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets & REEERERX 47,278 - 47,278
Impairment loss on property, W% BEREEREERL

plant and equipment 42,587 - 42,587
Impairment loss on loan receivables I EFUR(EIE% - 2,076 2,076
Decrease in fair value of BENEATERD

investment properties 7,500 - 7,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—RHIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2EEBR(E)

Operation and
management of

retail stores and Provision of

other related financing
businesses services Consolidated

REeREBRTERER Rt
Rt %S SRRE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTR ARET T

At 31 December 2020 R-E-EF4+-F=+-H

Reportable segment assets ERHEEE 1,103,466 46,136 1,149,602
Tax recoverable U EIFE 66
Other unallocated corporate assets ~ Hi AR DB REEE 42,466
Total assets BEE 1,192,134
Reportable segment liabilities NEERE 819,121 65 819,186
Provision for taxation HIERE 9,651
Deferred tax liabilities ELRIEARG 21,701
Other unallocated corporate liabilites HM AN EAEEE 2,176
Total liabilities BERE 852,714
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-_ZE+-A=+—HILEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2EBR(E)

Operation and
management of

retail stores and Provision of
other related financing
businesses Services Consolidated
REREBTEER s
Hi A E% SRR =l
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTL ARETT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E-—NE
TZRA=+-ALEE
Revenue from external customers INERE B A 638,441 6,888 645,329
Inter-segment revenue GELON = - -
Reportable segment revenue DES:Vik-U6: 638,441 6,888 645,329
Revenue recognition BARBR
Timing of revenue recognition under  1REEBH B RE EBIF 155
HKFRS15 RN 2 B
- At a point in time —REEFH 432,804 - 432,804
- Over time —FERs R 78,540 - 78,540
From other sources REHMRR 127,097 6,888 133,985
638,441 6,888 645,329
Segment results PEEE (49,861) 6,166 (43,695)
Other unallocated corporate income  HM R ERELA 4
Other unallocated corporate expenses  EM AP E RS (6,080)
Loss before income tax BREEHAIEE (49,771)
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HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—RHIFE

5.

146

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Other segment information
Interest income
Additions to non-current assets
(other than financial instruments)
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Written-off of property,
plant and equipment
Obsolete inventories written-off
Increase in fair value of
investment properties

HECZ2-hE
TZAZ+-RLFE

At BEH

MBKA

FRBEERE (HRHBFTAN)
B AESH

EREEENE

nE BELRERE
HENE - BERREBE
VER B €

REFEMH
REMEATFEEM

5. 2¥ER(E)

Operation and
management of
retail stores and

other related
businesses
LERERTEER
Hi A%
RMB’000

ARE

(4,079)
366,451
425
95,533
45,702
35

1,336
84

(800)

Provision of
financing
services
heft
SRR
RMB’000
ARETT

Consolidated

RMB’000
ARETTT

(4,095)
366,451
506
95,533
45725
35

1,336
84

(800)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. &

Operation and
management of
retail stores and

other related
businesses
BERERTEER
HiREA%%
RMB’000
ARET

BER (&)

Provision of
financing
services
peft
SRR
RMB’000
ARETT

At 31 December 2019

R=Z-hE+-A=t-H

Consolidated

A6
RMB'000
ARBFT

Reportable segment assets ERNBEE 1,451,705 50,516 1,502,221
Tax recoverable R EFE 57
Other unallocated corporate assets ~ HA AR LEE 3,301
Total assets BEE 1,505,579
Reportable segment liabilities NEEE 941,651 66 941,717
Provision for taxation HIBEE 3,723
Deferred tax liabilities REREEE 24,131
Other unallocated corporate liabilities  E ik HE LA & 2,127
Total liabilities HEE 971,698
The PRC is the country of domicile of the Group. The country AREEZ7FMERATE - TMEXK

of domicile is determined by referring to the country which
the Group regards as its home country, has the majority of
operations and centre of management.

No separate analysis of segment information by geographical
segment is presented as the Group’s revenue and non-
current assets, are principally attributable to a single
geographical region, which is the PRC.

Information about a major customer

There was no single customer that contributed to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2020.

TEARSEREEEMZER - AE
REBHEBREEH O

HRASEZ WmRIFRDEELTE

KEE—R(AFPE)  BILES
Y EINRWES BN 2 0 BERD

A o

BEREEEFHNER
REBEE-_T-—NER-_ZT_TF+=
A=+—HLEE BMEE—FFH
REBUZE10% A L o
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BE-_Z-ZE+-_A=+—RHILEE

6. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6.

(a)

Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in operation and
management of retail stores and other related
businesses and provision of financing services.
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover,
represents invoiced value of goods sold, net of
value added tax and after allowances for returns and
discounts, commissions from concessionaire sales,
rental income and interest income from financing
services. Revenue recognised during the year is as
follows:

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers within the
scope of HKFRS 15:

AZBEFERBA

WA R H A A& WA

(@)

BERVBHREERE155KEE

WA

AEETEXRBEREERERE
TEE R E MR KR
SRRY - WA(TTAEREE
ZEXRE)  BELERME
BERRERITHN - E8H
EFRFMAT  HeWARREH
TRURIBPIEENFIE 2128
EREE - FRBIRHBAL
™

2020
—g-%F

—_—

2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
AREET T

RMB’000
AR®T T

Sales of goods SHEE M 249,865 432,804
Commissions from HEHEMSHS
concessionaire sales 32,705 78,540
282,570 511,344
Revenue from other sources: FHHEMIRHUYA :
Rental income from ‘EYENHES WA
investment properties 7,545 9,528
Rental income from sub-leasing # f/E4 %895 S WA
of shop premises 70,922 64,629
Rental income from sub-leasing # B XS WA
of shopping malls 61,015 52,940
Interest income from R E® RS 2 F B U A
financing services 6,005 6,888
145,487 133,985
428,057 645,329
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HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

6. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6. WARHMELEWA(E)
(Continued)

(@ Revenue (Continued) (@ WA(E)
The following table provides information about trade TREH/RBAREE,EHH
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with BWESERZNANAESE
customers. £t o

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Trade receivables JEWE 5 B8R 1,535 4,323
Contract liabilities (Note 23) aHBaE(HEE23) 20,859 20,242
(b)  Other operating income (b) HHE=uA
An analysis of the Group’s other operating income is N 2 [ E b 4R AR U A 5 AT
as follows: T

2020 2019
— —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT

Interest income FLEHA 1,237 4,099
Net exchange gain el eyl = 419
Government grants (Note) BT B (B 3E) 10,445 2,608
Administration and THREEEBRA

management fee income 36,492 46,580
Gain on early termination of lease B2 IFAEWZH G 4,601 -
COVID-19-related rent COVID-19F M e E R

concessions 7,199 -
Gain on disposal of property,  #1% - EMREREEEE

plant and equipment 16 -
Others Hip 13,177 11,997

73,167 65,703
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150

REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

(Continued)
(b) Other operating income (Continued)
Note:

Various local government grants have been granted to subsidiaries
of the Group during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020.
The amounts mainly represented unconditional cash subsidies
from government for subsidising enterprises as an encouragement
for the contribution in specific industry in the region and remedy
for COVID-19 pandemic. There were no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies attaching to these government grants.

FINANCE COSTS

6. WARHEMELEWA(E)

(b) HAZEWAE)
B -

HERZZ-NFRZTZZTF+=
A=+—RALtFEAEBEZHBAA
BT BEFRTZEME - ZSEE
ZERBNAMACEmMREROEGE
REMA  UEBZHMERFEITED
BRIRFBRBZHE - ZREBEWH
B B A R B IR I s sk AR IR -

7. BERE

2020 2019
e —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 45,023 51,750
Interest on borrowings RITIEERE 882 =
45,905 51,750
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BKRFISHAIER
Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/ BMETERAIEEIILENE (5t
(crediting): N THEESBE -

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Cost of inventories sold recognised as BTRAERTNEEFERAR

expense 207,184 354,233
Auditor’s remuneration ERTENE 1,151 1,235
Depreciation of property, Y - BEREETE

plant and equipment (Note 12) (FffzE12) 48,227 45,725
Depreciation of right-of-use assets: FREEENE

— Properties leased for —BRAEEYWE(ME13)

own use (Note 13) 89,087 95,272

— Leasehold land for —BAEE L (FE13)

own use (Note 13) 261 261
Amortisation of intangible AR (MI5E15)

assets (Note 15) 651 506
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME  BENMRE

plant and equipment (13%) B8 (16) 35
Short term lease expense (Note 13) AR E R (F1FE13) 693 3,806
Low value lease expense (Note 13) EESRENHEERS

(FH#E13) 11 37
COVID-19-related rent concessions FaERIEEEESER

(Note 13) (Fff5E13) (7,199) -
Obsolete inventories written-off WERERE 143 84
Inventories loss FEEB#E 213 -
Impairment loss on property, ME - RENRERERX

plant and equipment (Note (i)) (Note 12)  (B&E()) (FFEE12) 42,587 =
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets HEFREEEREBEELX

(Note (i)) (Note 13) CBREEG)) (BFEE13) 47,278 =
Written-off of property, plant and BEEME - BB KRB

equipment (Note (i) (Note 12) CBREEG)) (B EE12) 36,225 1,336
Staff costs, including directors’ ETNRA  BiEESMHE

emoluments (Note 30(a)) (Pft3E30(a))

Salaries and other benefits e RHEAET 73,468 92,357

Contributions to retirement schemes RIS FT SR 6,889 14,628

80,357 106,985

AEERARAT —B-TFEER 151



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-ZE+-_A=+—RHILEE

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continued) 8. MAEHAIEEE)
Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/ MErEMHAIEE &N (5t
(crediting): (Continued) AN THEEEBE @ (8)

2020 2019
—E-SF —E—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Net exchange loss/(gain) PE 5 Uk s (182%) 162 (419)
Rental income from investment properties &4 ¥% > 4 WA (7,545) (9,528)
Income from subleasing of RAFEAEEERA

right-of-use assets
— Base rents —EXHe (129,844) (114,097)
— Contingent rents (Note (ii) — 8 AT (L)) (2,093) (3,472)

(131,937) (117,569)

Total gross rental income wHESUA (139,482) (127,097)
Less: Direct operating expenses B REFEARERIVE S WA

arising from investment properties that REYEEENEEEE

generated rental income during the year iz 1,952 2,058
Less: Outgoings of subleasing of B HEFAEEERS

right-of-use assets 14,770 16,261
Net rental income FHESWA (122,760) (108,778)

Notes: BEE -

i) Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use (i) M- BERREREAEEERE
assets and written-off of property, plant and equipment had been Bk RYE - BERZEMBEER
included in other operating expenses. EREMGEEFRALTA -

(ii) Contingent rents are calculated based on a percentage of the (ii) SRR IR BEHEHZIREET A
relevant sales of the tenants pursuant to the rental agreements. HEMETADLLFE -
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. g

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Current income tax BVHEAFT 1S HX
- PRC enterprise income tax — R E TS 2,744 2,371
Under-provision in respect of prior years — “E R R TBIZF 1B 620 -
Deferred tax (Note 27) EEFRIIR (M 5E27) (2,430) 200
934 2,571

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands
during the year (2019: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong
for the year (2019: Nil).

For a subsidiary of the Group in Guangxi, its PRC Enterprise
Income Tax has been provided at the preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15% (2019: 15%) for the year pursuant
to the privilege under the China’s Western Development
Program.

A subsidiary of the Group in Shenzhen, namely J&JIT
BEZERSEH AR AT, is qualified as a High and New
Technology Enterprise and enjoys a preferential income tax
of 15% as approved by the PRC tax authority for the years
ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022. The High and
New Technology Enterprise qualification is subjected to be
renewed every three years.

AEBRFRAFEMNEARSHS
MEBRUBSRERENTIE(Z
T—NF:E)-

R AEBRFEAL TR QT BN
FHERBUEN - BB F BN EH
EH BB (=T —NF &)

RAEBREAN —XWBAE - 1R
BB ARSI ERECR
FREFBECEMSRIZERLEMN
BB EI5%(ZE—NE : 15%) 8
g,pq o

REBMFRINKH B REIRIITE
EEREREER AR ESHED
¥ WEERHEBBIFIHENES
ZETF B —FRZT
F+-_A=1+— Hmiﬁmw%ﬁﬁ
ISk - @R bEEREAEE
FEE -
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154

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. Fre®i (&)

Other subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC were 7N 2 B A A B ST MY EL b B A

mainly subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of REE EHETFEP B AT 1S B ARG KOER
25% (2019: 25%) for the year under the income tax rules and #25% (=T —NF : 25%) B B

regulations of the PRC.

REIDRMEN

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting RERARKRAENEHASTBET

loss at applicable tax rates:

B1R Bk

2020 2019
—2-FF —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETT

Loss before income tax

MrPTISTR AT ES 18 (193,527) (49,771)

Tax on loss before income tax,
calculated at the rates applicable to
loss in the tax jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Utilisation of tax losses previously not

BRETIS TR AT E BRI -

BH B E AR EE

HRANMETE (48,722) (13,007)
AR S R TS 2 2 33,828 11,646
BAFRIKANTRIEZE (3,718) (4,047)

5 A SR R FER R TR T B 18

recognised - (930)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERRIEEENHRETE 21,240 8,909
Under-provision in respect of prior years 5t RIEERET E 620 =
Others Hh (2,314) -
Income tax expense FriS i i = 934 2,571
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10. DIVIDENDS
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Dividend attributable to the previous year, approved and
paid during the year:

10. KRE
BE_Z-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIF
B ARARBERNKETIREKE
(ZZE—NF :&|) -

FRRLE MR H L EFEEERE

2020 2019
e —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Final dividend in respect of the previous — F{EFEE A REIR EEK
year, of RMB Nil (2019: RMB1.88 cents) EEIRAREZ (==

per ordinary share —hEF : ARM1.88%)
- Approved during the year —F R E - 19,505
— Paid during the year — F RS = (19,505)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—RHIFE

11. LOSS PER SHARE 11. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share STERANRIEA AR E AR &
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on SEESTE - IR FTEURETE ¢

following data:

Loss =
Loss for the purposes of basic and T E SR EAN KB EEE
diluted loss per share (RMB’000) MEE(ARETFIT) (194,461) (52,342)
Number of shares v gE|
Weighted average number of =l gl RSk
ordinary shares 1,037,500,002 1,037,500,002
Basic and diluted loss per share ERERNREEEE
(RMB cents) (ANR#5) (18.74) (5.09)
Diluted loss per share equals to basic loss per share, as FREEEEASENERERNEE -
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares issued during RRAHEZE—_ZE—NER_ZE_FTF
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020. +ZRA=+—RHLFE TEEMA

WEEN LB -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-_ZE+-A=+—HILEE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% - BRERRE
Motor Furniture,
Leasehold  Leasehold Plant and vehicles  fixtures and
buildings Improvements  machinery and tools  equipment Total
. 8 RER
i £ %8  EERME RERIA #f k]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
] ) ARETT  ARETR  ARETR \RET T
At 1 January 2019 R=E-1E-5-A
Cost KA 21,367 449,521 21,481 11,384 109,683 613,420
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (1,717) (304,939) (18,081) (9,319) (07,324) (431,380
Net carrying amount FEFE 19,640 144,582 3,400 2,065 12,359 182,046
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E-NE+ZR
=t-RLFE
Opening net carrying amount EMEESE 19,640 144,582 3,400 2,065 12,359 182,046
Additions e = 115,080 18 469 14,716 130,283
Disposals i = - - (547) (107) (654)
Written off i - - (83) - (1,259) (1,336)
Depreciation it (3779) (36,739) (#43) (031) (3.833) (45,725)
Closing net carrying amount EXRREFE 15,861 202,923 2,892 1,056 21,882 264,614
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-AFtZR=+-Rk
1 January 2020 “8-%%-8-A
Cost A 21,357 444,909 19,966 8,876 109,159 604,267
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (5,49)  (221,980) (17,074) (7,820) (67.217) (339,659
Net carrying amount REFE 15,861 222,923 2,892 1,056 21,882 264,614
Year ended 31 December 2020  HZ-E-EE+-F
=t-RLEE
Opening net carrying amount ENEREE 15,861 202,923 2,892 1,056 21,882 264,614
Additions e - 65,704 - 1,047 13,358 80,109
Disposals irk= - - (54) - (473) (527)
Written off i - (33,872) (302) - (2,051) (36,225)
Depreciation Vil (305) (42,214) (21 (345) (5,086) (48,027)
Impairment loss REEE - (42,587) - - - (42,587)
Closing net carrying amount EXEERE 15,556 169,954 2,259 1,758 27,630 217,157
At 31 December 2020 R=2-BF+=A=+-A
Cost A 21,357 385,358 16,945 9,922 110,298 543,880
Accumulated depreciation and ZETERAE
impairment (5,801) (215,404) (14,686) (8,164) (82,668) (326,723)
Net carrying amount FEFE 15,556 169,954 2,259 1,758 21,630 217,157
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-TF+-_A=1+—RALEFE

12.

158

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation charges incurred for the year were recognised
as “selling and distribution costs” and “administrative
expenses” amounted to approximately RMB47,213,000
(2019: RMB45,135,000) and RMB1,014,000 (2019:
RMB590,000) respectively.

Written off incurred for the year were recognised as
“other operating expenses” amounted to approximately
RMB36,225,000 (2019: RMB1,336,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the management
identified impairment indication for property, plant and
equipment due to decline in performance of the Group
resulting from the deteriorated economic environment and
uncertain outlook of the Group’s business following the
influence of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment which were allocated to
the respective cash-generating unit(s) (“CGU(s)”) under
the segment of operation and management of retail stores
and other related businesses, and as a result of the
assessment, the carrying amounts of the property, plant
and equipment were written down to their recoverable
amounts of approximately RMB217,157,000. Impairment
loss of approximately RMB42,587,000 for the segment of
operation and management of retail stores and other related
businesses was recognised in other operating expenses in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—RALEFE

12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGUs to which the
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets (note
13) and intangible assets (note 15) were allocated have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
calculations use cash flow projections based on the most
recent financial budgets approved by the Directors of the
Company covering a period of five years, which represented
the management’s best estimate on the ongoing operation of
the CGUs where the existing CGUs will continue to operate
in the foreseeable future and are consistent with past actual
outcomes.

For the CGUs under the segment of operation and
management of retail stores and other related businesses,
revenue growth rates over five-year period are ranged from
1.43% to 12.81%, based on current industry trends. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated weighted average growth rate of 3.00%, which
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
market in which the CGU operates. The pre-tax discount rate
used ranged from 13.28% to 19.08%, which reflects specific
risk relating to the segments in which it operates.

The estimates would face a challenge due to the COVID-19
pandemic, therefore management’s estimated cash flows
factor in possible cash flow scenarios.

12.

EEREZERERAF

M - BB RRE (&)

EBOEEME  BEI&E  EREE
E(ME18) RETEE(ME15) 8
ReELBUMNAIKREESBRERERE
REEAERT - 2S5 TEERANR
EREFRATARNARESLENT
FHEMVBGBRERER - MAEMRE
ERREEERRSELBUFEE
E(ANRBERESELEBMNATRERK
MG L E) M REMRG - A&
BENERER X -

MEERERTEEREMABER
SETHWERESELESEMMS @ BIEB
ATAMITEBE  AFHNKRAKER
N F1.43%FE12.81% - AFEH LA
MRS MERB AT NEFERE
3.00%ETHE - ZIBEREI B
REELEBENKLEMEHNRPTEY
BRE - FIERANMRATREN T
13.28% 2£19.08% - [ M B2 E 4L & 5
HEEEMERBRR -

Itk £ it 5 #% B3 R COVID-19 % 15 i

kB - Rt EEENRESRAEE
ZRAEHENRSRBER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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13.

160

LEASES
The Group as a lessee
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

U

(i)

Properties leased for own use

The Group entered into various lease agreements
for retail stores, shopping malls and employees’
accommodation with independent third parties
and the related companies, namely Shenzhen
Baijiahua Group Company Limited (“BJH Group”)
and Shenzhen Jiahua Real Estate Development
Company Limited (“JH Real Estate”), companies in
which Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan,
the spouse of Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun, have beneficial
interests.

The leases with independent third parties have initial
period of non-cancellable leases between 1 and
15 years (2019: between 1 and 15 years) as at 31
December 2020.

The leases with related companies, BJH Group and
JH Real Estate, have initial period of non-cancellable
leases between 2 and 14 years (2019: between 2 and
14 years) as at 31 December 2020.

Leasehold land for own use

The Group is the registered owner of the leasehold
land. The leasehold land will expire in 2066. Lump
sum payment has made upfront to acquire the land.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. #HE(E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEEREMBA(E)
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by FREEERMABEERNESAER
class of underlying asset is as follows: HFESTET :

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Properties leased for own use EREEY 425,523 631,613
Leasehold land for own use BEREE L 11,879 12,140
437,402 643,753

Properties Leasehold
leased for land for
own use own use Total

HRBEYX BAEELH #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBETET AR®BTT

At 1 January 2019 RZE—hFE—H—H 498,970 12,401 511,371
Additions NE 227,975 = 227,975
Early termination of lease RERILES (60) - (60)
Depreciation e (95,272) (261) (95,533)
At 31 December 2019 and R-ZZE—NhHF
1 January 2020 +-A=+—8xX&

—EEF—fF— 631,613 12,140 643,753
Additions N=T 38,848 - 38,848
Early termination of lease REKIEHE (64,163) = (64,163)
Depreciation e (89,087) (261) (89,348)
Effect of lease modification HEEBITTE (44,410) - (44,410)
Impairment loss RE 18 (47,278) = (47,278)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZBZZF

+=HA=+—H 425,523 11,879 437,402
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13.

162

LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the management
identified impairment indication for right-of-use assets due
to decline in performance of the Group resulting from the
deteriorated economic environment and uncertain outlook
of the Group’s business following the influence of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the right-
of-use assets which were allocated to the respective CGUs
under the segment of operation and management of retail
stores and other related businesses, and as a result of
the assessment, the carrying amount of the properties
leased for own use was written down to its recoverable
amount of approximately RMB425,523,000. Impairment
loss of approximately RMB47,278,000 for the segment of
operation and management of retail stores and other related
businesses was recognised in other operating expenses in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The key input and assumptions of the impairment
assessment of the CGUs related to the segment of
operation and management of retail stores and other related
businesses of which the right-of-use assets were allocated
to were summarised in note 12 to these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

expedient introduced by the amendment to HKFRS 16 to all rent concessions
that satisfy the criteria. All of the rent concessions entered into during the year
ended 31 December 2020 satisfy the criteria to apply the practical expedient.
The application of the practical expedient has resulted in the reduction of total

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. #HE(E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEEREMBA(E)
Lease liabilities HEEE
Properties
leased for
own use
EP=risk-¢7ES
RMB’000
ARETIT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—HA—H 515,438
Additions /Zﬁﬁ 227,975
Early termination of lease REKIEHEE (61)
Interest expenses F B 51,750
Lease payments HERFK (113,267)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R=-Z—hE+=_A=+—HE
—ET-FF—-H—H 681,835
Additions NE 38,848
Early termination of lease REKIEEE (68,764)
Effect of lease modification HEBIIHNTE (44,410)
Interest expenses FBERAX 45,023
COVID-19-related rent concessions (Note)  COVID-198 B8 S =4 (M) (7,199)
Lease payments HERR (106,492)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-FEF+=-HA=+—H 538,841
Note: BiaE -
As disclosed in note 3(a), the Group has elected to apply the practical SANHI S TG - AEEEREFEBYE

BEREAFE16RETASIANERERTERE
RRAENAARLENEEES BE_T
“EFEL_A=ZFT—HIUEFE AR ZE
He@EHANSEABREETENER - &

lease liabilities of approximately RMB7,199,000. The effect of this reduction AEREEAZEHHEABRRBERIHAR
has been recorded in profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition #7,199,0007T ° B F BB A EZEN

that triggers those payments occurs.

REFE A G B ENHIRF N AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-ZE+-_A=+—RHILEE

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. #HE(E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEERAMBA(E)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEEB(E)
Extension and termination options: IEHR R AR PRI
Extension and termination options are included in a number EHNKRIREREREEAEERET
of properties lease for own use across the Group. These are BERYERERN - ZFREHETIAR
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing EEReEEAEEEBAEEN
assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of BIUEE M o PR RIS D BHI MR IE
extension and termination options held are exercisable REEEHAEBREBREHEAZE
only by the mutual agreement between the Group and the FEITH ©

respective lessor.

Future lease payments are due as follows: RERBEMNROEEBERAT -

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value

REBEENR ME BRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR®BTRT AR%TxR

At 31 December 2020 —E_EHF
+=BA=+—H

Not later than one year TER—F 102,138 37,615 64,523
Later than one year and not B —F K NERME

later than two years 93,168 33,066 60,102
Later than two years and BIRMERNERASE

not later than five years 273,404 72,581 200,823
More than five years AFEE 253,929 40,536 213,393

722,639 183,798 538,841
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13. LEASES (Continued) 13. HE(HE)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEEREMBA(E)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEEEE)

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value

RIKAE K L8, HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETET ARETT ARETE

At 31 December 2019 —E-hE
+=A=+-8
Not later than one year TER—F 124,578 48,738 75,840
Later than one year and BR—F R TERRE
not later than two years 116,905 40,704 76,201
Later than two years and EBRMFERTERRESF
not later than five years 319,305 99,867 219,438
More than five years AFEE 370,905 60,549 310,356
931,693 249,858 681,835
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: ARBEENZHIREI>TOT -

2020 2019

RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT

Current liabilities TEAaE 64,523 75,840
Non-current liabilities ErRBEE 474,318 605,995
538,841 681,835

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT

Short term lease expense EHAMERY 693 3,806
Low value lease expense KEEHERS 11 37
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-19F B¢ &R (7,199) -
(Gain)/loss on early termination of lease 2R IFTRE (Wzs), B8 (4,601) 1

4\
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BE-_Z-ZE+-_A=+—RHILEE

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. #HE(E)
The Group as a lessor — Operating leases AEEBEAHBEA —KEHE
The Group leases out a number of properties leased for own REEBREBELKEHENTAETEBRME
use and investment properties under operating leases. EMERILEYE o
The total future minimum lease receivables under non- BRIB AR EHERBE L E =
cancellable operating leases from independent third parties 75 ) 5k PR B (K 7R & W 2R I8 48 %8 0
are as follows: T

2020 2019
—E-SF —E—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETT

Not later than one year TER—F 66,943 72,035
Later than one year and not later than BR—FRTNERME
two years 59,501 68,174
Later than two years and not later than BRMERTER=F
three years 45,494 57,591
Later than three years and not later than 3B =4 & TNE RPN
four years 33,203 42,195
Later than four years and not later than ~ BRAINFE R NER T E
five years 22,149 27,866
Later than five years HFELAE 61,065 76,434
288,355 344,295
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13. LEASES (Continued) 13.
The Group as a lessor — Operating leases
(Continued)
The total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases from related companies, namely
BJH Group and JH Real Estate are as follows:

HE (&)
AEBEEREEA-KERE
(%)

RETAIHBELRAE  EREHD
AlE EERE R EERME Y RRK
{ERE UK EREDT :

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Not later than one year TER—F 4,527 3,993
Later than one year and not later than BR—FRTNERME
two years 4,639 3,761
Later than two years and not later than BRMERTER=F
three years 3,821 3,872
Later than three years and not later than 3B =4 & TNE RPN 4F
four years 2,418 3,821
Later than four years and not later than ~ BRAVNE K NER R E
five years 2,458 2,418
Later than five years AFUE 1,692 4,150
19,555 22,015
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REWHE
2020 2019
—EB-EF — &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
At beginning of the year F 4] 292,100 291,300
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of WEMELNFECRD),
investment properties 0 (7,500) 800
At end of the year FR 284,600 292,100

The investment properties represent various leasehold land
and buildings located in the PRC held for generating rental
income and the leasehold land will expire in 2066.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2019 and 2020 were arrived at on the basis
of valuations carried out at the date by Chung Hin Appraisal
Limited and Valor Appraisal & Advisory Limited respectively,
the independent firms of qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group, who have appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring
fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and
closing fair value balance is provided below:

BREMEERELHEWAMTAN
RETEHET W RET  MEEL
b 9 BAR B0 — TN FE T o

AEBREMER_ZT-NFR_F
“EE+_A=T—HHQTE T}
ERFOTRHEA R 2 7 M K EHE &
BRERARNRZBETHGEESE
B RREAKE SRS — B
VR BEBREXMGERMT  XAAFE
R E R E 2 EEERRTH
5

REVENRFEREIELEUELR
FEFE - FORFERNDTFEES
HERSIT

2020 2019
—ECoEE —NnE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR¥ET T
Opening balance FAEER
(level 3 recurring fair value) (FEIBEEMURNTE) 292,100 291,300
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of BEMEINTFECRD),
investment properties by (7,500) 800
Closing balance FREER
(level 3 recurring fair value) (FBEIEEEIEATE) 284,600 292,100
Change in unrealised (losses)/gains for R+-—A=+—8mEsH
the year included in profit or loss for BEFABZNFEA
assets held at 31 December REW (E51R),/ W E e (7,500) 800
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair values of investment properties are determined using the
investment method on the basis of capitalisation of the net
rental incomes with due allowance for reversionary income
potential. The fair value measurement is positively correlated
to the market monthly rental rate and negatively correlated to
property yield.

Valuation

techniques

fRER M

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXREZEREZ2BAER

14.

;Qﬁ%%(wﬁ)
REMENRFETEBRE R (KM
BHERWAE N EEE &) FHE
EWARRAREZEE - A VFEE
HEmi5HAESKEL - MEAYED
HERAEREL -

At 31 December 2020
NZZE_FF+=-_H=+—H

Investment properties Investment Market monthly rental rate taking into RMB100 to
BB method account of individual factors such as RMB330
B"EE location, floor, size. etc. (2019:

(RMB/sg.m) RMB105 to

misZ AR RAUE - 2 - R RMB340)

ZEBEER(ARE FHXK) ARE100LE

AR#3307T

—E-hF

AR®105TE

AR¥3407T)

Capitalisation rate of
reversionary income

FWARE AR =

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the years.

The fair value measurement is based on the above

properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from
their actual use.

BEERERA

4% to 5%

(2019: 4% to 5%)
4%Z%E5%
(ZE—NF
4% E5%)

FABERMLBEIAESD -

$1§‘+ETJ%EAJ:L%% E’K'J
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15.

170

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1 January 2019

15. B EE

Computer
software

BRI
RMB’000
ARBF T

Cost DN 1,640
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH (339)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,305
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-ZE—hE+=-A=1+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FEREFE 1,305
Additions — externally acquired NE —INERUREE 4,171
Amortisation 5 (506)
Closing net carrying amount FREEEFE 4,970
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R=T—h&E+=-A=+—HRK

—ZE-ZTF¥—H—H
Cost %N 5,811
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH (841)
Net carrying amount BREFE 4,970
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_FF+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 4,970
Additions — externally acquired NE —HNEBULEE 1,133
Amortisation By (651)
Closing net carrying amount FRIREFE 5,452
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_EF+=-A=+—H
Cost BN 6,944
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH (1,492)
Net carrying amount BREFE 5,452
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e REME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-_ZE+-A=+—HILEE

16. DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND 16. BfIEE AAREREME
OTHER RECEIVABLES U FRIE

2020 2019
—B-%F —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Non-current assets FRBEE
Rental deposits (Note(i) &z (M) 16,868 19,786
Payment in advance for acquisition of WEEYIZE -« RE KR ER
property, plant and equipment SCENE S5 8,030 7,862
Other receivable H At U RIE 2,300 3,800
27,198 31,448
Current assets RBEE
Deposits paid BftiES 4,118 1,992
Prepayments TETRIR 3,244 6,620
Advances to suppliers At ERE B 705 1,090
Other receivables (Note (ii)) L th i W SR A (B (i) ) 47,244 42,253
55,311 51,955
Notes: BizE -
(i) As at 31 December 2020, included in the rental deposits of (i) R-ZZE-_FTE+-_A=+—8 " A

approximately RMB3,327,000 (2019: RMB3,327,000) and
RMB5,352,000 (2019: RMB5,352,000) represented rental deposits
paid to BJH Group and JH Real Estate respectively.

(if) Included in the balance was input value added tax (“VAT”) receivable (ii)
of approximately RMB38,413,000 (2019: RMB33,001,000) as at
31 December 2020. Input VAT arose when the Group purchases
products from suppliers and the input VAT can be deducted from
output VAT on revenue.

Except for input VAT receivables which had no expiry date, all other
receivables were repayable either on demand or within one year.

The Directors consider that the fair values of other receivables
(current portion), except for input VAT receivables, which are
expected to be recovered within one year are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods on their inception.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising
from deposits and other receivables are set out in note 36(iii).

HERESPHLH ARKS327,0007T

—T—hF : AR¥3,327,0007T) &
AR#¥5,352,000C (ZF—1F : A
R #5,352,0007T) » RlfE M B EEE
EREFEERMEXMNAEES

ERTBEER_ZET_ZETF+_-A
=t+—BEKEEEEER([EE
Bi 1) 4 AR #38,413,0007C(ZZF— A,
£ : AR#33,001,0007T) ° A BHEE
HEREAEBMEERERBERM
EAE - WA RS B HESERN
y},% °

Bk £ i F B Y B M B A TR AR B Y
Sh - A B IR BR Z R AR
—FRNEE -

BERR ANZSHEBRREERE
MENEES > BRAR-—FRKEZHE
1t FE U2 SR IR (e B U [ 3 TR (B B 51 )
ZATEEEREEY EEAER -

BRASEEERRRIZS REMAE
WRIE BT EE 4 12 B R /9 5 15 SR BT
136 ©

EEERBRARAT —TTEEH 171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
nVT\AHZti%#E(%:ZBﬁ? nE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—RHIFE

17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. R—RBELQT 2=

2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETT

Share of net liabilities LB EFE (484) (484)

Goodwill SRS 600 600

Less: Accumulated impairment losses B 2EDREERE (116) (116)
Details of the associate are as follows: i NI EE 2= (1N

Particulars of ~ Percentage of Principal

Place of incorporation/ paid-up interest held by activities
establishment and registered the Company and place
Company name legal form of entity capital Indirectly of operations
MR LR B AQRIEE FEEER
NGRS HiE A KGR EXFE RBEERZREAL KEHY
Shenzhen Egoos Mobile The PRC, RMB10,000,000 30%  Operation and
Internet Limited limited liability company management of online
sale in the PRC
Y TRLERBEY B BRETAT AR #10,000,0007T 30% MAEgEE
BRAT B HE
In the opinion of the Directors, the above associate is EERE - LiE A RS AEBEW
immaterial to the Group. TEKX °
The summarised financial information of the associate HE-ZT-NFRZZ-_ZTF+=A
is unavailable for the years ended 31 December 2019 == EIJJ:EFWE/Z':HX SHEE A AR
and 2020, and the Directors considered the impact of it PHERME  BEERAENILE
is immaterial in view of the insignificance of the carrying ERNACEEBEYAEKN @ HHEEE
amount of this associate. NEERK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
n'/j—\AHzl-ﬁ%#&‘%:zlsz? IIE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

18. INVENTORIES AND CONSUMABLES

18. =&

5 K 5 ¥ o

2020 2019

g Jamg 222 = %8

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARETTT

Merchandise for resale EE R 23,815 24,951

Low value consumables KESFED 2,580 3,185

26,395 28,136

19. TRADE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES 19. FELBIEE,EE ARER

All of the Group’s sales are on cash basis except for ETmeEREFIELHASR M
trade receivables from certain bulk sales of merchandise E FEUHERAES KA R ER S
to corporate customers, rental income receivables from EBNERRR  AEEMMEHEEY
tenants and loan receivables from provision of financing NIRe#T BTHEKERERT

services. The credit terms offered to the customers from
operation and management of retail stores and other related
businesses are generally for a period of one to three months
(2019: one to three months), while to customers from
financing services are repayable on demand or one month
(2019: repayable on demand or one to seven months).

As at 31 December 2020, included in trade receivables of
approximately RMB17,969,000 (2019: RMB20,009,000)
represented rental income receivables from tenants.

As at 31 December 2020, included in trade receivables of
approximately RMB276,000 (2019: Nil) represented trade
receivables due from related companies.

Trade receivables were non-interest-bearing. Loan
receivables from provision of financing services which bore
interest at fixed rates with effective interest rates ranging
from 12% to 15% (2019: 12% to 15%) per annum. The loan
receivables are secured and with recourse.

EEMEMEREE ZEPNEER
—BRE—E=ZEA(ZF-NF: —
EZEA) METEMEBZEP
MEEH-RAMERKZMEA
(ZZ—nF  HERXEELE
A) e

m_$_7¢+ B=+—H " itA
JEWE 5 B M 49 A R #17,969,000
fc(:%@—ni : AR #20,009,000
T ERKBERMNHESUWA -

RZEZEF+ZA=+—H " &A
FEWE BRI 49 A R#5276,00070 (=
T-NF E)ERKBEARZIE
WE ZERK -

fEWE B IRS 7%%5 c RE S BER
ZEBEFEFWENT12EZ15E
ZETERENE(ZE—NF N
T12BE15E) - ZEREER %ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
R RBRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—RHIFE

19. TRADE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES 19. EWEZRIRER(E)
(Continued)
2020
—E-FF
RMB’000
AR%ET
Trade receivables (Note (i) e U E 5 BR Z (B #E () 19,504 24,332
Loan receivables (Note (ii)) & UE ZR (B i) 42,501 46,477
Less: Loss allowance (Note 36iiii)) TRk ORE ZE M (BT EES6(ii)) (2,076) -
40,425 46,477
59,929 70,809
Notes: BEE -
(i) The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on invoice (i) TEBEZEKRESERIZERHBAG
dates, is as follows: BRERDITHATE -

174

(i)

Within 30 days 30HA 15,705 22,320
31-60 days 31&E60H 1,257 973
61-180 days 61£180H 781 726
181-365 days 181£365H 1,688 313
Over 365 days 365H 5 73 -
19,504 24,332

The aging analysis of the Group’s loan receivables is as follows: (ii) AEBEEERORRDTAT :

Repayable on demand or within one year BNERE K —F A 40,425 46,477
The Directors consider that the fair values of trade and loan EERA BRZEEBRELREE
receivables which are expected to be recovered within one year are REAEIE - FEER —F Ak E E
not materially different from their carrying amounts because these WESERREERNAFEEERR
balances have short maturity periods on their inceptions. B HMERER o
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising ERARSERKESERRARERESE
from trade and loan receivables are set out in note 36(iii). HEEBRREERBANE —ZFB

B BT FE36(iiT) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
n'/j—\AHzl-ﬁ%#&‘%:zlsz? IIE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

20.

21.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT

Restricted bank deposit amounted to RMB2,000,000
represented the bank deposit restricted for the repayment of
the principal and interest of the secured bank loan required
by the bank.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20.

21.

2R HRITEH

Z R HR1TF KA AR 2,000,000
L BRBHIARERITEREES
EIHRITERARE LA BEWIRITE

EE@&@ETTM:&#

2020 2019
g Jemg 22 —heE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERS 76,624 69,169
Bank deposits maturing within R=1EAREHE
three months IRITIER — 28,568
Cash and cash equivalents for the REeEMERNAS R
purpose of statement of cash flows HeEEY 76,624 97,737
Bank deposits maturing over R =18 A & 2 B R1T 17 5K
three months - 20,000
76,624 117,737

The Group had cash and bank balances denominated
in RMB of approximately RMB70,272,000 (2019:
RMB112,793,000) of which the remittance out of the PRC
was subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by
the PRC government.

The cash at banks bore interests at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. As at 31 December 2020, certain
bank deposits bore interest at floating rate with effective
interest rate was 0.30% per annum.

As at 31 December 2019, certain bank deposits bore interest
at floating rate with effective interest rate was 0.35% per
annum. The other bank deposits bore interest at fixed rates
with effective interest rates ranged from 1.65% to 2.1% per
annum. They had maturities ranged from 6 months to 12
months and were eligible for immediate cancellation without
receiving any interest for the last deposit period.

AEBUAREFENRS RIETT
B ANRE70,272,0000 (=&
—NF : AR¥112,793,0007T) @ &
FIEH AR FEAESFEBTE
K HNEE B I R I AR PR o

RITRSEF R L - NIRFHRTT
ﬁT/\EﬁJ—v—u o -RZZE_FF+_A
=+—H ' BETRITFEZTIREER
B BRFFNXRO0.I0E -

R_ZE—hF+=-—A=+—H ' &F
RITHERIRZEGTE  BEREANEA
0.35[F o E iR 17 17 3k & @ & 7 &
qu_ BERFHNENT1.65EE2.1
o BIEAEARR NE A E @A T

F - AR RERET — B SR A B
BB T BIRFERH o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-ZE+-_A=+—RHILEE

22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. EREZERX
The credit terms granted by suppliers are generally for a
period of 30 to 60 days. The aging analysis of the trade
payables, based on invoice dates, is as follows:

HERRENEES MK A30E60
H - BN EZEFIZEE B HNERR
DR =

176

2020 2019

—E-SF —E—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREET T

Within 30 days 30H A 35,649 63,905
31-60 days 31E60H 20,482 19,589
61-180 days 612180H 9,718 9,352
181-365 days 181£365H 3,627 2,118
Over 1 year —F Pk 5,678 3,093
75,054 98,057

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts
of the Group’s trade payables are considered to be a

reasonable approximation of fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities EHBEE

BHEE

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

20,859 20,242

Contract liabilities in relation to: EHEEFN

Operation and management of retail
stores and other related businesses A EE

2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARET T

REREBTEEMEAME

— Prepaid gift cards —farEm=R 12,820 12,075
— Customer loyalty programme —RERELFTE 8,039 8,167
20,859 20,242

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to the performance
obligations that are unsatisfied as of each reporting period.
The Group expects the transaction price allocated to the
unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognised as
revenue when the award points in relation to customer
loyalty programme and prepaid gift cards are redeemed.

BHNEBREEERESHHAIEER
EKEOEENR 5 ERMMBE - KR
mEH Rﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁg}fﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂ
BN RTHEBEIE - D
EREXRBHEINR ZERKER
RN °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—RHIFE

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 23. GREEB(E)
Movements in contract liabilities: BB EEE) :

Award points

under

customer

Prepaid loyalty
gift cards  programme

EFRH

Xt ET
ENemt 2RBR2 st
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARETR

At 1 January n—H—H 12,075 8,167 20,242
Decrease in contract liabilities as a AERNER

result of recognising revenue during REDN A

the year that was included in the BRAED

contract liabilities at the beginning WA &

of the year BHEERD (12,075) (1,168) (13,243)
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEEN 12,820 1,040 13,860
At 31 December R+—A=+—8° 12,820 8,039 20,859

Award points

under

customer

Prepaid loyalty
gift cards  programme

EPRH

XFEET
BEfEm 2 EEED mEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL AREFL ARETR

At 1 January n—A—8 16,360 7,259 23,619
Decrease in contract liabilities as a EF N FER

result of recognising revenue during REAETA

the year that was included in the BRAEMN

contract liabilities at the beginning WA TEE

of the year EHEERD (16,360) (1,535) (17,895)
Increase in contract liabilities AHAEEMN 12,075 2,443 14,518
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 12,075 8,167 20,242
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-_ZE+-A=+—HILEE

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Prepaid gift cards

The Group sells the prepaid gift cards to the customers who
redeems the prepaid gift cards for future purchases. The
prepaid gift cards are non-refundable and with no expiry
date.

Award points under customer loyalty programme
Under the Group’s customer loyalty programme, customers
who participate in the loyalty programme can earn
award points by spending. Valid awards points as at end
of reporting period are with no expiry date.

23. GREEBE(E)
UEBERANABSERRTEY —
B HEZRIT

AfEm~
AKERBETLERNER R - M
BNEmRAERREE - AfEm
REATARD B EE MR -

EPRIXFAET 2REDH
EAEE s BFPRESFAET 2
HEPRAXFITEAZEEAEE
RMEEDH - BEBREHRRZAR
REDBUEERR -

24. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES 24, BEREZEE - HMESRKERE
AND ACCRUALS FTEA
—ECEF
RMB’000
ARET T
Deposits received B Wiz e 39,915 48,179
Other payables (Note) HoAth & A~ SR IE (P 3E) 60,716 75,158
Accruals ezt E B 18,975 20,319
119,606 143,651
Note: As at 31 December 2020, included in other payables of iz : RZTZTF+=-A=+—8 " A

approximately RMB37,815,000 (2019: RMB56,370,000) represented
payables for construction on leasehold improvement.

As at 31 December 2020, included in other payables of
approximately RMB738,000 (2019: RMB3,312,000) represented
other PRC tax payables, other than PRC Enterprise Income Tax.

As at 31 December 2020, included in other payables of
approximately RMB28,000 (2019: RMB2,631,000) represented
amounts received from (i) suppliers when they send promoters to the
retail stores and (i) staff when joining the retail stores in aggregate.

As at 31 December 2020, included in other payables of
approximately RMB10,342,000 (2019: RMB6,152,000) represented
retention monies held by the Group regarding construction
on leasehold improvement, which are payable by the end of
maintenance period.

H fth 8 B 49 A R #537,815,0007T
—ET—NF . AR¥56,370,0007T)
TRERMEMER S 2 EMAE -

R-ZZT-_ZFTE+-_A=+—8 " A
i JE A SRIE K9 AR # 738,000t (=
ZT—NF : AR¥3,312,0007T) 35K
PR EMSRAIINZ RN E
g -

RZT_ZTF+-_A=+—8 A
HAth A R IB A AR 28,0007t (= F
—NE : AR¥2,631,0007T) F5 (i) A
ERRERBAEEZTEERREKH
FERERRIE R ()R B TNBETEEE
W B THFIAME 2 458

RZZB-_ZF+-_A=+—8 A
H fh & FRIE A9 AR #510,342,0007T
—ZT—NF : AR%6,152,0007T) %5
AEEMBEBAEMERERET
BEORES  ARNREHERAIAN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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24.

25.

26.

180

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES 24.

AND ACCRUALS (Continued)

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts
of the Group’s deposits received, other payables and
accruals are considered to be a reasonable approximation of
fair values.

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 25.

The amount was unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

BORROWINGS 26.

SWEE - At ENRKIARE
SEA(E)

FAREYREE - Bt - AEEZ
EliRE - H AR HOR R B A
REERRARATEZ AR -

BN —REERE
BRAFARELN - 2R RRENRE
% o

B&

2020 2019
—g-%5 —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Current — secured bank loan BNHR — BHIRIRITE R 2,280 =
Non-current — secured bank loan JERNER — B IR ITER 64,663 =
66,943 —

As at 31 December 2020, total current and non-current
secured bank loan were scheduled to repay as follows:

Hﬂ&?tﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁﬂ M@%ﬁﬁiﬁ
ZIEN THIHRERE

2020 2019
e —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Within one year —FR 2,280 =
More than one year, but not BiE—F  BTBERNFE
exceeding two years 2,280 -
More than two years, but not BBME  BTBBREF
exceeding five years 7,680 -
More than five years BERF 54,703 =
66,943 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—RALEFE

26.

BORROWINGS (Continued)

During the year, banking facility of approximately
RMB180,000,000 was granted by a bank to a subsidiary
of the Group. The Group has drawn down of approximately
RMB67,513,000 and repaid of approximately RMB570,000
for the year. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
undrawn banking facility of approximately RMB112,487,000.
The banking facility is secured by the Group’s investment
properties amounted to approximately RMB266,800,000
and trade receivables of approximately RMB143,000 as at
31 December 2020 and guaranteed by BJH Group.

The bank loan is variable interest bearing which carried
interest based on the 5-year loan prime rate issued by the
National Inter-bank Funding Center plus 0.25% per annum.
The effective interest rate as at 31 December 2020 is 4.9%.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has not breached any
of the covenants of the banking facilities.

The bank loan is arranged at variable interest rate and
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Further
details of the Group’s management of interest rate risk are
set out in note 36(iv).

26.

4\

BB (&)
FARN - —KBITRAARNEER— KK
NAIRERITHRENDAREKE
180,000,0007C ° AAFE @ AEH
REA AR #67,513,0007T & (& &
#HAR¥ES70,0007T c R T 4HF
+ZA=+—H8 AEBEXRFAAR
TEE BH AR®E112,487,0007T °
ZBTREURNEER T _FF
T A=+ —HRNEEWEHDARK
266,800,0007T & fE B E 5 BR ;A A
R¥143,0007c{E# IR - W BEZE
SEREHER -

RITERNFEAFE  REEIRT
MRZEFREFLEGHNAFHERE
BEEFEN0.25% F FEF B - N
E-TF+_A=1+—8 BEA=X
B4.9% o

R-ZB-_ZTF+_A=t—8  £&
B30 % 22 IR SRTT AR B VA R4 ©

RITERRI BN XL EAKE

EERIR SR ERER - NEEEEF
K[ 0 — R IE M EES6(v) °
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27.

182

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax asset and liabilities
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and previous financial years.

27.

IEEBLIR
AT RAREE R AEE KB B E
FERRNTBREHAEERAM
EEWEE -

Revaluation Undistributed
of investment profits of
properties  subsidiaries Total
HEARZ
REMESR A RF Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETTT
At 1 January 2019 —hE—HA—H 20,831 3,100 23,931
Deferred taxation debited to the ?HE,%T SRR IR (i 3E9)
profit or loss (Note 9) 200 - 200
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NFTZA=+—HkK
1 January 2020 —T-FTF—-A—H 21,031 3,100 24,131
Deferred taxation credited to the STABRAELEHIR(FE9)
profit or loss (Note 9) (1,875) (555) (2,430)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZF+-_A=+—H 19,156 2,545 21,701

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the new Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC issued on 6 December 2007, a 10% withholding
income tax shall be levied on the dividends remitted by
the companies established in the PRC to their foreign
investors starting from 1 January 2008. Dividends declared
or proposed out from the profits generated by the PRC
companies after 1 January 2008 shall be subject to this
withholding income tax.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB208,000,000 (2019:
RMB284,000,000), as the Directors consider that timing
of reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

27.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2020 the Group has estimated unused tax losses
of approximately RMB135,716,000 (2019: RMB50,044,000)
which were available for offset against future profits and are
subject to expiry period of five years as follows. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the estimated
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

27.

IEFERLIE (48)

IR IE & E B R A I8 Fl 25 7] g

BHB R R EE RN AR IE
EIETUER R_E_TF+=A8
=t+t—H8 AEBEEAHRSHBKE
BEBEOARE135,716,0007T( = F
—h& : AR¥50,044,0007T) © 7]
K RE RS - WIZBRLT A E
FEHREER - ARETER R & RF
R - MRS IBEERE BIAE
RIEFBEMERR -

2020 2019
SE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Expire in RATEEER
- 2020 ——EFTF - =
- 2021 ——E - - =
- 2022 — -z 11,319 11,319
- 2023 ——E-=F 3,090 3,090
- 2024 — T U 35,635 35,635
- 2025 ——E-RF 85,672 =
135,716 50,044
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. R
2020 2019
“E-2F —TNF
Number of Number of
shares shares
(000) RMB'000 (000) RMB'000
BB EE B EE
(FB) AR®TR (F5) ARETT
Authorised: SETE
Ordinary shares of Hong Kong SR EE0.013ET([ET])
Dollars (‘HK$”) 0.01 each =il
At 1 January and 31 December  RA—A—BRE+=A
=+—H 10,000,000 97,099 10,000,000 97,099
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR :

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each & REE0.018 LA & B
At 1 January and 31 December  A—A—HBxK
+-RA=+—-H 1,037,500 10,125 1,037,500 10,125
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29. RESERVES 29. f#f&
The movements of the Group’s reserves for the year are REBRFAZGBEEE D NGARE
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in mEEBKRET] -
equity.
The movements of the Company’s reserves for the year are RATRERNZ EBEEHI WO T -

set out below:

Retained
profits/
Share  Contributed  (accumulated Dividend
premium surplus proposed Total

sE @ARE  (EHEE)  RERA 2t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABBTR ARETL ARBTT ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF-A-H 252,478 67,848 1,086 19,505 340,917

Loss and total comprehensive  FREER2ENFELE
income for the year - - (6,070) - (6,070)
Dividend approved for 2018 —F—\E7 M ERE - - - (19,50) (19,508

At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NF+-A=T-Hk
1 January 2020 —E-_F%¥-R-H 252,478 67,848 (4,984) - 315,342

Loss and total comprehensive  FREB R 2 AL
income for the year - - (4,612) - (4,612)

At 31 December 2020 R-F-FF+-A=+-H 252,478 67,848 (9,596) - 310,730
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29.

186

RESERVES (Continued)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant PRC laws, subsidiaries established
in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10% of their net
profit after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulation, to a statutory reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the entity’s registered capital. The transfer of
this reserve must be made before the distribution of dividend
to the subsidiaries equity owners. The statutory reserve
is non-distributable other than upon the liquidation of the
entity.

Statutory welfare reserve

According to the relevant PRC laws, companies established
in the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage,
as approved by the directors of the subsidiaries, of its net
profit after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulation, to a statutory welfare reserve. This reserve can
only be used to provide staff facilities and other collective
benefits to its employees. The statutory welfare reserve
is non-distributable other than upon the liquidation of the
entity. According to the relevant PRC laws, from 1 January
2006, no subsequent profit distribution to the statutory
welfare reserve was needed.
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29.

RESERVES (Continued)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
reorganisation completed on 30 April 2007 and represented
the difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued under the reorganisation and the nominal
value of the aggregate share capital/registered capital and
share premium of the subsidiaries then acquired.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve represented the revaluation
gain in respect of the leasehold land and buildings which
were reclassified as investment properties for the year ended
31 December 2014.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve represents the exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries into presentation currency of the Company.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result
of the reorganisation completed on 30 April 2007 and
represents the excess of the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange for the consolidated net assets
value of the subsidiaries then acquired.

29.

it ()

Bt
RZZEZLFNOA=THEKNEA
ERAREEEREHREE - AR
EREBEEAMBTARRBRMDNEE
B B PIT AR P B X RIS, SR &
AR EEEARRR A 5 ©

MEELFHE

MEERFEREREEL B RET
(BE-_ZT-—HmF+-A=+—H1t
FEEHDE/NENZE ) NERK

E_o

BERHE
BERBERELENBARDMBRRR
AARZINERELNELEZR -

BARER
RRARHABBAR-_TZELFMA
=+tAERNEATES @ BARQE
RRBMREABETRONEEBRLE
BT B I B A Bl AR & B EIFER
EH e
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30. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 30. EEFHFMRSAEEAEME
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ emolument (@ =EZ=M=e
The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors ENRENESZ ST !

were as follows:

Salaries,

allowance
and other Contributions
benefits to retirement
in kind schemes

i
RERAM  BK:E
e  BUANEG #K mct
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARWMTR AR®T:R

2020 “E-EE

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun TR A - - - -

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong HhREE 600 146 47 793

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong L\t 720 258 45 1,023
1,320 404 92 1,816

Independent non-executive BUFHITES

directors

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BRELAE 152 - - 152

Mr. Sun Ju Vi BERLE 151 - - 151

Mr. Ai Ji W RkSE 151 - - 151

454 - - 454

1,774 404 92 2,270

188 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e REME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-_ZE+-A=+—HILEE

30. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 30. EEHFMEERETEAEME
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (£8)
(@) Directors’ emolument (Continued) (@ EZE=EME(E)
REIETEE
allowance
and other ~ Contributions
benefits  to retirement
in kind schemes
AR R E A RIKGTE
ik B xR act
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETE ARETR ARETR
2019 “Z-NF
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun HEEmEAE = = - -
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong TR E 600 103 36 739
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong o rs 720 203 46 969
1,320 306 82 1,708
Independent non-executive BIUFHTES
directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BRERAE 152 - - 152
Mr. Sun Ju Vi BERLE 151 - - 151
Mr. Ai Ji W R5H&E 151 - - 151
454 - - 454
1,774 306 82 2,162

FAMBESEREASE A
EAME(ZF—NF: &) -

None of the Directors waived any emoluments paid by
the Group during the year (2019: Nil).

FRNEF A E S A A B
T ERBEMAREEIR
AR B SEED S RE R A (B (=
T-NEFE) -

No emoluments were paid to the Directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the year (2019: Nil).
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30. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 30. EEHFMIESREEAEME

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (&)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b)
The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included two (2019: two) directors of the Company
for the year, whose emoluments are disclosed in
Note 30(a). Details of the remuneration paid to the
remaining three (2019: three) non-director highest
paid individuals who were also members of senior
management of the Group, which fell within the band
of Nil = HK$1 million (equivalent to approximately Nil —
RMB899,000) are as follows:

TEREHFMAL
FRAEBRAZ &S HHA
TEEARAMAB(ZE—N1
FWB)EE  FENHE
ERMES0@HE - X fFF
BI=ZR(ZZ—NF: =4)
ERFMIEEEAL(NAELR
SESREEAR)NFHHN
FZ3# T 21,000,000 7T (48
ERHWARBZELE AR
899,0007T) * FIBWT :

2020 2019
—B-FF —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits &4 - ZELREWFZE

in kind 1,658 2,298
Contributions to retirement schemes R R 5T2 {7 108 118
1,766 2,416

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office for the year (2019: Nil).

() Senior management’s emoluments (c)
The emoluments paid or payable to six (2019: six)
members of senior management whose emoluments
fell within the following bands:

FRAREEYEXNHE TE
MxmHFMAL  (ERBEN
AR SR B 0 AR #) 2B =
BERmE(CT-NF - 8) -

SREBEAEME
ENfXEMNB(ZZE— N
F:RB)EREBEKEZ
& AT LA T 4R

Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to =% 7£ &= 1,000,0005% 7T
approximately Nil - RMB899,000 (MHERWARBZLE
AR #899,0007T)
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31.

32.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31.

The Group had the following outstanding capital
commitments:

BARAE
REEABIUTRINERFYE :

2020 2019
—E-%F —FT-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for, BRAME - BEREKEBEEETL
in respect of property, plant and BREE
equipment 8,606 19,332
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. FEBALXRS

In addition to those transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the following
transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@) Transactions with BJH Group

BN EMBREREMEB DT 2R
SRR AT BRI A TETT
ZR5

—g-®F -—TAF

Note RMB’000  RMB’000
i AR®TR ARETT

Rental income in respect of BEEREMENHERA
investment properties

(i) 2,303 2,229

Note:

(i) The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms
of the underlying agreements.

=ER

i) % &2 TR AR B 15 (4R
EEE °
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BBMALIXRSZ(E)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with JH Real Estate (b) EEEFEEREHEMNR
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Rental income in respect of BRAKREDFENHESERA
investment properties (i) 767 730
Revenue in respect of sales of BN E SR A
goods (i) 2,238 3,076
Service income in respect of EAM LT e EREHN
online platform supporting RS HA
service (i) 566 400
Rental income in respect of BT FNEERA
computer software (i) 131 47
Note: BT -
(i) The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms (i) ZEC BB BEEBHENIK
of the underlying agreements. HETE ©
(c) Transactions with Shenzhen Baijiahua () HERIJIITEEEZEZEBE
Yunzhuo Hotel Management Limited EEBRATNRS
2020 2019
—EZEF —T—hHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
fizE AR®Tr AR®TT
Service income in respect of BN EFEXERERN
online platform supporting PR WA
service (if) - 400
Rental income in respect of EAEREFNHEERA
computer software (if) 107 40
Expense in respect of TEER
accommodation (i) (292) -
Notes: B E
(i) Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan, the spouse of 0] HhEmSTAERFEBLZ LT G
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun, have beneficial interests in Shenzhen R EMERMB) RNRYITE
Baijiahua Yunzhuo Hotel Management Limited. 11%*%?@)3%1%75@@57%
EE=ER
(ii) The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms (ii) Z & 7 IR B 1 iR MO IR
of the underlying agreements. EE °
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32.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32.

(Continued)

(d) Transactions with Shenzhen Jiahua Property
Management Limited

BEALRS (E)

(d EBERYIMEEYWEEER
REERTANRS

2020 2019
—2oBF —TNF

RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT

Service income in respect of AR EF AT ERERN
online platform supporting BR AU A
service

Rental income in respect of EHEEREENEERA
computer software

Expenses in respect of property B E¥EEIERNF
management

Short term lease expense in BRAFEBEMNMEHEERY
respect of car parking lot

(i) 189 400
(il 107 40
(il (113) (131)

(il (1,331) (982)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan, the spouse of
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun, have beneficial interests in Shenzhen
Jiahua Property Management Limited.

(i) The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms
of the underlying agreements.

(¢) Compensation of key management
personnel

(i) A MERM AL G
BRI SE A MACB) RORYITIE
EYEEREERETARMEE

S -

(iif) & 78 T AR IR AR B 175 5 MO R 3X
BT -

() EEEEAEME

2020 2019
e —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBETT

Total remuneration of directors ~ EZE ([i3+30(a)) R EM T E

(Note 30(a)) and other members  &EIE A 8 B #4258
of key management

— Short term employee benefits ~ — 43 Hi{E B 1@ 7 4,902 5,476

— Contributions to retirement — iR RETEIE R
schemes 313 351
5,215 5,827
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. ARRFBARRE
THE COMPANY

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = ARET T ARET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B ARRIEE 67,848 67,848
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries e A= NGIE QL] 249,213 256,445
Other receivables H A e U IR = 13
Cash and bank balances B RIRTT4 5,970 3,288
255,183 259,746
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HAth FE (T 5RIE R
s &R 2,176 2,127
Net current assets REHEEZE 253,007 257,619
Net assets EEFE 320,855 325,467
EQUITY =
Share capital &7 28 10,125 10,125
Reserves s 29 310,730 315,342
Total equity RS 320,855 325,467
Zhuang Lu Kun Zhuang Pei Zhong
FEpE BT
Director Director
EFE EBFE
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 and 2020
are as follows:

34.

Particulars of
Place of incorporation/ issued share/
establishment and paid-up registered
Company name legal form of entity capital
AL/ RIBER BRTRH/
ARER HEAER EdRERES
Forever Prosperity International British Virgin Islands, US§20
Company Limited limited fabity company ~ 20% 7T
AEEBARAA ERRAES
EREMAH
Ding Xin Investment Company Limited ~ Hong Kong, HK$0.1
SHREBRA limited liabilty company 0170
&% BRAMRLA
Shenzhen Baijiahua Commercial The PRC, RMB45,000,000
Management Limited limited liabity company AR 545,000,007
MM BEEEZERARAT HE - BREFAT
Shenzhen Qianhai Baijiahua The PRC, RMB50,000,000
Commercial Factoring Limited limited fiabilty company AR 50,000,000
MITHSEEEGERE HE - BREFAT
BRAR
Shenzhen Baijiahua Department Stores  The PRC, RMB220,400,000
Company Limited limited fabity company ~ A #220,400,00070

MIMAEEREERAT

(wholly-foreign owned
enterprise)

T8 ERELAT
GhEBEEL%)

34.

R B D AR

RZE-—NFR=

E-_FTF+ A

=t+—8 HBRRFBEWT :

Percentage of interest
held by the Company
ARAGARERAAL

2020
-g-%5

Directly
B

100%

Indirectly

Eacd

B

100%

100%

100%

100%

Directly

2019

BEERARAR

£
Indirectly

&

100%

100%

100%

100%

—E-TFFR

Principal activities
and place of operations

TERBRAEHY

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBETRERR

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBETRERR

Operation and management
of shopping malls
in the PRC
RPERER
BEENDL

Commercial factoring
services in the PRC

I RETHFRERE

Investment holding
and operation and
management of retail
stores in the PRC
RPEETRERRR
BERERTER
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34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. RHEATKER(E)

Percentage of interest

Particulars of held by the Company
Place of incorporation/ issued share/ ADARBREEMM
establishment and paid-up registered 2020 2019 Principal activities
Company name legal form of entity capital k- dul- 22 ThE and place of operations
EMEL/ BIBER EBfTRG/ Directly  Indirectly Directly ~ Indirectly
ARER HEAER BARERES B i Bi AE  IEXBREESE
Guangxi Baijahua Department Stores ~ The PRC, RMB10,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Operation and management
Company Limited limited liability company AR10,000,0007 of retall stores in the PRC
BRAEEREARAT HE - BREEAR RAEEERERSER
Shenzhen BJH Network Technology The PRC, RMB10,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Operation and management
Limited limited liability company AR10,000,0007 of onling sale in the PRC
MITEEERENERRAR HE - BREEAR REAEEER
ERALHE
Shenzhen Baijiahua Convenient The PRC, RMB5,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Inactive
Stores Chain Management Limited limited liabity company A& 5,000,00070 TEL

MInEEEEEEHEERERAR  PE AREALA

Shenzhen Baijiahua Supply The PRC, RMB5,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Supply chain financing
Chain Management Limited limited fabity company A& 5,000,007 senvices in the PRC
T B ERERAT hE - BREAALT RREETHER
EBRE
The financial statements of the above subsidiaries were LB ARMNTBREERTEE
audited by BDO Limited, for statutory purpose and/or for the BIMER,HEBGEREBRB AT
purpose of the group consolidation. EEXEFMESMERARER -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at RER - BERB AR BITEMER

Ao Mz
K
[E15 °©

the end of the year.
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 35. BMIEETHEACEBEHAE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lease
Borrowings liabilities
(Note 26) (Note 13)
BE HEaE
(Bff&E£26) (BffEE13)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥T T
At 1 January 2020 RZZE_TF—-H—H - 681,835
Changes in cash flow: Rensd
Proceeds from borrowings BB RS RIE 67,513 =
Repayment of borrowings BEEBE (570) -
Interest paid BFE (882) -
Repayment of principal portion EEHEEE2EAEHD
of lease liabilities = (61,469)
Repayment of interest portion EEHEEBEZFE
of lease liabilities = (45,023)
Total changes from financing MEREGREE
cash flows: 66,061 (106,492)
Other changes: HihEs)
Interest on borrowings BER A 882 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE = 45,023
Increase in lease liabilities RN EEEHEE S EIE N
from entering into new leases = 38,848
Decrease in lease liabilities from early 12F 4 | FFAEEE
termination of leases HEeEaERd = (68,764)
Effect of lease modification HEBIINZE = (44,410)
COVID-19-related rent concessions ~ COVID-195 M HEE E R = (7,199)
Total other changes: HAb BB 485t ! 882 (36,502)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZE_ZEF+_-_HA=+—H 66,943 538,841

ZERARAR —E_ZTFFR
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 35. MMEETHEACEB2HAE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

—~~

&)

Lease
liabilities
(Note 13)
HEaE
(F5E13)
RMB’000
ARETFIT
At 1 January 2019 RZE—hF—A—H 515,438
Changes in cash flow: BeRhs®s) .
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities {EiEHEEBE 2 &S D (61,517)
Repayment of interest portion of lease liabilities {EiEHE & &2 F S 2D (61,750)
Total changes from financing cash flows: MEES RS EEAE (113,267)
Other changes: HihEs)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEHNE 51,750
Increase in lease liabilities from entering FINHEEENEEE &N
into new leases 227,975
Decrease in lease liabilities from early REXRIIHEEHEEAGERD
termination of leases (61)
Total other changes: H e 5T - 279,664
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+—_A=+—H 681,835

198 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
?.‘vT\D

BAREER AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and
in its investment activities. The financial risks include market
risk (including currency risk and interest risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the Board. The
overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets. Long term
financial investments are managed to generate lasting
returns with acceptable risk levels.

It is not the Group’s policy to engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to
are described below.

36.

EEREZERERAF

BEEREER A FEFE

AEEREAFEBELBRERKNE
FBERSRITANESMEERR -
BRVHRAREEMZAR(BRER
R RN RRR) - EEERR MR
HETAR -

FAF R E I AN SR B AR R 7 - I
HEFEEYAEF BEMBRERZ
EREREHENEERERL TR
MIZEE - BEASEEHERHR
TRE RESRNENAZRZRAR
REELFEDRER -

AREE 2 BRI FARH DB B
MERTARSE -AKEMEYRE
AT BERGHLT
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. BXEREERAFEFE
EMEEREEHEH

R BRRE SIEBEME
ERSBEEHER Y FEEN

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)
(i) Categories of financial assets and liabilities (i)
The carrying amounts presented in the statements of
financial position relate to the following categories of

200

financial assets and financial liabilities: T
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Financial assets: SRMEE
Financial assets measured REER At EZ S mEE
at amortised costs
— Trade and loan receivables —EWESERTRER 59,929 70,809
— Deposits paid and other —BfHR S Rk H AR IE
receivables 32,117 34,830
— Restricted bank deposit —ZRHIRITIER 2,000 =
- Cash and cash equivalents —HekRSZFEY 76,624 117,737
170,670 223,376
Financial liabilities: cEAas:
Financial liabilities measured REHKATTEz @A E
at amortised costs
— Trade payables —ERE SRR 75,054 98,057
- Deposits received, other payables — B Wi& 4 - Hih e I8
and accruals KrEsTE A 119,606 143,651
- Amount due to a director —EN—REEHE 59 59
— Lease liabilities —MHEAaRE 538,841 681,835
— Borrowings —f&E 66,943 -
800,503 923,602
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TF+-A=+—RHIFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36.
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (#&)

BERERBEERQFENE

(ii)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group has operation in the PRC so that the
majority of the Group’s revenues, expenses and cash
flows are denominated in RMB. Assets and liabilities
of the Group are mostly denominated in RMB and
HK$. Any significant exchange rate fluctuations of

(ii)

$’I\””W‘J—LA
EREREERTAZAFE

IARKREREANERES)

TR ED 2 B

AEBRPREERS A
SERFOWA - HXERE
MEHAARKETE - AEE
REDEERABAARKER
BITAHE © IMELAREHE

foreign currencies against RMB may have financial RINBEMERREB A g
impact to the Group. AEBEKTBHZE -

The Group’s exposures at the reporting date
to currency risk arising from foreign currency
denominated monetary assets in currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate are set out below:

TRMEE :

Financial assets:

RN ASNESHENERE EEIN
HEHERNNEEE TRN
E¥EHE  AEERKRER
HAZ TG RERE

2020 2019
—g-%5 —T-NF

RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARETT

Cash and bank balances — HK$ He MRTTER BT 6,352 4,470
Deposits and other Re REMERRIE - BT

receivables — HK$ 95 -

6,447 4,470

Financial liabilities: cRERE
Other payables and accruals E b RIE N ERTE A

- HK$ —BT (1,723) =
Net exposure [7\ B2 5 58 4,724 4,470

b
,E
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. WHEABREERQAFETE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) IMERPEE(E)
Sensitivity analysis BBEDN

As at 31 December 2020, if RMB had strengthened
by 5% against HK$, with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year and,
accumulated losses would have been approximately
RMB225,000 higher (2019: retained profits of
RMB214,000 lower), as a result of foreign exchange
gains on translation of foreign currency denominated
financial assets and liabilities.

The same % decrease in the foreign currency
exchange rate on RMB against HK$ would have the
same magnitude on the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year and retained profits as shown above but
of opposite effect, on the basis all variances held
constant.

These are the same method and assumption used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis included in the
financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2020.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE-Z-TF+-_A=+—RHIEE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36.
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

agﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁ§

(iii)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying
amounts of cash and bank balance, trade and loan
receivables, deposits paid and other receivables.

For the operation and management of retail stores
and other related businesses, the Group has no
significant concentrations of credit risk. Most of
the sales transactions were settled in cash basis,
by credit card payment or through online payment
platforms. Credit terms are only offered to corporate
customers with whom the Group has an established
and ongoing relationship. Regarding trade receivables
arising from rental income, the Group maintains
a defined credit policy including stringent credit
evaluation on and payment of a rental deposit from
tenants. Receivables are regularly reviewed and
closely monitored to minimise any associated credit
risk.

The Group’s trade receivables, deposits paid and
other receivables are actively monitored to avoid
significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group
is not exposed to any significant credit risk from any
single counterparty or any group of counterparties
having similar characteristics. The Group’s bank
deposits were deposited with major financial
institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC, which
management believes are of high-credit-quality
without significant credit risk.

{

(iii)

FEREERERAF

=ERRE
FERREESRTANKSY
FREZRBS BT AGKE
TEREME  SAKEHRUE
EiENER - AEEEHNR
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@ o

REERERTEEREMA
MEBMS  AEENEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HIIFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

All of the Group’s trade receivables, deposits paid

and other receivables have no collateral. Details of the

Group’s ECLs assessments are as follows:

(iii)

(a)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach in
providing for ECLs as prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which requires the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. The
Group always measures the loss allowance
for trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables
are estimated by reference to past default
experience of the debtor and current market
condition in relation to each debtor’s
exposure. The ECLs also incorporates
forward-looking information with reference
to general macroeconomic conditions that
may affect the ability of the debtors to settle
receivables. To measure the ECLs, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
share credit risk characteristics.

No provision for impairment loss for these
trade receivables (including rental income
receivables) were made at 31 December
2020 and 2019 as the financial assets were
considered to be of low credit risk and the
ECLs of these financial assets was immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-_ZE+-A=+—HILEE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

Deposits and other receivables

The Group determines ECLs for deposits
and other receivables based on 12-month
ECLs which take into account the historical
default experiences and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, for example,
the Group considers the consistently low
historical default rates of counterparties. It
is concluded that credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding deposits paid and other
receivables are insignificant. The Group has
assessed that the deposits paid and other
receivables do not have a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition and risk
of default is insignificant, therefore, the ECLs
for those deposits paid and other receivables
were immaterial under the 12-month ECLs
method. No loss allowance for the deposits
paid and other receivables were recognised for
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020.

BERERBEERQFENE

=ERgE(E)
(b) BERHMEWFE

AEEER+-_@ATE
HEEEEREE R E
fth R IR EE E TR A
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B A RC 8 L BT RE M A R
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. WHEABREERQAFETE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&
(iii)  Credit risk (Continued) (iii)y EERRE(E)
(¢)  Loan receivables (c) EWER
The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly AEEmMHENEERR
arises from loan receivables from financing FERESRRFED

services business. As at 31 December 2020,
the five largest loan receivables, in aggregate,
contributed approximately RMB40,425,000 or
67% (2019: RMB46,477,000 or 66%) to the
Group’s total trade and loan receivables.

In respect of loan receivables, the Group’s
policy is that all customers who wish to
obtain loans from the Group are subject
to management review. The Group holds
collaterals directly or indirectly to cover its risks
associated with loan receivables.

The Group applies HKFRS 9 to measure
ECLs which uses a 12-month ECLs for
loan receivables. To measure the ECLs,
loan receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics. The
internal credit risk ratings are based on
qualitative (such as debtors’ operating
conditions, financial positions, external rating
of customers, etc.) and quantitative factors
(mainly includes past due information of the
loan receivables).
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BE-_Z-_ZE+-A=+—HILEE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)
(c) Loan receivables (Continued)

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
by referencing the external data adjusted by
macroeconomic factors and forward-looking
information including the actual and expected
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The credit policies have been followed by the
Group throughout the year and are considered
to be effective.

The Group did not provide any loss allowance
for the loan receivables for the year ended 31
December 2019 as the financial impact arising
from the credit risk of loan receivables was
considered as minimal.

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of loan receivables during the year is
as follows:

Loss allowances

Balance as at 1 January 2019,
31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

36. WHEABREERQAFETE

(&)
(i) EERMRGE)
(c) MEWEHRGE)

STEEBEEEERTE
BHOMR  BHEAR
RERMEHNELD
RE)REDHRRT K
o FTHEOMERE
#)18 K RIRE LASNEDER
BAR2E  YHAERSE
KERERATEEER
(BFECOVID-19Z B8
ERRIBEITE)AE -

EERREBRRERSF
—ERAKEGSH B
REBER -

HE-F-NE+—A
=+-BLLEE K%
3 A R
REENHBYLE
B R R
AT AR -

P R B
BENEBOT

12-month
ECLs
+={@A

BHEEER
RMB’000
ARBT

R-_Z-AF—H—8
—F-NF+=A=1+—H

E=E-TF—A—HH

e -
Impairment loss recognised EHERREERE 2,076
At 31 December 2020 N-E-_EF+=-_A=1+—H 2,076

FEEFEFRARAT T TFEFR 207



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE TSR AR MIEE (4E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-TF+-_A=1+—RALEFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. WHEABREERQAFETE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

(iv)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank balances, borrowings and loan receivables. The
bank balances and borrowings are at variable interest
rates which expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The loan receivables are at fixed interest
rates which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group
has not formulated a policy to manage the interest
rate risk.

Management monitors the related interest exposure
closely to ensure the interest rate risks are maintained
at an acceptable level. The level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken is
monitored closely.

Management considers the Group’s exposure to fair
value interest rate risk is not significant due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.

Management considers the Group’s exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk is not significant due to the
deposit rates in Hong Kong and the PRC and the loan
prime rate in the PRC are expected to remain stable
by reference to the historical data.
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BE-_Z-_ZE+-A=+—HILEE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis:

The management estimates the general increase or
decrease of 25 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant to result in immaterial
change in the Group’s loss for the year and retained
profits. The 25 basis points represents management’s
assessment of the reasonable change in interest
rates of bank balances and borrowings. Changes in
interest rates have no impact on the Group’s other
components of equity. The Group adopts centralised
treasury policies in cash and financial management
and focuses on reducing the Group’s overall interest
expense.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations and also in respect of its cash
flow management.

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash
and bank balances and have available funding to
meet its working capital requirements. The Group’s
liquidity is dependent upon the cash received from its
customers.

BERERBEERQFENE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36. WHEABREERQAFETE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (i)
(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) #"BHETEEE)

During the year, the Group has incurred a loss of
RMB194,461,000 and at the end of reporting period,
its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB71,707,000. The management of the Group has
prepared a cash flow projection covering a period
of 12 months from the date of consolidated financial
statements. The Directors, after making due enquires
and considering the management’s projection and
taking account of the followings, believe that there
will be sufficient financial resources to continue its
operations and to meet its financial obligation as
and when they fall due within the next 12 months
from the date of consolidated financial statements:
(i) At the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the unutilised bank facility
available for drawdown amounted to approximately
RMB82,487,000; and (ii) the management of the
Group has been endeavouring to improve the Group’s
operating results and cash flows through various
means, such as, transforming the business model by
shifting the focus on sales of goods from traditional
supermarkets to sub-leasing business.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in managing liquidity risks.
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36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(v)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its non-derivative as at 31 December
2019 and 2020. When the creditor has a choice of
when the liability is settled, the liability is included
on the basis of the earliest date on when the Group
can be required to pay. Where the settlement of the
liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Group is committed
to pay.

36.

Total

contractual
Carrying undiscounted

amount

cash flows

CLES
RERELR
RMB’000

KR
RMB’000

At 31 December 2020 N=F-FE+-A=1—-H

BERERBEERQFENE

(&)
(v)

Repayable
within

1 year
oron
demand
—ERHER
ZREE
RMB’000
AREFT

REEESRR (&)
NTaMAREER_Z—N
FRZE-EF+_/A=+—
BHIESTEIBE M HRE 15
B o (e fEHE A RLRIEE
BENKRE BaEERASE
BRI ESKERNRET A B
Re-maEsfER  ASS
BRSO EEAREEEBER
H & T HfE o

Over

2 years but
less than

5 years
MERL
BHREE
RMB’000
ARBTT

Over

1 year but
less than
2 years
—F0E
BYRWE
RMB'000
ARBTT

More than
5 years

EFRL
RMB'000
ARBTT

Trade payables ERESRR 75,054 75,054 75,054 - - =
Deposits received, other  BMRE « HENFER

payables and accruals E:rER 119,606 119,606 119,606 - - -
Amount dueto adirector ~ ER—4EEHE 59 59 59 5 - =
Lease liabilties REGRE 538,841 722639 102,138 93168 273404 253929
Borrowings ‘e 66,943 98,873 5,563 5,450 16,508 71,352
Total @t 800,503 1,016,231 302,420 98,618 289,912 325,281
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+-R=1+-H
Trade payables ETEES 98,057 98,057 98,057 - = -
Deposits received, other ~ BYUEE « EMEMFER

payables and accruals E:rER 143,651 143651 143,651 = = =
Amount due to a director  EN—4ZEZFE 59 59 59 - - -
Lease liabilities HEafk 681,835 931,693 124578 116905 319,305 370,905
Total &t 923602 173460 366,345 116905 319,305 370,905

The Group considers expected cash flows from
financial assets in assessing and managing liquidity
risk, in particular, its cash resources and other liquid
assets that readily generate cash. The Group’s
existing cash resources and other liquid assets
significantly exceed the cash outflow requirements.
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37.

212

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods
and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Management regards total equity as capital, for
capital management purpose. The amount of capital
as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB339,420,000 (2019: RMB533,881,000), in which
management considers as optimal having considered the
projected capital expenditures and the projected strategic
investment opportunities.
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37.

38.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current
and non-current borrowings and lease liabilities” as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position) less total
cash (including “cash and cash equivalents” and “restricted
bank deposits” as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position). Capital is calculated as “equity” as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were as
follows:

37.

BEAXREE(F)
$EILA§$E1attI%%E LA
L ERINFEBRINESTES
H‘J FEHBACEAR(BELEEN
iR R TR [ BVHER K 3E BN HA(E 3 &
HEABRRSEHE(BRERAN
BIMRRERR [ RERBEESED IR
[RHBITERDFAESLE - B
AT RAITRA [ 5T ES
e RZE_EFR-_F-NFt+=
B=+—BHELEELERDT

2020 2019
—E-EF = JilE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Borrowings EBE 66,943 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 538,841 681,835
Less: Y
Cash and cash equivalents BERELEEY (76,624) (117,737)
Restricted bank deposit ZPRHIERITIE X (2,000) -
Net debt SRERS 527,160 564,098
Total equity S saEn 339,420 533,881
Gearing ratio BERAELEE 1.55 1.06
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 38. #HtETIEEHHEK
STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 HE—_Z -+ -_A=+—H Lt¢
December 2020 were approved for issue by the Directors on ERGENEHRREEETR 2=

29 March 2021.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
e

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE
Attributable
interest of
Location Tenure the Group
3 iRt REEEIEES
1/F, 2/F, 3/F and 4/F partial, Commercial premises for Medium term lease 100%
Jiahua Ming Yuan rental

No. 2146 Xinhu Road

Baoan Central District

Shenzhen

The PRC

H [SEJuskicl HRHAAE A9
I

BELHROER

214655

FEZ D

1,2, SRAE(ED)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

L EHBEBRE

RESULTS

3

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-HLEE

2018 2019
\ “E-N\% B4
RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
(re-presented)
(E51)
Continuing operations BERSER
Revenue WA 728,903 690,124 710,336 645,329 428,057
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA (468,950) (418,357) (410,424) (354,239) (207,184)
259,953 271,767 299,912 291,096 220,873
Other operating income Hipg&mA 69,992 63,135 71,509 65,703 73,167
Increase/(decrease) in fair value REMENTE
of investment properties #11,/ (RP) 10,600 20,100 500 800 (7,500)
Selling and distribution costs HERDHERA (216,943) (218,184) (284,905) (290,102) (250,254)
Administrative expenses THAX (54,047) (63,507) (49,997) (60,063) (50,226)
Other operating expenses HiEE5s (4,911) (7,120) (3,465) (5,455) (131,606)
Impairment loss on loan receivables  FEWE B % = = = = (2,076)
Finance costs B A - - - (51,750) (45,905)
Share of loss of an associate El-FABERRER (116) - - - -
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREGHAES/ (BR) 64,528 76,191 33,554 (49,771) (193,527
Income tax expense FERAY (23,399) (26,665) (9,085) (2,571) (934)
Profit/(loss) from continuing BERLEERY
operations for the year FREF /(BB 41,135 49,626 24,469 (62,342) (194,461)
Discontinued operation BERIHEERE
(Loss)/profit from discontinued BRIHEEEK
operation for the year FR(ER)/ &7 - (16,327) 734 = -
Profit/(loss) for the year EREF/(BE) 41,135 33,199 25,203 (52,342) (194,461)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: AT ALERET
(BR) :
- Owners of the Company —ARAHBA 41,306 33,199 25,203 (52,342) (194,461)
- Non-controlling interest —ERREER (171) = - - -
41,135 33,199 25,203 (52,342) (194,461)
Dividends ) 25,004 19,816 19,505 - -
Eamings/(loss) per share BRER/ (F8)
- Basic &R RMBARE RMBAR RMBARE RMBAR%®  RMBAKH
3.98cents”  320cents?  2.43cents’m  (5.05) centss  (18.74) cents %
- Diluted % RMBARE  RMBARY  RMBARY®  RMBARE  RMBAR®
398cents?  3.20centsh  2.43centsh  (5.05)cents?d  (18.74) cents
EEFTEERBBR AT ZTTFFR 215



Five-Year Financial Summary (Continued)
T FEBEHE(E)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

As at 31 December
R+t=A=t+—-H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

“E-RF E+F —E-\F —ZT-NF CZEZEf
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFTT AR®TR

Total assets BEE 875,313 942,416 947,752 1,505,579 1,192,134
Total liabilities BEE (283,732) (342,640) (342,024) (971,698) (852,714)
Net assets EEFE 591,581 599,776 605,728 533,881 339,420

Note: MEE -

1. The results for year ended 31 December 2020, and the assets and liabilities 1. HE_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—BIEFENXE
as at 31 December 2020 have been extracted from the audited consolidated B OURR-ZZE_TF+_A=+—HWEE
statement of comprehensive income and audited consolidated statement of REBESREEEVEHREAFETSE RFE7I9EL0
financial position as set out on page 78 and pages 79 to 80 respectively, of the BHREBEGEAEHAUERREEREGESTE
financial statements. uRiR s o

216 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



BAMAE - BB NERDEERESTEBHEFHOLTETISE
E 3 ¢ (00852) 3620 2368
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